

# TEHAMA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS GERBER, CALIFORNIA

## **BID BOOK**

# NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, PROPOSAL, AND CONTRACT

FOR CONSTRUCTION ON

### **JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025**

#### **FY25-26 JOC**

FOR USE IN CONNECTION WITH
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, AND STANDARD PLANS,
DATED 2024

CONSTRUCTION TASK CATALOG®, TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS LABOR SURCHARGE AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL RATES

BID OPENING: October 8, 2025, 3:00 PM (PST) as served by <a href="https://nist.time.gov">https://nist.time.gov</a>





# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

TABLE OF CONTENTS		III
Notio	CE TO BIDDERS	1
STANI	DARD PLANS LIST	7
SPEC	TAL PROVISIONS	8
DIVIS	SION I GENERAL PROVISIONS	8
1	GENERAL	8
2	BIDDING	11
3	CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION	26
4	SCOPE OF WORK	28
5	CONTROL OF WORK	29
6	CONTROL OF MATERIAL	58
7	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC	63
8	PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS	81
9	PAYMENT	82
DIVIS	SION II GENERAL CONSTRUCTION	85
10	GENERAL	85
11	WELDING	85
12	TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL	85
13	WATER POLLUTION CONTROL	86
14	ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP	92
15	EXISTING FACILITIES	102
16	TEMPORARY FACILITIES	102
DIVIS	SION III EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE GENERAL	103
17	GENERAL	103
18	DUST PALLIATIVES	103
19	EARTHWORK	104
20	LANDSCAPE	106
21	EROSION CONTROL	106
22	FINISHING ROADWAY	106
DIVIS	SION IV SUBBASES AND BASES	107
23	GENERAL	107
24	STABILIZED SOILS	107
25	AGGREGATE SUBBASES	107
26	AGGREGATE BASES	107
27	CEMENT TREATED BASES	107
28	CONCRETE BASES	107
29	TREATED PERMEABLE BASES	107
30	RECLAIMED PAVEMENTS	107
31-35	RESERVED	108
DIVIS	SION V SURFACING AND PAVEMENTS	109
36	GENERAL	109
37	BITUMINOUS SEALS	109
38	RESERVED	109
39	ASPHALT CONCRETE	109
40	CONCRETE PAVEMENT	111

41	EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT	111
42	GROOVE AND GRIND CONCRETE	111
43	RESERVED	112
44	RESERVED	112
DIVIS	SION VI STRUCTURES	113
45	GENERAL	113
46	GROUND ANCHORS AND SOIL NAILS	113
<b>47</b>	EARTH RETAINING SYSTEMS	113
48	TEMPORARY STRUCTURES	113
49	PILING	113
50	PRESTRESSING CONCRETE	116
51	CONCRETE STRUCTURES	116
52	REINFORCEMENT	117
53	SHOTCRETE	121
54	WATERPROOFING	122
55	STEEL STRUCTURES	122
<b>56</b>	OVERHEAD SIGN STRUCTURES, STANDARDS AND POLES	122
57	WOOD AND PLASTIC LUMBER STRUCTURES	123
<b>58</b>	SOUND WALLS	123
59	STRUCTURAL STEEL COATINGS	123
60	EXISTING STRUCTURES	123
DIVIS	SION VII DRAINAGE FACILITIES	124
61	GENERAL	124
62	RESERVED	124
63	RESERVED	124
64	PLASTIC PIPE	124
65	CONCRETE PIPE	124
66	CORRUGATED METAL PIPE	124
67	STRUCTURAL PLATE CULVERTS	125
68	SUBSURFACE DRAINS	125
69	OVERSIDE DRAINS	125
<b>70</b>	MISCELLANEOUS DRAINAGE FACILITIES	125
71	EXISTING DRAINAGE FACILITIES	125
DIVIS	SION VIII MISC. CONSTRUCTION	126
<b>72</b>	SLOPE PROTECTION	126
73	CONCRETE CURBS AND SIDEWALKS	126
<b>74</b>	PUMPING AND CONTROLS	126
75	MISCELLANEOUS METAL	126
<b>76</b>	WELLS	126
77	LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE	126
<b>78</b>	INCIDENTAL CONSTRUCTION	127
<b>79</b>	RESERVED	127
80	FENCES	127
	SION IX TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES	128
81	MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES	128
82	SIGNS AND MARKERS	128
83	RAILINGS AND BARRIERS	128

84	MARKINGS	132
85	RESERVED	132
DIVIS	SION X ELECTRICAL WORK	133
86	GENERAL	133
<b>87</b>	ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS	133
88	RESERVED	133
DIVIS	SION XI MATERIAL	134
89	AGGREGATE	134
90	CONCRETE	134
91	PAINT	134
92	ASPHALT BINDERS	134
93	RESERVED	134
94	ASPHALTIC EMULSIONS	134
95	EPOXY	134
96	GEOSYNTHETICS	135
<b>97</b>	RESERVED	135
98	RESERVED	135
DIVIS	SION XII BUILDING CONSTRUCTION	136
99	BUILDING CONSTRUCTION	136
BID TO THE COUNTY OF TEHAMA		A-1
OWNER-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT		B-1
EXHIBIT 12-G: REQUIRED FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT LANGUAGE		C-1
CONSTRUCTION TASK CATALOG AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS LINKS		D-1
SUPPI	LEMENTARY CONDITIONS – FEMA FUNDED PROJECT	E-1



### **NOTICE TO BIDDERS**

# COUNTY OF TEHAMA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Sealed bids for the work included in the specifications entitled:

# JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025 MASTER AGREEMENT 2024 PLANS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

will be received at the Department of Public Works office at 9380 San Benito Avenue, Gerber, California, 96035 until **3:00 PM (PST) on October 8, 2025**, at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud in the conference room at the aforementioned address. Multiple Contractors may be selected to enter into Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity ("ID/IQ") contracts with the County for the provision of the services the proposed herein. The County intends to include up to two Contractors in this Master Agreement to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder(s).

#### **DESCRIPTION OF WORK**

A Job Order Contract is an indefinite quantity construction contract pursuant to which the Contractor may perform an ongoing series of individual Projects at different locations and facilities under the jurisdiction of the County. Job Order Contracting is typically used for small to medium sized repair and rehabilitation work, and replacement in kind projects.

The Master Agreement Documents include a Construction Task Catalog® containing Prepriced Tasks for construction work with preset Unit Prices. All Unit Prices are based on local labor, material and equipment costs and are for the direct cost of construction.

Bidders will bid four Adjustment Factors to be applied to the Unit Prices. One Adjustment Factor for performing work in General Facilities during Normal Working Hours, a second Adjustment Factor for performing work in General Facilities during Other Than Normal Working Hours, a third Adjustment Factor for performing work in Secured Facilities during Normal Working Hours, and a fourth Adjustment Factor for performing work in Secured Facilities during Other Than Normal Working Hours. The same four Adjustment Factors apply to every Pre-priced Task in the Construction Task Catalog®.

Thereafter, as work is identified, the Contractor will attend a Joint Scope Meeting with the County to review and discuss the proposed work. The County will prepare a Detailed Scope of Work and issue a Request for Job Order Proposal to the Contractor. The Contractor will then prepare a Job Order Proposal including a Price Proposal, construction schedule, list of proposed subcontractors, and other requested documentation.

The value of the Price Proposal shall be determined by summing the total of the following calculation for each Prepriced Task: Unit Price x quantity x Adjustment Factor, plus the value of all Non-Prepriced Tasks. The Job Order Price shall equal the value of the approved Price Proposal.

If the Job Order Proposal is found to be complete and accurate, the County may issue a Job Order to the Contractor.

A Job Order will reference the Detailed Scope of Work and set forth the Job Order Completion Time and the Job Order Price. The Contractor will be paid the Job Order Price for completing the Detailed Scope of Work within the Job Order Completion Time.

Extra work, credits, and deletions will be contained in a Supplemental Job Order.

All Job Orders issued during the term of this Master Agreement shall be valid and shall remain in full force and effect after the expiration of the term of this contract or any guarantee period has expired until the Job Order is fully performed. All terms and conditions of the Master Agreement apply to each Job Order.

#### CONTRACT VALUE AND TERM

Any Project with an estimated, proposed, or actual cost greater than Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000) may, in the sole discretion of the Director of Public Works, be assigned to the Contractor that proposes the lowest cost for that Project. The consideration to be paid to the Contractor under this Master Agreement shall in no event exceed the Initial Contract Value as defined below. The consideration to be paid to the Contractor under an authorized Job Order shall in no event exceed the Job Order Grand Total specified in a properly authorized Job Order.

The Contractor shall be paid in accordance with the Section 9 Payment set forth below. The County's payments to Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement shall constitute full compensation for all of the Contractor's time, materials, efforts, costs and expenses incurred in the performance of any obligation(s) or any other activities undertaken pursuant to this Master Agreement.

The Term of the Master Agreement is for a period of one (1) year, or when Job Orders totaling the Initial Contract Value have been issued, whichever occurs first.

The Initial Contract Value is \$1,500,000. The County reserves the right to increase the Initial Contract Value to the State Maximum allowable by the Public Contract Code Section 20128.5, adjusted annually to reflect the percentage change in the California Consumer Price Index since January 1998, which at this time is approximately \$6,210,093.00.

#### ADJUSTMENT FACTORS

- 1. There are four Adjustment Factors for this Contract. When preparing a Price Proposal, the Contractor shall select the appropriate Adjustment Factor.
- 2. The Adjustment Factors are as follows:
  - a. Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm except County holidays.
  - b. Other Than Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 5:00 pm to 7:00 am and all-day Saturday, Sunday, and County holidays.
  - c. Normal Working Hours, Secured Facilities Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm except County holidays.
  - d. Other Than Normal Working Hours, Secured Facilities Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 5:00 pm to 7:00 am and all-day Saturday, Sunday, and County holidays.
- 3. The Other Than Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor must be equal to or greater than the Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor.
- 4. For bid evaluation purposes only, the following work distributions shall be used to determine the Award Criteria Figure:

Adjustment	% Weight
Factor	(For Bid Evaluation Only)
General Facilities – Normal Working Hours	50%
General Facilities – Other than Normal Working Hours	30%
Secured Facilities – Normal Working Hours	10%
Secured Facilities – Other than Normal Working Hours	10%

5. All Unit Prices listed in the Construction Task Catalog® are priced at a net value of 1.0000. The Adjustment Factors shall be an increase or decrease to all the Unit Prices listed in the Construction Task Catalog®. For example, 1.1000 would be a 10% increase to the Unit Prices and 0.9500 would be a 5% decrease to the Unit Prices. Bidders who submit separate Adjustment Factors for separate Unit Prices will be considered non-responsive and their bid will be rejected.

#### JOC SYSTEM LICENSE FEE

The County selected The Gordian Group's (Gordian) Job Order Contracting (JOC) Solution for their JOC program. The Gordian JOC Solution<sup>TM</sup> includes Gordian's proprietary JOC Information Management System ("JOC IMS"), construction cost data, and Construction Task Catalog® which shall be used by the Contractor solely for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this Contract, including the preparation and submission of Job Order Proposals, Price Proposals, subcontractor lists, and other requirements specified by the County. The Contractor shall be required to execute Gordian's SaaS Terms of Use and pay a 1% JOC System License Fee to obtain access to the Gordian JOC Solution<sup>TM</sup>. The JOC System License Fee applies to all Job Orders issued to the Contractor under the terms of this Contract.

Within two business days of receipt of a Purchase Order or Approved Job Order from the County, the Contractor must provide notification to Gordian by forwarding a copy of the Purchase Order/Approved Job Order to Gordian.

Upon the Contractor's receipt of the initial payment from the County, Gordian will invoice the Contractor for the JOC System License Fee. The Contractor shall remit payment to Gordian within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice. Any amounts arising in relation to money not paid when due will be subject to a late charge of (1.5%) per month on the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less.

#### DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOAL

Disadvantaged Business Goals, if any, will be applied on a Job Order by Job Order basis.

#### SELF PERFORMANCE GOALS

On a Job Order Basis, as required by the County, the Contractor may be required to perform work with their own organization and forces. Each Job Order will indicate if the work is to be performed by the Contractor's own forces or can be subcontracted. The total requirement of self-performed work is not intended to exceed 30% of all work during the term of the contract. As requested, the Contractor shall provide a report to the Owner showing the amount of self-performance achieved by project and total accumulative amount. The self-performance percentage calculation does not include field superintendents or office management personnel.

#### PRE-BID MEETING

A <u>MANDATORY</u> pre-bid meeting is scheduled for <u>September 24, 2025</u>, at 1:00 PM at the offices of Tehama County Public Works, 9380 San Benito Ave, Gerber, CA. This meeting is to discuss the JOC program and documents, answer questions and discuss JOC from the contractor's perspective. Bidder's attendance at this meeting will be <u>mandatory</u>. Bids submitted by firms not represented at the Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will not be considered

#### **BUY AMERICA PROVISIONS (see also Appendix C)**

JOB ORDERS ISSUED UNDER THIS CONTRACT MAY BE SUBJECT TO THE "BUY AMERICA" PROVISIONS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT AND JOBS ACT OF 2021, TO BE DETERMINED ON A JOB ORDER BY JOB ORDER BASIS.

Bids are required for the entire work described herein.

#### **CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE CLASSIFICATION (see also Appendix C)**

The contractor shall possess a **Class A** license at the time this contract is awarded. This contract is subject to state contract nondiscrimination and compliance requirements pursuant to Government Code, Section 12990.

Inquiries or questions based on alleged patent ambiguity of the plans, specifications or estimate must be communicated as a bidder inquiry prior to bid opening. Any such inquiries or questions submitted after bid opening will not be treated as a bid protest.

#### **OBTAINING OR INSPECTING CONTRACT DOCUMENTS**

Bid documents can be examined at area Builder's Exchanges. Documents are available for download on the Public Purchase website (<a href="https://www.publicpurchase.com">https://www.publicpurchase.com</a>). The Contractor is responsible for printing and binding the *Bid Book*. Copies are on file and open to public inspection.

Questions should be directed to Tehama County Public Works, via email only to pwadmin@tcpw.ca.gov by 3 p.m. on Wednesday, October 1, 2025.

The successful bidder shall furnish a payment bond and a performance bond.

The County of Tehama affirms that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation.

#### FEDERAL AND CALIFORNIA PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS

This project must comply with the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and the general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial

Relations. The minimum wage rates for the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations can be found at:

#### http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/index.htm

Federal minimum wage rates are not included in these specifications but will be included in the final signed contract. They may be obtained at the Internet Web Site <a href="https://sam.gov/wage-determinations">https://sam.gov/wage-determinations</a> using the Davis-Bacon Act (DBA) Wage Determination Type. A copy is also available at the Offices of Tehama County Public Works, 9380 San Benito Avenue, Gerber, CA 96035. If there is a difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and the general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations for similar classifications of labor, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the higher wage rate. The Department will not accept lower State wage rates not specifically included in the Federal minimum wage determinations. This includes "helper" (or other classifications based on hours of experience) or any other classification not appearing in the Federal wage determinations. Where Federal wage determinations do not contain the State wage rate determination otherwise available for use by the Contractor and subcontractors, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the Federal minimum wage rate, which most closely approximates the duties of the employees in question.

#### **BID RIGGING**

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free hotline to report bid rigging activities. Use the hotline to report bid rigging, bidder collusion, and other fraudulent activities. The hotline number is (800) 424-9071. The service is available 24 hours 7 days a week and is confidential and anonymous. The hotline is part of the DOT's effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General. The Office of Inspector General maintains confidentiality on all information and, if requested, anonymity of the source.

#### **PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 22300**

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 22300, for monies earned by the Contractor and withheld by the County to ensure the performance of the Contract, the Contractor, may, at its option, choose to substitute securities meeting the requirements of said Public Contract Code Section 22300. Such securities shall be valued by the County Treasurer-Tax Collector, whose decision shall be final. Securities not listed under Public Contract Code Section 22300 or Government Code Section 16430 must be pre-qualified by the County Treasurer-Tax Collector before bid opening in order to be accepted by the County as security.

BOA	BOARD OF SUPERVISORS; COUNTY OF TEHAMA		
BY:	Tom Provine, Interim Director Department of Public Works	Date	
	rtisement #1 September 10, 2025		
Adve	tisement #2 September 17, 2025		



## STANDARD PLANS LIST

Applicable Revised Standard Plans (RSP) and New Standard Plans (NSP) may be viewed at the Caltrans website: <a href="https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/april-2025-ccs-standard-plans-and-standard-specifications">https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/april-2025-ccs-standard-plans-and-standard-specifications</a>.

Applicable standard plans will be specified on a Job Order by Job Order basis

### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS**

#### **ORGANIZATION**

The work embraced herein shall conform to the provisions in the Standard Specifications dated 2024 and the Standard Plans dated 2024 of the Department of Transportation insofar as the same may apply, and these Special Provisions.

Special provisions are under headings that correspond with the main-section headings of the *Standard Specifications*. A main-section heading is a heading shown in the table of contents of the *Standard Specifications*.

Each special provision begins with a revision clause that describes or introduces a revision to the *Standard Specifications* as revised by any revised standard specification.

Any paragraph added or deleted by a revision clause does not change the paragraph numbering of *the Standard Specifications* for any other reference to a paragraph of the *Standard Specifications*.

In case of conflict between the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, these Special Provisions shall take precedence over and shall be used in lieu of the conflicting portions.

#### DIVISION I GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1 GENERAL

#### Add or replace the following definitions in Section 1-1.07B with:

Bid Package: Bid Book including Notice to Bidders, Bid Documents, Contract, and Special Provisions.

**California Test:** Caltrans-developed test for determining work quality. For California Tests, go to the METS website.

Caltrans: The State of California, Department of Transportation.

Contract: Refers to a specific Job Order

**County:** County of Tehama, California, a legal entity organized and existing in the State of California, where reference is made to the agency administering the Contract.

**Master Agreement Documents:** Refers collectively to the Contract, Special Provisions, Plans, Notice to Bidders, Bid Documents, JOC Supplementary Conditions, Supplementary Conditions FEMA Projects, Construction Task Catalog®, Technical Specifications, and Standard Specifications.

**Day:** 24 consecutive hours running from midnight to midnight; calendar day.

- 1. business day: Day on the calendar except Saturday, Sunday or holiday.
- 2. working day: Time measure unit for work progress. A working day is any day except:
  - 2.1. Saturday, Sunday and holidays.
  - 2.2. Day when you cannot perform work on the controlling activity for at least 50 percent of the day with at least 50 percent of the normal labor and equipment due to any of the following:
    - 2.2.1. Adverse weather-related conditions that cause the Contractor to dismiss the crew.
    - 2.2.2. Maintaining traffic under the Contract.
    - 2.2.3. Engineer's direction to suspend the controlling activities for reasons unrelated to the Contractor's performance.
    - 2.2.4. Unanticipated events not caused by either party such as:
      - 2.2.4.1. Act of God.
      - 2.2.4.2. Act of a public enemy.

- 2.2.4.3. Epidemic.
- 2.2.4.4. Fire.
- 2.2.4.5. Flood.
- 2.2.4.6. Governor-declared state of emergency.
- 2.2.4.7. Landslide.
- 2.2.4.8. Quarantine restriction.
- 2.2.5. Issue involving a third party, including:
  - 2.2.5.1. Industry or area-wide labor strike.
  - 2.2.5.2. Material shortage.
  - 2.2.5.3. Freight embargo.
  - 2.2.5.4. Jurisdictional requirement of a law enforcement agency.
  - 2.2.5.5. Workforce labor dispute of a utility or nonhighway facility owner resulting in a nonhighway facility rearrangement not described and not solely for the Contractor's convenience. Rearrangement of a nonhighway facility includes installation, relocation, alteration, or removal of the facility.

**Department** or **Department of Transportation:** Department of Public Works of the County of Tehama, California.

**Director or Director of Transportation:** The Board of Supervisors of the County of Tehama, California.

**Engineer:** The Director of Public Works of the County of Tehama, California, acting either directly or through duly authorized agents or consultants.

**early completion time:** Difference in time between an early scheduled completion date and the Contract completion date.

**Highway:** Highway, roadway, street, avenue, lane, boulevard, or other public thoroughfare for vehicular traffic

iob site activities: Work done within the physical limits of the Contract.

*Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates*: Caltrans publication that lists labor surcharge and equipment rental rates.

**laboratory** or **transportation laboratory:** The established laboratory of the County of Tehama Department of Public Works or laboratories authorized by the County to test materials and work involved in the contract.

**Liquidated Damages:** The amount prescribed in the Special Provisions, pursuant to the authority of Government Code Section 53069.85 to be paid to the County of Tehama or to be deducted from any payments due or to become due the Contractor for each day of delay in completing the whole or any specified portion of the work beyond the time allowed in the Special Provisions.

**Standard Specifications:** The 2024 edition of the Standard Specifications of the State of California, Department of Transportation. Any reference therein to the State of California or a State agency, office or officer shall be interpreted to refer to the <u>County of Tehama</u> or its corresponding agency, office, or officer acting under this contract.

**State:** The County of Tehama where reference is made to the agency administering the Contract for construction of the project and execution of the work. Otherwise, the State of California, including its agencies, departments or divisions whose conduct or action is related to the work.

**State Contract Act:** All applicable provisions of the Public Contract Code (excluding Chapter 1, Division 2, Part 2, therein), Government Code, Labor Code, Civil Code, Business & Professions Code, as they apply to contracts with local public agencies, as defined in said codes. No provision of the Standard Specifications or these Special Provisions shall be construed as an election under Public Contract Code Section 20396 to have this project performed under the provisions of the State Contract

Act. Individual provisions of the State Contract Act shall apply only as specifically referenced in these specifications or Special Provisions.

State Highway Engineer: The County Engineer of the County of Tehama, State of California

Structure Design: Department of Public Works of the County of Tehama.

#### Replace the 1st sentence in Section 1-1.08 with:

The Caltrans district composition and office addresses are as shown in the following table:

#### Replace the following items in Section 1-1.11:

Reference or agency or department unit	Website	Address	Telephone no.
Department	tcpw.ca.gov	Tehama County Public Works	(530) 385-1462
		9380 San Benito Ave Gerber, CA 96035	
Division of Accounting, Office of External	tcpw.ca.gov	Tehama County Public Works	(530) 385-1462
Accounts Payable		9380 San Benito Ave Gerber, CA 96035	
METS	Caltrans web site:  mets.dot.ca.gov/metsrepresentati ves.php	5900 Folsom Blvd Sacramento, CA 95819	Peter Gan Cell: (858) 527-8195
Office Engineer	tcpw.ca.gov	Tehama County Public Works 9380 San Benito Ave Gerber, CA 96035	(530) 385-1462
Offices of Structure Design, Documents Unit	tcpw.ca.gov	Tehama County Public Works 9380 San Benito Ave Gerber, CA 96035	(530) 385-1462

#### Add the following item to Section 1-1.11:

Reference or agency or department unit	Website	Address	Telephone no.
Public Purchase	publicpurchase.com/gems/brow se/home	Tehama County Public Works 9380 San Benito Ave Gerber, CA 96035	(530) 385-1462

#### Replace the 1st sentence in Section 1-1.12 with:

Make checks and bonds payable to the Tehama County or Tehama County Public Works.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 2 BIDDING

#### **Replace Section 2-1.04 with:**

The Department will conduct a <u>mandatory</u> pre-bid meeting for this contract. The pre-bid meeting will be held on **September 24**, **2025** at **1:00 PM**, at the offices of Tehama County Public Works, 9380 San Benito Ave, Gerber, CA. The purpose of the meeting is to:

- Describe and discuss the Job Order Contracting program
- Address any bidder questions or concerns for the project, including any addenda issued or pending.

Attendance at this meeting is **mandatory**. Bids submitted by firms not represented at the Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will not be considered.

#### **Replace Section 2-1.06A with:**

The Bid Book includes bid forms and certifications.

The *Bid Book* includes the *Notice to Bidders*, revised standard specifications, JOC Supplementary Conditions, Supplementary Conditions FEMA Projects, special provisions, bid form and sample contract.

The *Bid Book*, Construction Task Catalog®, Technical Specifications, supplemental information, and any addenda to these documents may be accessed at the Public Purchase website: publicpurchase.com/gems/browse/home

The *Standard Specifications* and *Standard Plans* may be viewed at the Caltrans website: <a href="https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/april-2025-ccs-standard-plans-and-standard-specifications">https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/april-2025-ccs-standard-plans-and-standard-specifications</a> and may be purchased at the Caltrans Publication Distribution Unit.

#### **Replace Section 2-1.06B with:**

The Department makes the following supplemental project information available:

#### JOC SUPPLEMENTAL CONDITIONS AND PROCEDURE FOR ORDERING WORK

#### 1. **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1. **Adjustment Factor** A competitively bid adjustment to be applied to the Unit Prices listed in the Construction Task Catalog®.
- 1.2. **Award Criteria Figure** The sum of the extended totals as calculated in the on the Bid Form, which is used for the purposes of determining the lowest Bid.
- 1.3. **Base Term** The initial period of the Contract and does not include any Option Terms.
- 1.4. **Construction Task Catalog**<sup>®</sup> A comprehensive listing of construction related tasks together with a specific unit of measure and a published Unit Price.
- 1.5. **Detailed Scope of Work** A document setting forth the work the Contractor is obligated to complete for a particular Job Order.
- 1.6. **Initial Contract Value** the initial maximum contract value of Job Orders that the Contractor may receive under this Contract
- 1.7. **Job Order** A written order issued by the County requiring the Contractor to complete the Detailed Scope of Work within the Job Order Completion Time for the Job Order price. A project may consist of one or more Job Orders.

- 1.8. **Job Order Completion Time** The time within which the Contractor must complete the Detailed Scope of Work.
- 1.9. **Job Order Price** The value of the approved Price Proposal and the amount the Contractor will be paid for completing the Detailed Scope of Work within the Job Order Completion Time.
- 1.10. **Job Order Proposal** A set of documents including: (a) Price Proposal; (b) construction schedule; (c) list of proposed subcontractors; and (d) other requested documents.
- 1.11. **Joint Scope Meeting** A meeting at the site to discuss the work to be performed before the Detailed Scope of Work is finalized.
- 1.12. **Maximum Contract Value -** The maximum value of Job Orders that the Contractor may receive under this Contract.
- 1.13. **Minimum Contract Value** The minimum value of Job Orders that the Contractor will receive the opportunity to perform under this Contract.
- 1.14. **Non-Prepriced Task** A task that is not set forth in the Construction Task Catalog<sup>®</sup>.
- 1.15. **Normal Working Hours** Includes the hours from 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except for County holidays.
- 1.16. **Other Than Normal Working Hours** Includes the hours of 4:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. Monday through Friday and all day Saturday, Sunday, and County holidays.
- 1.17. **Option Term-** An additional period of time beyond the Contract Term which extends the termination date of the Contract.
- 1.18. **Prepriced Task** A task set forth in the Construction Task Catalog<sup>®</sup>, which includes a description of the task, a unit of measure, and a unit price.
- 1.19. **Price Proposal** A document prepared by the Contractor that includes Prepriced Tasks, quantities, appropriate Adjustment Factors, and Non-Prepriced Tasks required to complete the Detailed Scope of Work.
- 1.20. **Project** The collective improvements to be constructed by the Contractor pursuant to a Job Order or a series of related Job Orders.
- 1.21. **Request for Job Order Proposal** A written request to the Contractor to prepare a Job Order Proposal for the Detailed Scope of Work referenced therein.
- 1.22. **Supplemental Job Order** A secondary Job Order developed after the initial Job Order has been issued to change, delete, or add work to the initial Detailed Scope of Work, or to change the Job Order Completion Time.
- 1.23. **Technical Specifications** The written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.
- 1.24. **Unit Price** The unit price published in the Construction Task Catalog® for a Prepriced Task.

#### 2. CONTRACTOR SELECTION

- 2.1. The County may award an individual Project to any contractor. The County will select the contractor in accordance with the established procedures and based on one or more of the following criteria:
  - 2.1.1. Rotational selection among all contractors, unless otherwise determined by the County.
  - 2.1.2. Contractor's experience with similar type work, project size, construction management challenges, construction schedule, etc.

- 2.1.3. Contractor's performance in developing Job Orders and completing Projects.
- 2.1.4. Balancing Job Order volume among contractors.
- 2.1.5. Limitations posed by bonding capacity of the contractors.
- 2.1.6. Price, as determined by the Adjustment Factors of the contractors.
- 2.1.7. Other appropriate criteria as deemed in the best interest of the County.

#### 3. PROCEDURE FOR ORDERING WORK

#### 3.1. CONDUCT THE JOINT SCOPE MEETING

- 3.1.1. As the need exists, the County will notify the Contractor of a potential Project and schedule a Joint Scope Meeting.
- 3.1.2. The Contractor does not have the right to refuse to perform any Project, Prepriced Task, or Non-Prepriced Task.
- 3.1.3. The Contractor shall attend the Joint Scope Meeting and discuss, at a minimum, the following items:
  - 3.1.3.1. The work to be performed
  - 3.1.3.2. Presence of hazardous materials
  - 3.1.3.3. Job Order specific Insurance (if any)
  - 3.1.3.4. Required permits including drawings for permits
  - 3.1.3.5. Long lead time materials
  - 3.1.3.6. Protocol for workers entering the site
  - 3.1.3.7. Staging area and areas that are off-limits
  - 3.1.3.8. Construction schedule and work hours with critical milestones and phasing requirements
  - 3.1.3.9. Controlled inspections, testing requirements
  - 3.1.3.10. Value Engineering suggestions
  - 3.1.3.11. Organization of Price Proposal by location, by corner, etc.
  - 3.1.3.12. Due Date for Detailed Scope of Work and for Price Proposal

#### 4. PREPARE THE DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK

- 4.1. After the Joint Scope Meeting, the County will prepare a draft Detailed Scope of Work which will reference any drawings, specifications, sketches, photographs and other documents required to accurately describe the work to be performed. The Contractor shall review the Detailed Scope of Work and request any required changes or modifications. When an acceptable Detailed Scope of Work has been prepared, the County will issue a Request for Job Order Proposal that will require the Contractor to prepare a Job Order Proposal. The Detailed Scope of Work, unless modified by both the Contractor and the County, will be the basis on which the Contractor will develop its Job Order Proposal and the County will evaluate the same.
- 4.2. The County may, at its option, include quantities in the Detailed Scope of Work if it helps to define the Detailed Scope of Work, if the actual quantities required are not known or cannot be determined at the time the Detailed Scope of Work is prepared, if the Contractor and the County cannot agree on the quantities required, or for any other reason as determined by the County. In all such cases, the County shall issue a

- Supplemental Job Order adjusting the quantities appearing in the Detailed Scope of Work to the actual quantities.
- 4.3. If the Contractor requires additional information to clarify the Detailed Scope of Work before preparing the Job Order Proposal, the Contractor will make such request quickly so that the Job Order Proposal can be submitted on time.

#### 5. PREPARE THE JOB ORDER PROPOSAL

- 5.1. The Contractor will prepare a Job Order Proposal including:
  - 5.1.1. Price Proposal;
  - 5.1.2. Support documentation for Non-Prepriced Tasks;
  - 5.1.3. Construction Schedule;
  - 5.1.4. List of anticipated Subcontractors including a MBE/WBE Certifications;
  - 5.1.5. Other requested documents.
- 5.2. The Contractor will prepare Price Proposals in accordance with the following:
  - 5.2.1. **Prepriced Task:** The Contractor shall select the appropriate Prepriced Tasks, enter the accurate quantities, and select the appropriate Adjustment Factor to be used for each such Prepriced Task. The Contractor shall use the Adjustment Factors in effect on the date the Price Proposal is due, even though the Job Order may be issued after the Adjustment Factors have been updated.

#### 5.2.2. Non Pre-priced Task:

- 5.2.2.1. If the Contractor will perform the work with its own forces, it shall submit three independent quotes for all material to be installed and shall, to the extent possible, use Prepriced Tasks for labor and equipment from the Construction Task Catalog®. If the work is to be subcontracted, the Contractor shall submit three independent quotes from subcontractors. The Contractor shall not submit a quote from any subcontractor or materialman that the Contractor is not prepared to use. The County may require additional quotes if the subcontractors are not acceptable or if the prices are not reasonable. If three quotes cannot be obtained, the Contractor shall provide the County with a written explanation. If the explanation is accepted by the County, the Contractor may provide less than three quotes.
- 5.2.2.2. Information submitted in support of Non-Prepriced Tasks may include catalog cuts, technical data, drawings, or other information as required.
- 5.2.2.3. The final price submitted for Non-Prepriced Tasks shall be according to the following formula:

#### For Non-Prepriced Tasks Performed with Contractor's own forces:

A = The hourly rate for each trade classification not in the Construction Task Catalog<sup>®</sup> multiplied by the quantity;

**B** = The hourly, weekly, or monthly rate for each piece of equipment not in the Construction Task Catalog® multiplied by the quantity;

C = Lowest of three independent quotes for all materials.

Total for Non-Prepriced Tasks performed with Contractor's own forces = (A+B+C) x Applicable and Appropriate Adjustment Factor

For Non-Prepriced Tasks Performed by subcontractors:

If the Non-Prepriced Task will be subcontracted, the Contractor must submit three independent quotes for the work.

 $\mathbf{D}$  = Lowest of three subcontractor quotes

**Total for Non-Prepriced Tasks performed by subcontractors** = D x Applicable and Appropriate Adjustment Factor

- 5.2.2.4. After the cost for a Non Prepriced Task has been approved, the County may determine that such cost shall be fixed for all future Price Proposals and will not require subcontractor quotes for price determination. The County reserves the right to request the Contractor provide current quotes for any Non Prepriced Task approved previously.
- 5.2.2.5. The value of the Price Proposal shall be calculated by summing the total of the calculations for each Prepriced Tasks (Unit Price x quantity x Adjustment Factor) plus the value of all Non Pre-priced Tasks.
- 5.3. Whenever, because of trade jurisdiction rules or small quantities, the cost of a Prepriced Task is less than the actual cost of the labor and material to perform such Prepriced Task, the County may permit the Contractor to be paid for such Prepriced Task as a Non-Prepriced Task or use Prepriced Tasks for labor and the material component pricing of the Prepriced Task to cover the actual costs incurred. Provided, however, that there is no other work for that trade on the Project or the other work for that trade cannot be scheduled at the same time and the actual cost does not exceed \$1,000.
- 5.4. Material price spike adjustment: For the purpose of this clause, a "major spike" is defined as a spike in a specific material cost of more than 35% above what the cost of that material was on the date the Construction Task Catalog® was issued.

In the event a major spike occurs in a specific material cost, the Contractor may submit a request for a price modification to a Unit Price or individual Job Order. In order to initiate such a request, the Contractor shall,

- a) identify the specific material that has experienced a major spike,
- b) identify Pre-priced Task(s) or Job Orders that require the material experiencing a major spike, and
- c) demonstrate that the spike exists by submitting a minimum of three quotes on material supplier letterhead to show that the current price meets the "major spike" definition above.

The County, after review of a request, may elect to adjust the Unit Price or Job Order by considering it a NPP item. The adjustment will be for the difference between the material cost at the time the Construction Task Catalog® was issued times the quantity stated in the Job Order. The adjustment will not include any other markup, and the NPP adjustment factor will not apply.

The County, at its option, may also determine that a drastic decrease in a material cost warrants the same NPP adjustment downward in the Unit Price or a Job Order

5.5. Contractor shall make the necessary arrangements for and obtain all filings and permits required to perform the Detailed Scope of Work, including the preparation of all drawings, sketches, calculations and other documents and information that may be required therefor. If the Contractor is required to pay an application fee for filing a Project, a fee to obtain a building permit, or any other permit fee to the City, State or some other governmental or regulatory agency, then the amount of such fee paid by the Contractor for which a receipt is obtained shall be treated as a reimbursable task to be paid with mark-up.

- 5.6. To compensate the Contractor for the JOC System License on reimbursable work, the adjustment applied to reimbursable tasks shall be equal to 1.0101.
- 5.7. Incidental Engineering and Architectural Services. Incidental engineering and architectural services include project layout drawings, sketches, shop drawings, as-built drawings, professional services by an engineer or architect taking less than four hours, and safety plans. If the Contractor is required to provide drawings stamped by a professional engineer or architect, then the Contractor will be paid through the reimbursable task included in the Price Proposal.
- 5.8. The Contractor's Job Order Proposal shall be submitted by the date set forth in the Request for Job Order Proposal.
- 5.9. The amount of time allowed for the Contractor to prepare the Job Order Proposal will depend on the complexity of the Detailed Scope of Work and on the date by which the County requires the Detailed Scope of Work to be completed. Generally, the Contractor will be allowed between seven and fourteen days to prepare the Job Order Proposal. For complex Projects or Projects requiring engineering and architectural services to be completed before a Job Order Proposal can be prepared, the amount of time allowed will be increased.
- 5.10. If the Contractor requires clarifications or additional information regarding the Detailed Scope of work in order to prepare the Job Order Proposal, the request must be submitted so that the submittal of the Job Order Proposal is not delayed.
- 5.11. In emergency situations and minor maintenance and repair Job Orders requiring an immediate response, the Job Order Proposal may be required in less than seven days, or, as described below, the Contractor may be directed to begin work immediately with the paperwork to follow.
- 5.12. In the event an immediate response is necessary, the Contractor shall be required to follow alternative procedures as established by the County. The Contractor shall begin work as directed notwithstanding the absence of a fully developed Detailed Scope of Work, Request for Job Order Proposal, or Job Order. The Contractor shall be compensated for such work as if the work had been ordered under the standard procedures to develop a Job Order.
- 5.13. For purposes of Using the Construction Task Catalog®, the project site is defined as the exterior perimeter of a building. For work not performed in a building, the project site is defined as the limits of the work area.
- 5.14. The Contractor will not be permitted to add labor hours to the Job Order Price Proposal for time associated with ingress procedures and inspections of labor, materials, and or equipment.

#### 6. REVIEW THE JOB ORDER PROPOSAL

- 6.1. The County will review the Job Order Proposal.
- 6.2. All incomplete Job Order Proposals shall be rejected.
- 6.3. The County will review the Price Proposal to determine the accuracy of the Prepriced Tasks, quantities, Adjustment Factors, and Non-Prepriced Tasks.
- 6.4. The Contractor may choose the means and methods of construction. Provided, however, the County may reject any means and methods proposed by the Contractor that:
  - 6.4.1. Will constitute or create a hazard to persons or property;

- 6.4.2. Will not produce the Detailed Scope of Work in accordance with the terms of the Contract; or
- 6.4.3. Unnecessarily increases the Job Order Price when alternative means and methods are available.
- 6.5. By submitting a Job Order Proposal to the County, the Contractor is offering to complete the Detailed Scope of Work within the proposed construction schedule for the value of the Price Proposal.
- 6.6. It is the Contractor's responsibility to include the necessary Prepriced Tasks and Non-Prepriced Tasks, accurate quantities, and correct Adjustment Factors in the Price Proposal prior to delivering it to the County.

#### 7. ISSUE THE JOB ORDER

- 7.1. If the Job Order Proposal is found to be complete and accurate, the County may issue a Job Order to the Contractor.
- 7.2. The Job Order signed by the County and delivered to the Contractor constitutes the County's acceptance of the Contractor's Job Order Proposal.
- 7.3. A Job Order will reference the Detailed Scope of Work and set forth the Job Order Completion Time and the Job Order Price. The Job Order Price shall be the value of the approved Price Proposal.
- 7.4. All clauses of the Master Agreement shall apply to each Job Order.
- 7.5. The Contractor will be paid the Job Order Price for completing the Detailed Scope of Work within the Job Order Completion Time.
- 7.6. The County, without invalidating the Job Order, may order changes in the Detailed Scope of Work by adding to, changing, or deleting from the Detailed Scope of Work, by issuing a Supplemental Job Order. All Supplemental Job Orders shall be developed in accordance with these procedures for ordering work.
- 7.7. The County may decide not to issue a Job Order under development, may decide to cancel a Job Order or any portion of a Job Order, or cancel a Project or any portion of a Project, for any reason. In such case, the Contractor shall not recover any costs arising out of or related to the development of the Job Order including but not limited to attending the Joint Scope Meeting, preparing, or reviewing the Detailed Scope of Work, preparing a Job Order Proposal (including incidental architectural and engineering services), subcontractor costs, or reviewing the Job Order Proposal with the County. The County may perform such work by other means.
- 7.8. A Job Order will reference the Detailed Scope of Work and set forth the Job Order Completion Time, and the Job Order Price. A separate Job Order will be issued for each Project. Extra work, credits, and deletions will be contained in a Supplemental Job Order. The Job Order Price shall be a lump sum, fixed price for the completion of the Detailed Scope of Work,

#### 8. CHANGES IN THE WORK

- 8.1. The County, without invalidating the Job Order, may order changes in the Detailed Scope of Work by adding to, changing, or deleting from the Detailed Scope of Work, by issuing a Supplemental Job Order.
- 8.2. All Supplemental Job Orders shall be developed and priced in accordance with the Procedures for Developing All Job Orders

8.3. Price Proposals for Supplemental Job Orders shall include credits for deleted Prepriced Tasks and Non Pre-priced Tasks. Deleted tasks shall result in a credit equal to 100% of the value at which those tasks were included in the original Price Proposal.

#### 9. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

9.1. At the sole discretion of the County, liquidated damages will be assessed, if at all, on a Job Order-by-Job-Order basis. For each calendar day that the Detailed Scope of Work for a Job Order shall remain incomplete after the Job Order Completion Time, as amended pursuant to this Contract, the amount per calendar day specified in following table, Schedule of Liquidated Damages, will be deducted from any money due the Contractor, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages.

Value of Job Order	Liquidated Damages
\$0 to \$10,000	\$100/Day
\$10,001 to \$50,000	\$250/Day
Over \$50,000	\$500/Day

#### 10. KEY PERSONNEL

- 10.1. The Contractor shall assign a full-time person as its representative for this Contract. This person shall be acceptable to the County and shall have a cell phone at which he or she can be reached at all times.
- 10.2. The Contractor shall also have at all times an Office Manager and a Superintendent assigned to this Contract. Additional staff will be provided depending on the volume of work. For each Job Order issued, the Contractor shall identify the Superintendent responsible for that Job Order. The Superintendent shall be reachable 24 hours a day, seven days a week. If the named Superintendent is not available because of illness or vacation or the like, the Contractor shall notify the County of a substitute Superintendent. At all times, the Contractor shall provide at least one Superintendent for every four Job Orders. Whenever, in the sole discretion of the County, the Contractor is not providing a sufficient level of supervision, the County may direct the Contractor to increase the level of supervision for any or all projects, including but not limited to the right to direct the Contractor to assign a full time, dedicated Superintendent for any project; submit daily management, inspection, activity, and planning reports; substitute subcontractors; submit daily photographs of the work in place and the work areas prepared for the next day's work; and develop a site specific quality control program, all at no cost to the County.

#### 11. LICENSE REQUIREMENTS

11.1. The Contractor and its subcontractors must obtain and maintain as current all licenses required by state or local laws, codes, regulations or rules. The Contractor shall upon request at any time during the term of this Contract submit to the County evidence that it and its subcontractors hold the required licenses.

#### 12. AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

12.1. If the Contractor is provided, or prepares, drawings as part of the Detailed Scope of Work, then as the Detailed Scope of Work progresses the Contractor shall keep a complete and accurate record of changes to, and deviations from, such drawings. The As-

Built Drawings will be created in the same medium (paper, electronic) in which they were originally prepared.

#### 13. JOB ORDER CONTRACTING SOFTWARE AND SYSTEM LICENSE

- 13.1. The County selected The Gordian Group's (Gordian) Job Order Contracting (JOC) System for their JOC program. The Gordian JOC Solution<sup>TM</sup> includes Gordian's proprietary JOC Management Software, construction cost data, and Construction Task Catalog<sup>®</sup>, which shall be used by the Contractor solely for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this Contract, including the preparation and submission of Job Order Proposals, subcontractor lists, and other requirements specified by the County. The Contractor shall be required to execute Gordian's General Terms of Use and pay a 1% JOC System License Fee (License Fee) on all Job Orders issued to obtain access to the Gordian JOC Solution<sup>TM</sup>.
- 13.2. Within two business days of receipt of a Purchase Order or Approved Job Order from the County, the Contractor must provide notification to Gordian by forwarding a copy of the Purchase Order to Gordian.
- 13.3. Upon the Contractor's receipt of the initial payment from the County, Gordian will invoice the Contractor for the JOC System License Fee. The Contractor shall remit payment to Gordian within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice. Any amounts arising in relation to money not paid when due will be subject to a late charge of (1.5%) per month on the unpaid balance or the maximum rate allowed by law, whichever is less.
- 13.4. Contractor shall reimburse the appropriate party for the cost and expense related to such audit.

#### 14. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

Any inconsistency in Contract Documents shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:

- 14.1. Contract Modifications (later takes precedence over earlier)
- 14.2. Job Order Master Agreement
- 14.3. Addenda (later takes precedence over earlier)
- 14.4. JOC Supplemental Conditions
- 14.5. Job Orders (including Detailed Scopes of Work, Job Order Proposals, and any Supplemental Job Orders)
- 14.6. Bid Book and Special Provisions
- 14.7. General Terms and Conditions
- 14.8. Supplementary Conditions FEMA Projects
- 14.9. The Construction Task Catalog®
- 14.10. Technical Specifications

#### Add the following paragraph to the end of Section 2-1.10:

Because the Job Order Contract (JOC) is an indefinite quantity contract pursuant to which Contractors will perform a variety of Job Orders, Contractors must designate Subcontractors, in accordance with California Public Contracts Code Section 4100 to 4113, inclusive, in each Job Order Proposal and not

with this bid. As part of each Job Order Proposal, the awarded JOC Contractor shall provide a list giving the name and location of place of business of each subcontractor who will perform a portion of the Job Order work in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the Job Order Proposal. In each instance the nature and extent of the work to be subcontracted shall be described.

#### **Replace Section 2-1.12 with:**

#### 2-1.12A General (see also Appendix C)

Section 2-1.12 applies to Job Orders issued for a federal-aid contract.

Under 49 CFR 26.13(b):

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

Take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have the opportunity to participate in the Master Agreement on a Job Order by Job Order basis, where applicable. (49 CFR 26).

When Disadvantaged Business Enterprise participation is implemented, the following Sections 2-1.12B through 2-1.12B(5) may apply:

# 2-1.12B Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Goal (see also Appendix C: DBE) 2-1.12B(1) General

To ensure equal participation of DBEs provided in 49 CFR 26.5, the Agency may show a goal for DBEs on a Job Order by Job Order basis

Make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with available DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

Meet the DBE goal shown elsewhere in these special provisions or demonstrate that you made adequate good faith efforts to meet this goal.

It is your responsibility to verify that the DBE firm is certified as DBE at date of bid opening. For a list of DBEs certified by the California Unified Certification Program, go to: https://caltrans.dbesystem.com/.

Determine that selected DBEs perform a commercially useful function for the type of work the DBE will perform on the Contract as provided in 49 CFR 26.55(c)(1)–(4). Under 49 CFR 26.55(c)(1)–(4), the DBE must be responsible for the execution of a distinct element of work and must carry out its responsibility by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work.

All DBE participation will count toward the California Department of Transportation's federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal.

Credit for materials or supplies you purchase from DBEs counts towards the goal in the following manner:

- 100 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer.
- 60 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE regular dealer.

• Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the procurement and delivery of materials or supplies count if obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular dealer. 49 CFR 26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer."

You receive credit toward the goal if you employ a DBE trucking company that is performing a commercially useful function. The Department uses the following factors in determining whether a DBE trucking company is performing a commercially useful function:

- The DBE must be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire trucking operation for which it is responsible on a particular contract, and there cannot be a contrived arrangement for the purpose of meeting DBE goals.
- The DBE must itself own and operate at least one fully licensed, insured, and operational truck used on the contract.
- The DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services it provides on the Contract using trucks it owns, insures, and operates using drivers it employs.
- The DBE may lease trucks from another DBE firm, including an owner-operator who is certified as a DBE. The DBE who leases trucks from another DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services the lessee DBE provides on the Contract.
- The DBE may lease trucks without drivers from a non-DBE truck leasing company. If the DBE leases trucks from a non-DBE truck leasing company and uses its own employees as drivers, it is entitled to credit for the total value of these hauling services.
- A lease must indicate that the DBE has exclusive use of and control over the truck. This does not preclude the leased truck from working for others during the term of the lease with the consent of the DBE, so long as the lease gives the DBE absolute priority for use of the leased truck. Leased trucks must display the name and identification number of the DBE.

[49 Fed Reg 59595 (10/2/14) (to be codified at 49 CFR 26.55(d)]

#### 2-1.12B(2) DBE Commitment Submittal (see also Appendix C: DBE)

Submit the Exhibit 15-G Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment (Construction Contracts) form, included in the contract portion of the Bid Book. If Exhibit 15-G is not submitted at the time of bid, make a copy of the form before submitting your bid. Forms shall not be removed.

If the DBE Commitment form is not submitted with the bid, the apparent low bidder, the 2nd low bidder, and the 3rd low bidder must complete and submit the DBE Commitment form to the Agency. DBE Commitment form must be received by the Agency no later than 4:00 p.m. on the **5th** day after bid opening.

Other bidders do not need to submit the DBE Commitment form unless the Agency requests it. If the Agency requests you to submit a DBE Commitment form, submit the completed form within  $\underline{5}$  business days of the request.

Submit written confirmation from each DBE stating that it is participating in the contract. Include confirmation with the DBE Commitment form. A copy of a DBE's quote will serve as written confirmation that the DBE is participating in the contract. If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the Agency encourages you to submit a copy of the joint venture agreement.

The successful bidder's Exhibit 15-G form should include the names, addresses and phone numbers of DBE firms that will participate, with a complete description of work or supplies to be provided by each, and the dollar value of each DBE transaction. When 100 percent of a contract item of work is not to be performed or furnished by a DBE, a description of the exact portion of that work to be performed or furnished by that DBE should be included in the DBE information, including the planned location of that work. A successful bidder certified as a DBE should describe the work it has committed to

performing with its own forces as well as any other work that it has committed to be performed by DBE subcontractors, suppliers and trucking companies.

If you do not submit the DBE Commitment form within the specified time, the Agency will find your bid nonresponsive.

#### 2-1.12B(3) DBE Good Faith Efforts Submittal

You can meet the DBE requirements by either documenting commitments to DBEs to meet the Contract goal or by documenting adequate good faith efforts to meet the Contract goal. An adequate good faith effort means that the bidder must show that it took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve a DBE goal that, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, could reasonably be expected to meet the DBE goal.

If you have not met the DBE goal, complete and submit the DBE Information - Good Faith Efforts, Exhibit 15-H, form with the bid showing that you made adequate good faith efforts to meet the goal. Only good faith efforts directed towards obtaining participation by DBEs will be considered. If good faith efforts documentation is not submitted at the time of bid, make a copy of the form before submitting your bid. Forms shall not be removed from the *Bid Book*. DBE Good Faith Efforts forms must be received by the Agency no later than 4:00 p.m. on the **5th business** day after bid opening.

If your DBE Commitment form shows that you have met the DBE goal or if you are required to submit the DBE Commitment form, you must also submit good faith efforts documentation within the specified time to protect your eligibility for award of the contract in the event the Agency finds that the DBE goal has not been met.

Good faith efforts documentation must include the following information and supporting documents, as necessary:

- Items of work you have made available to DBE firms. Identify those items of work
  you might otherwise perform with your own forces and those items that have been
  broken down into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. For
  each item listed, show the dollar value and percentage of the total contract. It is your
  responsibility to demonstrate that sufficient work to meet the goal was made
  available to DBE firms.
- 2. Names of certified DBEs and dates on which they were solicited to bid on the project. Include the items of work offered. Describe the methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty if the DBEs were interested, and the dates of the follow-up. Attach supporting documents such as copies of letters, memos, facsimiles sent, telephone logs, telephone billing statements, and other evidence of solicitation. You are reminded to solicit certified DBEs through all reasonable and available means and provide sufficient time to allow DBEs to respond.
- 3. Name of selected firm and its status as a DBE for each item of work made available. Include name, address, and telephone number of each DBE that provided a quote and their price quote. If the firm selected for the item is not a DBE, provide the reasons for the selection.
- 4. Name and date of each publication in which you requested DBE participation for the project. Attach copies of the published advertisements.
- 5. Names of agencies and dates on which they were contacted to provide assistance in contacting, recruiting, and using DBE firms. If the agencies were contacted in writing, provide copies of supporting documents.
- 6. List of efforts made to provide interested DBEs with adequate information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract to assist them in responding to

- a solicitation. If you have provided information, identify the name of the DBE assisted, the nature of the information provided, and date of contact. Provide copies of supporting documents, as appropriate.
- 7. List of efforts made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit, insurance, necessary equipment, supplies, and materials, excluding supplies and equipment that the DBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the prime contractor or its affiliate. If such assistance is provided by you, identify the name of the DBE assisted, nature of the assistance offered, and date assistance was provided. Provide copies of supporting documents, as appropriate.
- 8. Any additional data to support demonstration of good faith efforts.

The Agency may consider DBE commitments of the 2nd and 3rd bidders when determining whether the low bidder made good faith efforts to meet the DBE goal.

#### 2-1.12B(4) DBE / Non-DBE Listing of Subcontractors

Pursuant to Title 49, Section 26.11 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as determined by the County Project Manager, the Contractor must provide information on the list of subcontractors (regardless of amount of work performed) as required on a Job Order by Job Order basis. If Exhibit 12-B, included in the bid section of the Bid Book, is not submitted at the time of bid, make a copy of the form before submitting your bid.

#### Replace Section 2-1.33A with the following:

Complete the forms in the Bid Book.

Failure to submit the forms and information as specified may result in a nonresponsive bid.

If an agent other than the authorized corporate officer or a partnership member signs the bid, file a Power of Attorney with the Department either before opening bids or with the bid. Otherwise, the bid may be nonresponsive.

Bids must be submitted on forms included in the *Bid Book*. Bid documents can be examined at area Builder's Exchanges. Documents are available for download free of charge on CIP List (www.CIPLIST.com). Hard copies of bid documents will not be available for purchase.

In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Non collusion Affidavit is included in the *Bid Book*. Signing the *Bid Book* shall also constitute signature of the Non collusion Affidavit.

The Bid Documents must be bound in a book together with the Notice to Bidders, Special Provisions, and contract. The Construction Task Catalog®, Technical Specifications, and any project plans are a separate attachment. Neither the Bid form nor any other portion of said book shall be detached therefrom. This includes all DBE related bid forms. An entire bound Bid Book shall be submitted at the time of bid opening. Neither the Bid form(s) nor any other portion of said book shall be detached therefrom.

# Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a Federal-Aid Contract with a DBE Goal (on a Job Order by Job Order basis)

Form	Submittal deadline

Bid to the Department of Public Works	Time of bid except for the public works contractor registration number
Copy of the Bid as submitted at the time of bid with the public works contractor registration number	10 days after bid opening
Subcontractors List (Exhibit 12-B)	To be submitted on a Job Order by Job Order basis
DBE Commitment (Exhibit 15-G)	No later than 4 p.m. on the 5 <sup>th</sup> day after bid opening <sup>a</sup>
DBE Good Faith Efforts Documentation (Exhibit 15-H)	No later than 4 p.m. on the 5 <sup>th</sup> day after bid opening <sup>a</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>a</sup> If the last day for submitting the bid form falls on a Saturday or a holiday, it may be submitted on the next business day with the same effect as if it had been submitted on the day specified.

# Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a Federal-Aid Contract without a DBE Goal

Form	Submittal deadline
Bid to the Department of Public Works	Time of bid except for the public works contractor registration number
Copy of the Bid as submitted at the time of bid with the public works contractor registration number	10 days after bid opening
Subcontractors List (Exhibit 12-B)	To be submitted in each Job Order Proposal and not with this bid.

#### **Replace Section 2-1.34 with:**

Submit one of the following forms of bidder's security equal to at least \$25,000:

- 1. Cash
- 2. Cashier's check
- 3. Certified check
- 4. Signed bidder's bond by an admitted surety insurer

Submit cash, cashier's check, certified check, or bidder's bond with your bid proposal.

If using a bidder's bond, you may use the form in the *Bid Book*. If you do not use the form in the *Bid Book*, use a form containing the same information.

In addition to the bidder's security, bidders must submit a bonding letter from your bonding company that states ALL of the following: 1) Your Bonding Capacity (aggregate dollar amount), 2) The current amount of bonding outstanding, and 3) how long the bonding company has been providing bonds.

### Delete the 2nd paragraph in Section 2-1.40

### Replace the last sentence in Section 2-1.47 with:

The Relief of Bid Request form is available at the Caltrans website.

### END OF SECTION

#### 3 CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION

#### **Replace Section 3-1.04 with:**

If the Department awards the contract, the award is made to the lowest responsible bidder within 60 days after bid opening. This project is bid as a unit price contract. The contract, if awarded, will be awarded to the responsive and responsible bidder with the lowest **AWARD CRITERIA FIGURE** as described in the Notice to Bidders.

The Department may extend the specified award period if the bidder agrees.

You may request to extend the award period by faxing a request to the Department at (530) 385-1293 before 4:00 p.m. on the last day of the award period. If you do not make this request, after the specified award period:

- 1. Your bid becomes invalid
- 2. You are not eligible for the award of the contract

#### 3-1.04A BID PROTEST

#### 3-1.04A(1) General

Submit any bid protest to the Engineer. Bid protests are to be delivered to the following address:

#### DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 9380 SAN BENITO AVE., GERBER, CA 96035 FAX NO. 530,385,1293

#### 3-1.04A(2) Bid Protest Procedure

- a. The initial bid protest must be submitted in writing to the above address no later than 5:00 PM (PST) of the 5th business day following bid opening.
  - i. The initial protest shall refer to both the Contract number and the specific portion of the document which forms the basis for the protest.
  - ii. The initial protest shall include the name, address, telephone number and signature of the person representing the protesting party.
  - iii. The party filing the initial protest shall concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest document and any attached documentation to all other parties with a direct financial interest which may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest. Such parties shall include all other Bidders or proposers who appear to have a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.
- b. The protesting bidder shall submit to the Department a full and complete written statement specifying the grounds for the protest no later than 5:00 PM of the 5th business day following the submittal of the initial protest.
- c. The Department will issue a proposed decision on the protest. The final decision on any protest shall be made by the Tehama County Board of Supervisors prior to the award of the Contract. If the Board determines that a protest is frivolous, the party originating the protest may be determined to be irresponsible and that party may be determined to be ineligible for future contract awards.
- d. The procedure and time limits set forth in this paragraph are mandatory and are the Bidder's sole and exclusive remedy in the event of Bid protest and failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a failure to exhaust administrative remedies and a waiver of any

right to further pursue the bid protest or otherwise challenge the bid award, including filing a Government Code Claim or legal proceedings.

#### **Replace Section 3-1.05 with:**

The successful bidder shall furnish two bonds for the contract. As required under Section 9550 of the Civil Code, the successful bidder shall furnish a (1) Payment Bond; provided that the bond shall be in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the initial contract value to guarantee the payment of claims of laborers, mechanics, or material men employed to work under the contract.

In addition, the bidder shall furnish a (2) Performance Bond in the amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the Initial Contract Value to guarantee the faithful performance of the contract.

If, at any time, the total value of outstanding Job Orders exceeds the penal sum of the Performance and Payment Bonds then in effect, the County may, at its discretion, require the Contractor to submit a new Performance and Payment Bond each in the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000) or the penal sum equal to such total value of outstanding Job Orders, whichever is greater.

All alterations, extensions of time, extra and additional work, and other changes authorized by these specifications or any part of the contract may be made without securing the consent of the surety or sureties on the contract bonds.

Bond forms are provided with the Contract Documents.

#### Delete the Section 3-1.08

#### **Replace Section 3-1.18 with:**

The successful bidder must sign the *Master Agreement* form included in the *Bid Book*.

After Award by the County, the Engineer will issue a "Notice of Award", which includes applicable contract documents. Upon Receipt of the Notice of Award, deliver to the Engineer:

- 1. Signed Master Agreement form, including the attached form FHWA-1273
- 2. Contract Bonds
- 3. Documents identified in Section 3-1.07 of the Standard Specifications, "Insurance Policies"

These contract documents must be received by the Engineer before the 10<sup>th</sup> business day after the bidder receives the contract.

Executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address:

# TEHAMA COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS ATTENTION: JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025 9380 SAN BENITO AVE. GERBER, CA 96035

The bidder's security may be forfeited for failure to execute the contract within the time specified.

The Engineer will furnish to the Contractor, upon request and free of charge, three copies of Contract Documents. Additional copies of Contract Documents or Plans may be obtained upon request by paying appropriate costs for reproduction.

#### **Replace Section 3-1.19 with:**

In the event of failure of the lowest responsible bidder to execute the contract documents or other required actions, the second lowest responsible bidder, or the third lowest responsible bidder to execute

the contract as required in Section 3-1.18 "Contract Execution" within 10 business days of receiving the contract for execution shall be just cause for the forfeiture of the Bid guaranty. The successful bidder may file with the Department a written notice, signed by the bidder or the bidder's authorized representative, specifying that the bidder will refuse to execute the contract if it is presented. The filing of this notice shall have the same force and effect as the failure of the bidder to execute the contract and furnish acceptable bonds within the time specified.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 4 SCOPE OF WORK

#### **Replace Section 4-1.05A with:**

The Department may make changes within the Detailed Scope of Work and add extra work, subject to the limitations of Section 20395, subdivision (d)(2) of the Public Contract Code. The Engineer describes the changes and extra work, the payment basis, and any time adjustment in a Supplemental Job Order. All Supplemental Job Orders shall be developed and priced in accordance with the Procedures for Developing All Job Orders

A Supplemental Job Order is approved when the Department signs the Supplemental Job Order.

Until the Department approves a Supplemental Job Order, continue to perform the work under the Contract. If ordered in writing by the Engineer, you shall proceed with the work so ordered prior to actual receipt of an approved Supplemental Job Order therefore. In those cases, the Engineer will, as soon as practicable, issue an approved Supplemental Job Order for the ordered work.

Refer to Section 5-1.27E, "Change Order Bills".

#### **Replace Section 4-1.06A with:**

During the progress of the work, if subsurface or latent physical conditions are encountered at the site differing materially from those indicated in the contract or if unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work provided for in the contract, are encountered at the site, the party discovering such conditions shall promptly notify the other party in writing of the specific differing conditions before the site is disturbed and before the affected work is performed.

Upon written notification, the engineer will investigate the conditions, and if it is determined that the conditions materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required for the performance of any work under the contract, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profits, will be made and the contract modified in writing accordingly. The Engineer will notify the contractor of the determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.

No contract adjustment which results in a benefit to the contractor will be allowed unless the contractor has provided the required written notice.

No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause for any effects caused on unchanged work.

#### 4-1.06A(1) Subsurface Conditions

In the event the work hereunder requires digging trenches or excavation deeper than four (4) feet, the Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the Department by written notice of:

- 1. Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law.
- 2. Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from those indicated.
- 3. Unknown physical conditions at the site of an unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this contract.

Upon such notification, the Department shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for performance of any part of the work, shall issue a Supplemental Job Order under the procedures described in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions.

In the event that a dispute arises between the Department and the Contractor whether the conditions do materially so differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by this contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under this Contract. Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law, which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties.

#### 4-1.06A(2) Significant Changes in the Character of Work

In regards to significant changes in the character of work, the following shall apply:

- 1. The engineer reserves the right to make, in writing, at any time during the work, such changes in quantities and such alterations in the work as are necessary to satisfactorily complete the project. Such changes in quantities and alterations shall not invalidate the contract or Job Order nor release the surety, and the contractor agrees to perform the work as altered.
- 2. If the alterations or changes in quantities significantly change the character of the work under the Job Order, whether such alterations or changes are in themselves significant changes to the character of the work or by affecting other work cause such other work to become significantly different in character, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profit, will be made to the Job Order. The basis for the adjustment shall be agreed upon prior to the performance of the work. If a basis cannot be agreed upon, then an adjustment will be made either for or against the contractor in such amount as the engineer may determine to be fair and equitable.
- 3. If the alterations or changes in quantities do not significantly change the character of the work to be performed under the contract, the altered work will be paid for as provided elsewhere in the contract.
- 4. The term "significant change" shall be construed to apply only to the following circumstances:
  - When the character of the work as altered differs materially in kind or nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or
  - When a major item of work, as defined elsewhere in the contract, is increased in excess of 125 percent or decreased below 75 percent of the original contract quantity. Any allowance for an increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125 percent of original contract item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75 percent, to the actual amount of work performed.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 5 CONTROL OF WORK

Replace the last paragraph of Section 5-1.01 with:

Use contract administration forms available at the Caltrans website.

# **Delete Section 5-1.09**

# Replace the 2nd paragraph of Section 5-1.13A with:

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form. The Subcontracting Request form (Exhibit 16-B/CEM-1201) shall be submitted in accordance with Section 3-1.18 of these Special Provisions.

CONTRACTOR NAME				COUNIT		ROOF	
CONTRACTOR INSING							
BUSINESS ADDRESS						CONTRACT NUMBER	
CITY AND STATE				ZIP CODE		FEDERAL-AID PROJECT NUMBER (from special provisions)	from special provision
SUBCONTRACTORS (Name, Business Address, Phone)	CA STATE CONTRACTOR LICENSE NUMBER	PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION NUMBER	BID ITEM NUMBER(S) (1 per line)	PERCENTAGE OF BID ITEM SUBCONTRACTED	CHECK IF (See Categories Below) 1 2	DESCRIBE WORK WHEN LESS THAN 100% OF WORK IS SUBCONTRACTED	DOLLAR AMOUNT BASED ON BID AMOUNT
Categories: 1. Listed Under	Listed Under Fair Practices Act	2.					
I certify that:  The specifications for labor set forth in the contract apply to the subcontracted work.  If applicable (federal-aid projects only), Form FHWA-1273 has been inserted in the subcontracts and will be incorporated in any  Written contracts have been executed for the subcontracted work noted above.	forth in the contract is only), Form FHW, ecuted for the subco		ed Disadvanta	Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/Disabled Veter	rprise/Disabled	Veteran Business Enterprise	
CONTRACTOR'S SIGNATURE		apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work notec	ed Disadvanta ed Disadvanta itracted work. serted in the su d above.	aged Business Ente	rprise/Disabled	Veteran Business Enterprise	
		apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work notec	ed Disadvanta tracted work. serted in the sid above.	aged Business Ente	rprise/Disabled	Veteran Business Enterprise n any lower-tier subcontract.	П
This section is to be completed by the This section is to be completed by the This section is to be completed by the section is the sectio	the resident enginee	apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work noted ar.	ed Disadvanta  Itracted work. serted in the st d above.	aged Business Ente	rprise/Disabled	an Business Enterprise lower-tier subcontract.	п
This section is to be completed by t 1. Total of bid items 2. Bid items previously subcontract 3. Bid items subcontracted (this req 4. Total of lines 2 and 3.	the resident enginee ed ruest)	apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work noted er.	ed Disadvanta  itracted work. serted in the si d above.	aged Business Ente	rprise/Disabled incorporated in	an Business Enterprise lower-tier subcontract.	mi
This section is to be completed by the resident engineer.  1. Total of bid items  2. Bid items previously subcontracted  3. Bid items subcontracted (this request)  4. Total of lines 2 and 3  5. Maximum amount of work allowed to be subcontracted (multiply line 1 by  6. Minimum amount prime contractor must perform with own forces (multiply	the resident engined ed ruest) ad to be subcontract	apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work noted er.	ed Disadvanta tracted work. serted in the si d above.	aged Business Ente	rprise/Disabled incorporated in	an Business Enterprise lower-tier subcontract.	mi l
This section is to be completed by the resident engineer.  1. Total of bid items  2. Bid items previously subcontracted  3. Bid items subcontracted (this request)  4. Total of lines 2 and 3  5. Maximum amount of work allowed to be subcontracted (multiply line 1 by %)  6. Minimum amount prime contractor must perform with own forces (multiply line 1 by	the resident engines ed quest) ad to be subcontract or must perform with	apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work noted er.  er.  led (multiply line 1 by h own forces (multip	ed Disadvanta tracted work. serted in the si d above.  y %) ly line 1 by	aged Business Enter bubcontracts and will be appeared by the second and	rprise/Disabled	an Business Enterprise lower-tier subcontract.	m l
This section is to be completed by the roll. Total of bid items  1. Total of bid items  2. Bid items previously subcontracted  3. Bid items subcontracted (this request  4. Total of lines 2 and 3  5. Maximum amount of work allowed to  6. Minimum amount prime contractor m  RESIDENT ENGINEER'S SIGNATURE	the resident enginee ed quest) ad to be subcontract or must perform wit	apply to the subcon A-1273 has been ins ontracted work noted er.  ed (multiply line 1 by h own forces (multip	ed Disadvanta tracted work. serted in the si d above. d by %) bly line 1 by	aged Business Enter ubcontracts and will b	rprise/Disabled in the incorporated in the inc	an Business Enterprise lower-tier subcontract.	

### STATE OF CALIFORNIA • DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

#### DLA SUBCONTRACTING REQUEST

LAPM 16-B (NEW 12/2021)

#### INSTRUCTIONS

All first-tier subcontractors must be included on a subcontracting request.

Before subcontracting work starts, the contractor will submit an original Form LAPM 16-B according to the Standard Specifications.

- Ensure all subcontractors are:
  - 1. Listed on the subcontractor list at the time of bid, per the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practice Act; OR
  - 2. All 1st tier subcontractors regardless of dollar value.

When an entire item is subcontracted, show the contractor's bid price.

When a portion of an item is subcontracted, describe the portion and show the percentage of the bid item and value.

- Compare line 5 to line 4. If line 5 is greater than line 4 the request can be approved.
- After approval, the resident engineer returns the original to the contractor and completes the remaining distribution as listed on the bottom of the form.
- · Labor Compliance Officer to review subcontractor licensing and registration.
- Labor Compliance Officer completes PWC-100 form on California Department of Industrial Relations site for subcontractors that were not required to be listed at time of bid on the Subcontractor List form.

THIS FORM IS NOT TO BE USED FOR SUBSTITUTIONS OF LISTED SUBCONTRACTORS OR DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE.

For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For alternate format information, contact the Forms Management Unit at (916) 445-1233, TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

# Replace Section 5-1.13B(1) with:

Use each DBE subcontractor as listed on Exhibit 12-B *Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and NON-DBE)* and Exhibit 15-G *Construction Contract DBE Commitment* (included in the bid section of the *Bid Book*) unless you receive authorization for a substitution.

The Agency requests the Contractor to:

- 1. Notify the Engineer in writing of any changes to its anticipated DBE participation
- 2. Provide this notification before starting the affected work
- 3. Maintain records including:
  - Name and business address of each 1st-tier subcontractor
  - Name and business address of each DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier
  - Date of payment and total amount paid to each business (see Exhibit 9-F:
     *Monthly Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Payment*) (see also Appendix C: DBE)

If you are a DBE contractor, include the date of work performed by your own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th of each month submit a *Monthly DBE Trucking Verification* form (Exhibit 16-Z1). The Monthly DBE Trucking Verification form (Exhibit 16-Z1) may be found online at <a href="https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/forms/local-assistance-procedures-manual-forms">https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/forms/local-assistance-procedures-manual-forms</a>.

If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must notify you in writing of the decertification date. If a business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the business must notify you in writing of the certification date. Submit the notifications. On work completion, complete a Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change form (Exhibit 17-O). Submit the form within 30 days of contract acceptance.

Upon work completion, complete Exhibit 17-F Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), and First-Tier Subcontractors form. Submit it within 90 days of contract acceptance. The Agency will withhold \$10,000 until the form is submitted. The Agency releases the withhold upon submission of the completed form.

# Replace the 2nd paragraph of Section 5-1.13B(2) with:

DBEs must perform work or supply materials as listed in the Exhibit 15-G *Construction Contract DBE Commitment* form, included in the bid section of the *Bid Book*.

## Replace the 7th paragraph of Section 5-1.13B(2) with:

Unless the Agency authorizes (1) a request to use other forces or sources of materials or (2) a good faith effort for a substitution of a terminated DBE, the Agency does not pay for work listed on the Exhibit 15-G *Local Agency Bidder DBE Commitment (Construction Contracts)* form unless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE or an authorized substitute. You may be subject to other sanctions under 49 CFR26.

# EXHIBIT 17-O DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

1. Local Age	ncy Contract Number	2. Federal-Ald Proj	ect Number	3. Local Agency			Contract Completion Date
5. Contractor	r/Consultant	6.	Business Address	'		7. Final Co	ntract Amount
8. Contract Item Number	9. DBE Contact Info	rmation	10. DBE Certification Number	11. Amount Paid While Certified	12. Certification/ Decertification Date (Letter Attached)	13	3. Comments
·							
				·			

If there were no changes in the DBE certification of subcontractors/subconsultants, indicate on the form.

I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT				
14. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature	15. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name	16. Phone	17. Date	
I CERTIFY THAT THE CONTRACTING RECORDS AND ON-SITE PERFORMANCE OF THE DBE(8) HAS BEEN MONITORED				
18. Local Agency Representative's Signature	19. Local Agency Representative's Name	20. Phone	21. Date	

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Local Agency, Copy - Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

ADA NOTICE: For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document is available in alternate formats. For information, call (916) 445-1233, Local Assistance Procedures Manual TTY 711, or write to Records and Forms Management, 1120 N Street, MS-89, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Page 1 of 2 July 23, 2015

# INSTRUCTIONS –DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) CERTIFICATION STATUS CHANGE

- Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- 2. Federal-Aid Project Number Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- 3. Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- 4. Contract Completion Date Enter the date the contract was completed.
- Contractor/Consultant Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- Business Address Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- 7. Final Contract Amount Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not
  applicable for consultant contracts.
- 9. DBE Contact Information Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted contractors/consultants
- DBE Certification Number Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number.
- 11. Amount Paid While Certified Enter the actual dollar value of the work performed by those subcontractors/subconsultants during the time period they are certified as a DBE.
- 12. Certification/Decertification Date (Letter Attached) Enter either the date of the Decertification Letter sent out by the Office of Business and Economic Opportunity (OBEO) or the date of the Certification Certificate mailed out by OBEO.
- 13. Comments If needed, provide any additional information in this section regarding any of the above certification status changes.
- 14. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- 15. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form.
- 16. Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- 17. Date Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- 18. Local Agency Representative's Signature A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify
- that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.
- 19. Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form
- 20. Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- 21. Date Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.

## Exhibit 17-F: Final Report-Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) and First-Tier Subcontractors

1. Local Age	ncy Contract Number	2. Federal-A	Nd Project Number	3. Local Agency			4. Contract Acc	ceptance Date
5. Contractor	or/Consultant 6. Business Address 7. Final Contract Amou		act Amount					
8. Contract	C December of West Cond.		40. Company Name and	11. DBE	12. Contract	Payments	13. Date	14. Date of
Item	<ol> <li>Description of Work, Service Materials Supplied</li> </ol>	æ, or	10. Company Name and Business Address	Cerulication	New DDE	DBE	Work	_ Final _
Number	maichae cappilea		Dadii Coo / Idai Coo	Number	Non-DBE	DBE	Completed	Payment
15. ORIGINA	AL DBE COMMITMENT AMOUNT	\$		16. TOTAL				
List all first-tier subcontractors/subconsultants and DBEs regardless of tier whether or not the firms were originally listed for goal credit. If actual DBE utilization (or item of work) was different than that approved at the time of award, provide comments on an additional page. List actual amount paid to each entity, if no subcontractors/subconsultants were used on the contract, indicate on the form.								
I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT								
17. Contracto	or/Consultant Representative's Sign	ature 1	<ol> <li>Contractor/Consultant Representa</li> </ol>	tive's Name	19. Phone		20. Date	
I CERTIFY THAT THE CONTRACTING RECORDS AND ON-SITE PERFORMANCE OF THE DBE(S) HAVE BEEN MONITORED								
21. Local Ag	ency Representative's Signature	2	22. Local Agency Representative's Na	ame	23. Phone		24. Date	

DISTRIBUTION: Original - Local Agency, Copy - Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer. Include with Final Report of Expenditures

#### INSTRUCTIONS - FINAL REPORT-UTILIZATION OF DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE) AND FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

- 1. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- 2. Federal-Aid Project Number Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number.
- Local Agency Enter the name of the local or regional agency that is funding the contract.
- Contract Acceptance Date Enter the date the contract was accepted by the Local Agency.
- Contractor/Consultant Enter the contractor/consultant's firm name.
- 6. Business Address Enter the contractor/consultant's business address.
- Final Contract Amount Enter the total final amount for the contract.
- 8. Contract Item Number Enter contract item for work, services, or materials supplied provided. Not applicable for consultant contracts.
- Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied Enter description of work, services, or materials provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime contractor/consultant's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
- 10. Company Name and Business Address Enter the name, address, and phone number of all subcontracted contractors/consultants. Also, enter the prime contractor/consultant's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- DBE Certification Number Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. Leave blank if subcontractor is not a DBE.
- 12. Contract Payments Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work performed or service provided. Include the prime contractor/consultant if the prime is a DBE. If the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer, count 100% of the cost of the materials or supplies toward DBE goals. If the materials or supplies are purchased from a DBE regular dealer/supplier, count 60% of the cost of the materials or supplies toward DBE goals. The Non-DBE column is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms that are not certified DBE or for work after a DBE becomes decertified.
- 13. Date Work Completed Enter the date the subcontractor/subconsultant's item work was completed.
- 14. Date of Final Payment Enter the date when the prime contractor/consultant made the final payment to the subcontractor/subconsultant for the portion of work listed as being completed.
- 15. Original DBE Commitment Amount Enter the "Total Claimed DBE Participation Dollars" from Exhibits 15-G or 10-O2 for the contract.
- Total Enter the sum of the "Contract Payments" Non-DBE and DBE columns.
- 17. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Signature The person completing the form on behalf of the contractor/consultant's firm must sign their name.
- 18. Contractor/Consultant Representative's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the form
- Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- Date Enter the date the form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- 21. Local Agency Representative's Signature A Local Agency Representative must sign their name to certify that the contracting records and on-site performance of the DBE(s) has been monitored.
- 22. Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative signing the form.
- Phone Enter the area code and telephone number of the person signing the form.
- 24. Date Enter the date the form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.

Page 2 of 2 January 2023

### **Delete Section 5-1.13C**

#### **Delete Section 5-1.13D**

## Replace the first paragraph of Section 5-1.20B(3) with:

Confirm with the Engineer which after-award PLACs are obtained by the Department and which are obtained by the Contractor. Unless otherwise specified by the Engineer in writing, all after-award PLACs are to be obtained by the Contractor.

## Add to Section 5-1.20C:

Contractor is required to provide the following submittals to UPRR for review and coordination:

- 1. A Work Plan/Schedule for staging/operating equipment with potential to foul tracks,
- 2. A Work Plan for grading and placement of rip-rap on the UPRR right-of-way as proposed,
- 3. A Site Specific Track//Bridge Monitoring Plan to be implemented during pile driving and other activities that have the potential to shift track, initiate settlement or adversely affect railroad structures (compliant with monitoring requirements).
- 4. Refer to "Joint BNSF Railway and UPRR Guidelines for Railroad Grade Separation Projects" for additional submittals.

# **Replace Section 5-1.24 with:**

## 5-1.24 CONSTRUCTION STAKING

## 5-1.24A General

The Contractor places stakes and marks under Chapter 12, "Construction Surveys," of the Caltrans *Survey Manual*.

The Contractor must perform construction staking as necessary to control the work, including but not limited to the UPRR Track and Bridge Monitoring Plan and the survey monitoring that goes with the plan. Furnish and set construction stakes and marks with accuracy adequate to assure that the completed work conforms to the lines, grades, and section. Vertical alignment and the coordinates of centerlines and layout lines will be furnished to you at the pre-construction conference for use in performing the construction staking.

Preserve stakes and marks. If the stakes or marks are destroyed, the Contractor replaces them at no additional cost.

## **5-1.24A(1)** Submittals

You must submit all computations necessary to establish the exact position of the work from control points. All computations, survey notes, and other records necessary to accomplish the work must be neat, legible, and accurate. Copies of such computation, notes and other records must be furnished to the Engineer prior to beginning work that requires their use.

Upon completion of construction staking and prior to acceptance of the contract, all computations, survey notes, and other data used to accomplish the work must be submitted to the Engineer and will become the property of the County.

## 5-1.24B Contractor Construction Surveys for Automated Machine Guidance

The Contractor shall set control points to a minimum of 0.07 foot local horizontal accuracy and third order vertical accuracy standards.

For slope stakes and rough grade stakes, the Contractor shall set 6 survey control points or 2 control points per mile, whichever is greater.

et slope stakes and rough grade stakes at:

- 1. Conform stations
- 2. Beginning and end of each alignment
- 3. Midpoint or every 200 feet, whichever is greater, on a curve
- 4. Every 500 feet on tangents

For final grade stakes, sets survey control points under Chapter 12, "Construction Surveys," Section 12.1-6, "Automated Machine Guidance (AMG)," and figure 12-2 of the Caltrans *Survey Manual*. Set final grade stakes at:

- 1. Conform stations
- 2. Beginning and end of each alignment
- 3. Midpoint or every 100 feet, whichever is greater, on a curve with a radius of 1,200 feet or less
- 4. Midpoint or every 200 feet, whichever is greater, on a curve with a radius of more than 1,200 feet
- 5. Every 200 feet on a tangent

Under Chapter 12, "Construction Surveys," of the Caltrans *Survey Manual*, provide (1) staking for intersections, clearing, fencing, drainage, curbs, structures, abutment fill, wall, and miscellaneous areas and (2) additional survey control or staking for earthwork in areas where global navigation satellite system (GNSS) coverage is inadequate for automated machine guidance.

#### 5-1.24C CONSTRUCTION

Construction stakes and marks (including paint marks) must be removed from the site of work when no longer needed.

#### 5-1.24D PAYMENT

The County pays you for construction staking as follows:

- 1. A total of 90 percent of the item total over the life of the contract.
- 2. A total of 100 percent of the item total upon submission of final computations, notes and other data.

The contract lump sum price paid for construction staking shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals and for doing all the work involved in performing construction staking, as shown on the plans, as specified in the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer.

## **Replace Section 5-1.25 with:**

#### 5-1.25 AUTOMATED MACHINE GUIDANCE

## 5-1.25A General

You may use automated machine guidance (AMG) if the AMG meets or exceeds the staking tolerances described in Section 12.5, "Typical Caltrans-Furnished Construction Stakes," of the Caltrans *Survey Manual*.

You are responsible for determining whether the work and site conditions are practical for AMG use.

Furnish a GNSS rover compatible with your GNSS base station or the GNSS correction service you subscribe to.

At the preconstruction conference, be prepared to discuss survey control points, site and equipment calibration, inspection methods, conflict resolution, and staking.

#### 5-1.25B Definitions

- **automated machine guidance (AMG):** Technology that uses positioning devices, singly or in combination, such as global navigation satellite systems (GNSS), total stations, or rotating laser levels, to determine and control the real-time position of construction equipment using onboard computer equipment.
- California Coordinate System of 1983 (CCS83): CCS83 as defined in Pub Res Code § 8801.
- digital construction model (DCM): Three-dimensional model used by the Contractor's AMG equipment.
- **digital design model:** Three-dimensional model consisting of roadway design alignments, profiles, and cross sections representing the finished grade.
- **digital terrain model:** Three-dimensional model representing the original ground before job site activities start.
- **global navigation satellite system (GNSS):** Satellite system used to pinpoint the geographic location of a user's receiver anywhere in the world. Two GNSS systems are in operation: the US GPS and the Russian Federation's GLONASS. Each of the GNSS systems uses a constellation of orbiting satellites working in conjunction with a network of ground stations.
- **GNSS base station:** Single ground-based system consisting of a GNSS receiver, antenna, and telemetry equipment that provides differential GNSS correction signals to other GNSS receivers or rovers. Multiple base stations can be combined into a GNSS network.
- **GNSS correction service subscription:** Subscription service to receive differential GNSS correction signals for higher accuracy GNSS positioning without the need of a GNSS base station. Signals are normally received via cellular wireless data services.
- **GNSS rover:** Portable GNSS antenna, receiver, rod, and data collector with telemetry equipment for real-time point measurements.
- grid: Cartesian coordinate system of Northing (y) and Easting (x) coordinates using CCS83.
- **robotic total station:** Survey instrument capable of tracking an optical target and providing real-time coordinates of the target to the equipment operator and AMG equipment. A robotic total station unit can provide AMG if site conditions do not allow GNSS receivers to be used and if a higher accuracy is required than the GNSS provides.
- **site calibration or localization:** Process that establishes the relationship between the observed control point coordinates and the site coordinate system, which is usually grid. The term applies to both GNSS and robotic total station equipment.

#### 5-1.25C Electronic Files

Electronic design files include:

- 1. Digital terrain model in LandXML format
- 2. Roadway design alignments and profiles in LandXML format
- 3. Cross sections in PDF format

The County makes electronic design files available as supplemental project information.

You must create the digital construction models.

Convert the electronic design files to a format compatible with your AMG system. Manipulation of the electronic design files is at your own risk.

Submit copies of the digital construction model files and any updates to them in LandXML format.

Digital design model information may not exist for contour grading and some drainage areas. The Engineer places stakes for these areas.

The Engineer provides you with updated electronic data whenever the Engineer determines a plan change materially affects the finished grade. For minor grade changes, the Contractor places stakes and marks.

## 5-1.25D Quality Control Plan

Submit an AMG QC plan at least 15 days before starting work requiring AMG. The plan must include the following information:

- 1. Contract number
- 2. Name and contact information of the AMG QC technician
- 3. Limits of the area for which the AMG will be used
- 4. Scope of work to be completed using AMG for the following work categories:
  - 4.1. Clearing and grubbing
  - 4.2. Earthwork
  - 4.3. Trench excavation
  - 4.4. Rough grading
  - 4.5. Subgrade
  - 4.6. Subbase
  - 4.7 Base
  - 4.8. Curb and gutter
  - 4.9. Cold planning or milling existing pavement
  - 4.10. Paving
  - 4.11. Intelligent compaction
  - 4.12. Concrete barrier
  - 4.13. Finishing roadway
- 5. Project control plan sheet detailing control points covering the job site
- 6 List of GNSS equipment, including:
  - 6.1. Type
  - 6.2. Manufacturer
  - 6.3. Model
  - 6.4. Software version
- 7. Description of GNSS site calibration or localization checking, including:
  - 7.1. List of equipment requiring calibration or localization checking
  - 7.2. Site calibration or localization procedures
  - 7.3. Frequency of calibration or localization
  - 7.4. Format for recording calibrations or localizations, including:
    - 7.4.1. Date
    - 7.4.2. Locations where calibration or localization was performed
    - 7.4.3. GNSS equipment manufacturer and model
    - 7.4.4. Range of required tolerance
    - 7.4.5. Name and signature of the person performing calibration or localization
  - 7.5. Reporting time for submitting records of calibration or localization
- 8. Description of daily GNSS equipment or robotic total station equipment check-testing procedures, including the format for recording daily check testing
- 9. List of AMG onboard computer equipment, including:
  - 9.1. Type
  - 9.2. Manufacturer
  - 9.3. Software version
  - 9.4. List of AMG-controlled equipment, including:
    - 9.4.1. Type, such as loader or grader
    - 9.4.2. Manufacturer
    - 9.4.3 Model
- 10. Procedures for AMG-controlled equipment calibration, including:
  - 10.1. Description of equipment calibration procedures

- 10.2. Frequency of calibration
- 10.3. Format for recording calibration information
- 11. Electronic data file control, including:
  - 11.1. Name and contact information of the person responsible for the electronic files
  - 11.2. DCM file-naming convention
  - 11.3. Description of the process that will be used to upload the DCM to the AMG equipment
  - 11.4. Description of the process that will be used whenever updated DCM files are required to be uploaded to the AMG equipment

If QC procedures or personnel change, submit a QC plan supplement describing the change.

# 5-1.25E Quality Control Technician

During AMG activities, provide a QC technician to be responsible for:

- 1. GNSS site calibration or localization and upload to all GNSS receivers
- 2. Maintenance of GNSS and AMG equipment
- 3. Documentation of the calibration or localization and maintenance of GNSS equipment
- 4. Daily calibration and documentation of AMG equipment
- 5. Daily setup and takedown of GNSS and robotic total station components

#### 5-1.25F Just-in-Time Training

Provide at least 8 hours of JIT training on the GNSS rover for up to 3 County employees. Provide training materials and equipment.

The JIT training must cover the following topics:

- 1. Background information for the GNSS to be used
- 2. Setup and calibration checks for:
  - 2.1. GNSS receiver
  - 2.2. GNSS base station
  - 2.3. GNSS rovers
  - 2.4. Machinery
- 3. Operation of the GNSS rover, including:
  - 3.1. Setup data collection
  - 3.2. Settings for alignments and profiles
  - 3.3. Onboard display options
- 4. Demonstration of grade checking using the rover

#### 5-1.25G Construction

## **5-1.25G(1)** General

If you find a discrepancy in any survey control point, survey stake, or in the electronic data provided, immediately, submit an RFI.

## 5-1.25G(2) GNSS Site Calibration or Localization

Perform GNSS site calibration or localization to the survey control points at least 5 business days before starting work requiring AMG.

Check each survey control point for accuracy. Submit the GNSS site calibration or localization results within 1 business day of the calibration or localization testing. Allow 3 business days for the review of the results

#### 5-1.25G(3) GNSS Check Testing

Before starting daily work requiring AMG, conduct check testing for the proper setup of the GNSS or robotic total station equipment. Ensure the GNSS or robotic total station equipment achieves accuracies within:

- 1. 0.10 foot in both horizontal and vertical directions for rough grading
- 2. 0.05 foot in horizontal directions and 0.02 foot in vertical directions for final grades

Before starting daily production, conduct check testing of the AMG equipment and the GNSS rovers.

Within 1 business day after check testing, submit the check-testing results as informational submittals.

# 5-1.25G(4) Grade Verification

If requested, provide a GNSS rover and personnel to operate it for the Engineer's use in verifying grades. This is Supplemental Job Order work.

# **Replace Section 5-1.26 with:**

## 5-1.26 GRADE QUALITY CONTROL

Use a GNSS rover, robotic total station equipment, or a level to check the grades at the frequencies shown in the following table:

**Grade Checking Requirements** 

	Area or distance represented	Frequency
Type of work	by the grade checking	(number of grade points)
Earthwork for cut and fill slopes ≤15 feet	200 feet	2
Earthwork for cut and fill slopes >15 feet	1,000 sq yd	1
Rough grading	1,000 sq yd	1
Trenching	100 feet	6
Subgrade	1 mi	30
Subbase layer	1 mi	50
Base layer	1 mi	100
Curb and gutter	100 feet	6
Concrete barrier	100 feet	5
Finishing roadway	1,000 sq yd	2

Increase the frequency of grade checking of a roadway:

- 1. Wherever its curve radius is 500 feet or less
- 2. In areas of a superelevation transition
- 3. At intersections

Notify the Engineer when an area is ready for line and grade inspection. Submit the grade checking results on a Grade Checking Report form as an informational submittal.

## **Replace Section 5-1.27E with:**

Maintain separate records for Supplemental Job Order work costs.

Supplemental Job Order bills shall be submitted hard copy and shall adhere to Section 5-1.23 "Submittals" of the Standard Specifications.

# **Replace Section 5-1.32 with:**

The Contractor shall confine his operations to designated property, road rights-of-way, existing easements, or as identified and designated on the Plans. Any encroachment onto lands outside of these aforementioned areas will require the contractor to supply, in writing, an agreement which shows a right-of-entry, temporary construction easement, proof of ownership or other form of right to use such land(s) PRIOR to the encroachment or use of such lands. Contractor shall also acknowledge, understand and comply with the limitations of activities relating to the approved CEQA and NEPA environmental documents which may

limit scope of impacts. Failure to comply with the provisions for construction limits shall result in the immediate suspension of all work until the provisions have been met.

Personal vehicles of your employees must not be parked on the traveled way or shoulders, including sections closed to traffic.

# Add the following between the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of Section 5-1.36C(3):

Contractor should be aware there are utilities to be relocated that may affect work.

The utility owner will relocate a utility as shown in tables provided on a Job Order by Job Order basis, before the corresponding date shown:

# **Replace Section 5-1.40 with:**

#### 5-1.40 PROTECTION FROM VANDALISM

The Contractor is responsible for the protection of the entire jobsite, including protecting the fresh concrete against vandalism and damage. Any damaged concrete will be repaired or replaced as determined by the Engineer. Any additional security measures required to protect against vandalism will be included in the respective individual items and no additional compensation will be allowed.

Full compensation for vandalism control shall be considered as included in the contract price paid for the various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

## Add the following to the end of Section 5-1.43A:

Potential claim forms are located on the Caltrans' website: <a href="https://dot.ca.gov/programs/construction">https://dot.ca.gov/programs/construction</a>
Effective January 1, 2017, the provisions of Public Contract Code Section 9204 govern claims by the Contractor to the County.

# **Replace Section 5-1.43(E) with:**

## 5-1.43E(1) General

Your use of the claims resolution process available in Pub Contract Code § 9204 (and set forth in Section 5-1.43E(2)) shall not satisfy or otherwise excuse your compliance with the potential claims and dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section 5-1.43.

# Add to 5-1.43E(2) the following Public Contract Code Section 9204:

- (a) The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests of the state and its citizens to ensure that all construction business performed on a public works project in the state that is complete and not in dispute is paid in full and in a timely manner.
- (b) Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not limited to, Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 10240) of Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 19100) of Part 2, and Article 1.5 (commencing with Section 20104) of Chapter 1 of Part 3, this section shall apply to any claim by a contractor in connection with a public works project.
- (c) For purposes of this section:
  - (1) "Claim" means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or certified mail with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following:
    - (A) A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages or penalties for delay assessed by a public entity under a contract for a public works project.
    - (B) Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a public works project and payment for which is not otherwise expressly provided or to which the claimant is not otherwise entitled.
    - (C) Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity.
  - (2) "Contractor" means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who has entered into a direct contract with a public entity for a public works project.
  - (3) (A) "Public entity" means, without limitation, except as provided in subparagraph (B), a state agency, department, office, division, bureau, board, or commission, the California State University, the University of California, a city, including a charter city, county, including a charter county, city and county, including a charter city and county, district, special district, public authority, political subdivision, public corporation, or nonprofit transit corporation wholly owned by a public agency and formed to carry out the purposes of the public agency.
    - (B) "Public entity" shall not include the following:
      - (i) The Department of Water Resources as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.
      - (ii) The Department of Transportation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.
      - (iii) The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.
      - (iv) The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect to any project under its jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 11 (commencing with Section 7000) of Title 7 of Part 3 of the Penal Code.
      - (v) The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.
      - (vi) The Department of General Services as to all other projects.
      - (vii) The High-Speed Rail Authority.
  - (4) "Public works project" means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of any public structure, building, road, or other public improvement of any kind.
  - (5) "Subcontractor" means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who either is in direct contract with a contractor or is a lower tier subcontractor.

- (d) (1) (A) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period provided in this subdivision.
  - (B) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim.
  - (C) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion.
  - (D) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph (3) shall apply.
  - (2) (A) If the claimant disputes the public entity's written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute.
    - (B) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section.
    - (C) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section.
    - (D) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced.
    - (E) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties' dispute.
  - (3) Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in this subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity's failure to

have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant.

- (4) Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum.
- (5) If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity because privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so.
- (e) The text of this section or a summary of it shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any public works project that may give rise to a claim under this section.
- (f) A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (1) upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the provisions of this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the timeframes and procedures set forth in this section.
- (g) This section applies to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2017.
- (h) Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations.
- (i) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2027, and as of that date is repealed, unless a later enacted statute, that is enacted before January 1, 2027, deletes or extends that date.

#### SEC. 2.

The Legislature finds and declares that it is of statewide concern to require a charter city, charter county, or charter city and county to follow a prescribed claims resolution process to ensure there are uniform and equitable procurement practices.

#### SEC. 3.

If the Commission on State Mandates determines that this act contains costs mandated by the state, reimbursement to local agencies and school districts for those costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

## Add the following to the end of Section 5-1.43E(3):

## 5-1.46E(3)(e) Dispute Resolution Board Agreement

# 

WITNESSETH, that

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR, hereinafter called the "parties," are now engaged in construction under the 2024 Job Order Contracting Program referenced above; and

WHEREAS, the Standard Specifications for the above referenced contract provides for the establishment and operation of the DRB to assist in resolving disputes; and

WHEREAS, the DRB is composed of three members, one selected by the COUNTY, one selected by the CONTRACTOR, and the third member selected by the other two members and approved by the parties; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performance contained herein, or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR, and the DRB members hereto agree as follows:

## SECTION I DESCRIPTION OF WORK

To assist in the timely resolution of disputes between the parties, the contract provides for the establishment and the operation of the DRB. The DRB is to fairly and impartially consider disputes placed before it and provide recommendations for resolution of these disputes to the parties. The DRB shall provide recommendations based on the facts related to the dispute, the contract and applicable laws and regulations. The DRB shall perform the services necessary to participate in the DRB's actions as designated in Section III, Scope of Work.

## SECTION II DRB QUALIFICATIONS

DRB members shall be knowledgeable in the type of construction and contract documents anticipated by the contract and shall have completed training through the Dispute Resolution Board Foundation. Candidates shall have substantial experience in or directly related to public works heavy highway construction projects with or on behalf of federal, state or local government agencies, particularly Caltrans.

Experience shall be a minimum of 10 years in any combination of the following:

a) Supervisor, manager, or executive in public works heavy highway construction contracts with emphasis in resolution of disputes arising out of said contracts.

- b) Attorney representing parties in litigating or arbitrating public works heavy highway construction contract
- c) Judge or arbitrator adjudicating or otherwise resolving public works heavy highway construction contract claims.

No DRB member shall have prior direct involvement in this contract. No DRB member shall have a financial interest in this contract or parties thereto, including but not limited to the CONTRACTOR, subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, and legal and business services, within a period 6 months prior to award and during this contract. Exceptions to above are compensation for services on this or other DRBs and DRAs or retirement payments or pensions received from a party that are not tied to, dependent on or affected by the net worth of the party.

DRB members shall fully disclose all direct or indirect professional or personal relationships with all key members of the contract.

#### SECTION III SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work of the DRB includes, but is not limited to, the following:

#### A. PROCEDURES

The DRB shall establish procedures that will govern the conduct of its business and reporting procedures in conformance with the requirements of the contract and the terms of this AGREEMENT. The DRB established procedures shall only be implemented upon approval of the parties.

The DRB Chairperson shall schedule progress and dispute meetings and any other DRB activities.

The parties shall not call on any of the DRB members, who served on this contract, as a witness in arbitration proceedings, which may arise from this contract.

DRB members shall have no claim against the COUNTY or the CONTRACTOR, or both, from claimed harm arising out of the parties' evaluations of the DRB's opinions.

During progress or dispute meetings, DRB members shall refrain from expressing opinions on the merits of statements on matters under dispute or potential dispute. Opinions of DRB members expressed in private sessions shall be kept strictly confidential. Individual DRB members shall not meet with, or discuss contract issues with individual parties. Discussions regarding the project between the DRB members and the parties shall be in the presence of all three members and both parties. Individual DRB members shall not undertake independent investigations of any kind pertaining to disputes or potential disputes, except with the knowledge of both parties and as expressly directed by the DRB Chairperson.

## **B. PROGRESS MEETINGS**

DRB members shall visit the project site and meet with representatives of the parties to keep abreast of construction activities and to develop familiarity with the work in progress. Scheduled progress meetings shall be held at or near the project site. The DRB shall meet at least once at the start of the project, and at least once every 4 months thereafter. The frequency, exact time, and duration of additional site visits and progress meetings shall be as recommended by the DRB and approved by the parties consistent with the construction activities or matters under consideration and dispute. Scheduled progress meetings may be waived, if the parties are in agreement, when the only work remaining is plant establishment work. Each meeting shall consist of a round table discussion and a field inspection of the work being performed on the contract, if necessary. Each meeting shall be attended by representatives of both parties. The agenda shall generally be as follows:

- 1. Meeting opened by the DRB Chairperson.
- 2. Remarks by the COUNTY's representative.
- 3. A description by the CONTRACTOR's representative of work accomplished since the last meeting; the current schedule status of the work; and a forecast for the coming period.

- 4. An outline by the COUNTY's representative of the status of the work as the COUNTY views it.
- 5. An outline by the CONTRACTOR's representative of potential problems and a description of proposed solutions.
- 6. A brief description by the CONTRACTOR's and the COUNTY's representative of potential claims and disputes that have surfaced since the last meeting.
- 7. A summary by the COUNTY's representative, the CONTRACTOR's representative, or the DRB of the status of past potential claims and disputes.

The COUNTY's representative will prepare minutes of all progress meetings and circulate them for revision and approval by all concerned within 10 days of the meeting.

## C. DISPUTE MEETING

The term "dispute meeting" as used in this subsection shall refer to both the informal and traditional dispute meeting processes, unless otherwise noted.

Either the COUNTY or the CONTRACTOR may request a dispute meeting with the DRB. The requesting party shall simultaneously notify the other party of each dispute meeting request. Upon being notified of the need for a dispute meeting, the DRB shall review and consider the dispute. The DRB shall determine the time and location of the dispute meeting with due consideration for the needs and preferences of the parties, while recognizing the importance of a speedy resolution to the dispute.

Dispute meetings shall be conducted at any location that would be convenient and provide required facilities and access to necessary documentation.

No DRB dispute meeting shall take place later than 30 days prior to acceptance of the contract.

There shall be no participation of persons who are not directly involved in the contract or who do not have direct knowledge of the dispute. The exception to this is technical services, as described below:

The DRB, with approval of the parties, may obtain technical services necessary to adequately review the disputes presented, including audit, geotechnical, schedule analysis and other services. The parties' technical staff may supply those services as appropriate. The cost of technical services, as agreed to by the parties, shall be borne equally by the two parties as specified in an approved Supplemental Job Order. The CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to markups for the payments made for these services.

At the dispute meeting the DRB may ask questions, seek clarification, and request further clarification of data presented by either of the parties as may be necessary to assist in making a fully informed recommendation. However, the DRB shall refrain from expressing opinions on the merits of statements on matters under dispute during the parties' presentations. The claimant shall discuss the dispute, followed by the other party. Each party shall then be allowed one or more rebuttals at the meeting until all aspects of the dispute are thoroughly covered. Each party will be given ample time to fully present its position, make rebuttals, provide relevant documents, and respond to DRB questions and requests.

There shall be no testimony under oath or cross-examination, during DRB dispute meetings. There shall be no reporting of the procedures by a shorthand reporter or by electronic means. Documents and verbal statements shall be received by the DRB in conformance with the procedures established at the first meeting between the DRB and the parties. These established procedures need not comply with prescribed legal laws of evidence.

Failure to attend a dispute meeting by either of the parties shall be conclusively considered by the DRB as indication that the non-attending party considers all written documents and correspondence submitted as their entire and complete argument.

After dispute meetings are concluded, the DRB shall meet in private and reach a conclusion supported by two or more members. Private sessions of the DRB may be held at a location other than the job site or by electronic conferencing as deemed appropriate, in order to expedite the process.

The DRB shall make every effort to reach a unanimous decision.

#### 1. TRADITIONAL DISPUTE MEETING:

The following procedure shall be used for the traditional dispute meeting:

- a. Within 21 days after receiving the COUNTY's written response to the CONTRACTOR's supplemental potential claim record, the CONTRACTOR shall refer the dispute to the DRB if the CONTRACTOR wishes to further pursue the dispute. The CONTRACTOR shall make the referral in writing to the DRB, simultaneously copied to the COUNTY. The written dispute referral shall describe the disputed matter in individual discrete segments, so that it will be clear to both parties and the DRB what discrete elements of the dispute have been resolved, and which remain unresolved, and shall include an estimate of the cost of the affected work and impacts, if any, on project completion.
- b. The parties shall each be afforded an opportunity to be present and to be heard by the DRB, and to offer evidence. Either party furnishing written evidence or documentation to the DRB must furnish copies of such information to the other party a minimum of 15 days prior to the date the DRB is scheduled to convene the meeting for the dispute. Either party shall produce such additional evidence as the DRB may deem necessary to reach an understanding and a determination of the dispute. The party furnishing additional evidence shall furnish copies of such additional evidence to the other party at the same time the evidence is provided to the DRB. The DRB shall not consider evidence not furnished in conformance with the terms specified herein.
- c. Upon receipt by the DRB of a written referral of a dispute, the DRB shall convene to review and consider the dispute. The dispute meeting shall be held no earlier than 30 days and no later than 60 days after receipt of the written referral unless otherwise agreed to by all parties.
- d. The DRB may request clarifying information of either party within 10 days after the dispute meeting. Requested information shall be submitted to the DRB within 10 days of the DRB request.
- e. The DRB shall furnish a written report to the parties with its conclusion(s) and recommendation(s). The DRB shall complete its report, including minority opinion, if any, and submit it to the parties within 30 days of the dispute meeting, except that time extensions may be granted at the request of the DRB with the written concurrence of the parties. The report shall summarize the facts considered, the contract language, law or regulation viewed by the DRB as pertinent to the dispute, and the DRB's interpretation and reasoning in arriving at its conclusion(s) and recommendation(s) and, if appropriate, recommends guidelines for determining compensation. The DRB's written opinion shall stand on its own, without attachments or appendices. The DRB Chairperson shall furnish a copy of the written recommendation report to the DRB Coordinator, Division of Construction, MS 44, P.O. Box 942874, Sacramento, CA 94274.
- f. Within 30 days after receiving the DRB's report, the parties shall respond to the DRB in writing signifying that the dispute is either resolved or remains unresolved. Failure to provide the written response within the time specified, or a written rejection of the DRB's recommendation or a written response requesting the DRB reconsider their recommendation, shall conclusively indicate that the party(s) failing to respond accepts the DRB recommendation. Immediately after responses have been received from both parties, the DRB shall provide copies of both responses to the parties simultaneously. Either party may request clarification of elements of the DRB's report from the DRB prior to responding to the report. The DRB shall consider any clarification request only if submitted within 10 days of receipt of the DRB's report, and if submitted simultaneously in writing to both the DRB and the other party. Each party may submit only one request for clarification for any individual DRB report. The DRB shall respond, in writing, to requests for clarification within 10 days of receipt of such requests.
- g. Either party may seek a reconsideration of the DRB's recommendation. The DRB shall only grant reconsideration based upon submission of new evidence and if the request is submitted within the 30 day time limit specified for response to the DRB's written report. Each party may submit only one request for reconsideration regarding an individual DRB recommendation.

h. If the parties are able to settle their dispute with the aid of the DRB's report, the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR shall promptly accept and implement the settlement of the parties. If the parties cannot agree on compensation within 60 days of the acceptance by both parties of the settlement, either party may request the DRB to make a recommendation regarding compensation.

#### 2. INFORMAL DISPUTE MEETING

An informal dispute meeting shall be convened, only if, the parties and the DRB agree that this dispute resolution process is appropriate to settle the dispute.

The following procedure shall be used for the informal dispute meeting:

- a. The parties shall furnish the DRB with one copy of pertinent documents requested by the DRB that are or may become necessary for the DRB to perform its function. The party furnishing documents shall furnish such documents to the other party at the same time the document is provided to the DRB.
- b. After the dispute meeting has concluded, the DRB members shall deliberate in private the same day until a response to the parties is reached or as otherwise agreed to by the parties.
- c. The DRB then verbally delivers its recommendation with findings, including minority opinion, if any, to the parties.
- d. After the recommendation is presented, the parties may ask for clarifications.
- e. Occasionally the DRB may be unable to formulate a recommendation based on the information given at a dispute meeting. However, the DRB may provide the parties with advice on strengths and weaknesses of their prospective positions, in the hope of the parties reaching settlement.
- f. If the parties are able to settle their dispute with the aid of the DRB's opinion, the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR shall promptly accept and implement the settlement of the parties.
- g. The DRB will not be bound by its verbal recommendation in the event that a dispute is later heard by the DRB in a traditional dispute meeting.

Unless the dispute is settled, use of the informal dispute meeting does not relieve the parties of their responsibilities under Section 5-1.15C, "Dispute Resolution Board," of the Standard Specifications or subsection, "Traditional Dispute Meeting," of this AGREEMENT. There will be no extension of time allowed for the process to permit the use of the informal dispute meeting, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties.

## SECTION IV TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION

DRB members shall not begin work under the terms of this AGREEMENT, until authorized in writing by the COUNTY or as agreed to by the parties. Once established, the DRB shall be in operation until the Director accepts the contract. If the contract is terminated in accordance with Section 8-1.08, "Termination of Control," of the Standard Specifications, the DRB will be dissolved.

## **SECTION V PAYMENT**

Each DRB member shall be compensated at an agreed rate of \$1,500 per day for time spent per meeting, either at start of project, or a scheduled progress or a dispute meeting. A member serving on more than one COUNTY DRB or DRA, regardless of the number of meetings per day, shall not be paid more than the agreed rate per day. The agreed rate shall be considered full compensation for on site time, travel expenses, transportation, lodging, time for travel and incidentals for each day, or portion thereof that the DRB member is at an authorized DRB meeting. No additional compensation will be made for time spent by DRB member to review and research activities outside the official DRB meetings unless that time, such as time spent evaluating and preparing recommendations on specific issues presented to the DRB, has been specifically agreed to in advance by the parties. Time away from the project, which has been specifically agreed to in advance by the parties, will be compensated at an agreed rate of \$150 per hour. The agreed amount of \$150 per hour shall include all incidentals including expenses for telephone, fax, and computer services. The COUNTY will provide administrative services such as conference facilities to the DRB.

#### A. PAYMENT PROCESSING

The CONTRACTOR shall make direct payments to each DRB member for their participation in authorized meetings and approved hourly rate charges, from invoices submitted by each DRB member, and technical services.

DRB members may submit invoices to the CONTRACTOR for partial payment for work performed and services rendered for their participation in authorized meetings not more often than once per month during the progress of the work. The invoices shall be in a format approved by the parties and accompanied by a general description of activities performed during that billing period. Payment for hourly fees, at the agreed rate, shall not be paid to a DRB member until the amount and extent of those fees are approved by the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR.

#### B. INSPECTION OF COSTS RECORDS

DRB members and the CONTRACTOR shall keep available for inspection by representatives of the COUNTY and the United States federal government, for a period of 3 years after final payment, the cost records and accounts pertaining to this AGREEMENT. If any litigation, claim, or audit arising out of, in connection with, or related to this contract is initiated before the expiration of the 3-year period, the cost records and accounts shall be retained until such litigation, claim, or audit involving the records is completed.

## SECTION VI ASSIGNMENT OF TASKS OF WORK

DRB members shall not assign the work of this AGREEMENT.

### SECTION VII TERMINATION OF A DRB MEMBER

DRB members may resign after providing not less than 15 days written notice of their resignation to the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR. A DRB member may be terminated, by either party, for failing to comply at all times with all required employment or financial disclosure conditions of DRB membership in conformance with the terms of the contract and this AGREEMENT.

Service of a DRB member may be terminated at any time with not less than 15 days notice as follows:

- A. The COUNTY may terminate service of the COUNTY appointed member.
- B. The Contractor may terminate service of the Contractor appointed member.
- C. Upon the written recommendation of the COUNTY and Contractor appointed members for the removal of the third member.
- D. Upon resignation of a member.

When a member of the DRB is replaced, the replacement member shall be appointed in the same manner as the replaced member was appointed. The appointment of a replacement DRB member will begin promptly upon determination of the need for replacement and shall be completed within 15 days. Changes in either of the DRB members chosen by the 2 parties will not require re-selection of the third member, unless both parties agree to such re-selection in writing. The Dispute Resolution Board Agreement shall be amended to reflect the change of a DRB member.

Each party shall document the need for replacement and substantiate the replacement request in writing to the other party and DRB members.

#### SECTION VIII LEGAL RELATIONS

The parties hereto mutually understand and agree that each DRB member in the performance of duties is acting in the capacity of an independent agent and not as an employee of either party.

No party to this AGREEMENT shall bear a greater responsibility for damages or personal injury than is normally provided by Federal or State of California Law.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this contract that require the CONTRACTOR to indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY, the parties shall jointly indemnify and hold harmless the DRB members from and

against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorney's fees, arising out of and resulting from the findings and recommendations of the DRB.

## SECTION IX CONFIDENTIALITY

The parties hereto mutually understand and agree that all documents and records provided by the parties in reference to issues brought before the DRB, which documents and records are marked "Confidential - for use by the DRB only," shall be kept in confidence and used only for the purpose of resolution of subject disputes, and for assisting in development of DRB findings and recommendations; that such documents and records will not be utilized or revealed to others, except to officials of the parties who are authorized to act on the subject disputes, for any purposes, during the life of this AGREEMENT. Upon termination of this AGREEMENT, said confidential documents and records, and all copies thereof, shall be returned to the parties who furnished them to the DRB. However, the parties understand that such documents may be subsequently discoverable and admissible in court or arbitration proceedings unless a protective order has been obtained by the party seeking further confidentiality.

## **SECTION X DISPUTES**

Disputes between the parties hereto, including disputes between the DRB members and either party or both parties, arising out of the work or other terms of this AGREEMENT, which cannot be resolved by negotiation and mutual concurrence between the parties, or through the administrative process provided in the contract, shall be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Tehama.

## SECTION XI VENUE, APPLICABLE LAW, AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION

In the event that any party, including an individual member of the DRB, deems it necessary to institute proceedings to enforce any right or obligation under this AGREEMENT, the parties hereto agree that such action shall be initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction within the County of Tehama.

## SECTION XII FEDERAL REVIEW AND REQUIREMENTS

On Federal-Aid contracts, the Federal Highway Administration shall have the right to review the work of the DRB in progress, except for private meetings or deliberations of the DRB that do not become part of the project records.

Other Federal requirements in this agreement shall only apply to Federal-Aid contracts.

## SECTION XIII CERTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR, DRB, AND COUNTY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day and year first above written.

DRB MEMBER	DRB MEMBER
By:	By:
Title:	Title
DRB CHAIRPERSON	
By:	
Title :	
CONTRACTOR	DEPARTMENT
	OF TRANSPORTATION
By:	By:
Title:	Title:

## **Replace Section 5-1.48 with:**

#### 5-1.48 INTERNET BASED CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

#### 5-1.48A General

The Engineer and Contractor shall utilize Virtual Project Manager (<a href="http://www.virtual-pm.com/">http://www.virtual-pm.com/</a>), herein after called VPM, for submission of all data and documents (unless specified otherwise in this Section) throughout the duration of the Contract. VPM is an electronic project management system accessible through the Internet browser used to create, share, and review construction management documentation; there is no software to install. VPM is provided by the Engineer at no cost to the Contractor. VPM will be made available to all Contractors' personnel, subcontractor personnel, suppliers, consultants, Engineer, and any of Engineer's representatives or agents. The joint use of this system is to facilitate electronic exchange of information, automation of key processes, electronic notification of project activity, and overall management of contract documentation. VPM shall be the primary means of project information submission and management.

The Engineer will establish the Contractor's access to VPM by enabling access and assigning user profiles to Contractor personnel, including subcontractors and suppliers, as requested by Contractor. All authorized personnel shall have an individual user profile; no joint-use or shared user profiles will be allowed. Each user profile shall be assigned to a user group and have specific permission settings and privileges based on the user's need within VPM. Entry of information exchanged and transferred between the Contractor and its subcontractors and suppliers on VPM shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

The Contractor shall use computer hardware and software that meets the requirements of the VPM system. As recommendations are modified by VPM, the Contractor will upgrade their system(s) to meet or exceed the recommendations. Upgrading of the Contractor's computer systems will not be justification for a cost or time modification to the Contract. The Contractor shall ensure its own connectivity to VPM through their internet service provider.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the validity of the information they place in VPM, for the training of their personnel to understand and utilize VPM, as well as the provision and accessibility of adequate resources to connect with VPM. Accepted users shall be knowledgeable in the use of computers, including Internet browsers, email programs, and the Portable Document Format (PDF) document type. The Contractor shall utilize the existing forms in VPM to the maximum extent possible. If a form does not exist in VPM the Contractor must include their own form or a form provided by the Engineer as an attachment to a submittal, Request for Information (RFI), or other document within VPM. Note that only the following file types are accepted as attachments to documents within VPM: PDF files, Microsoft Word (DOC) files, Microsoft Excel (XLS) files, picture files (JPG, TIFF, BMP, JPEG, etc.). PDF documents will be created through electronic conversion prior to uploading, such as through a "print to file" feature or "save as pdf" feature, rather than optically scanned whenever possible.

Contractor shall provide a list of key VPM personnel for the Engineer's acceptance. The list shall include the following information: first name, last name, address, title, office phone number, cell phone number, and email address. The Engineer is responsible for adding and removing users from the system and establishing read, write, and approval permission levels.

In addition, The Owner selected The Gordian Group's (Gordian) Job Order Contracting (JOC) Solution for their JOC program. The Gordian JOC Solution<sup>TM</sup> includes Gordian's proprietary JOC Information Management System ("JOC IMS"), construction cost data, and Construction Task Catalog® which shall be used by the Contractor solely for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under this Contract, including the preparation and submission of Job Order Proposals, Price Proposals, subcontractor lists, and other requirements specified by the Owner.

# 5-1.48B Project Summary

The project summary tab provides an overall summary of the project. It includes the current weather, the working days remaining and a summary of work for the past week. The summary of work is generated from the County's project inspector and the daily logs. This tab is for information only and the Contractor shall not take any action here.

# 5-1.48C Task Manager

The project schedule the Contractor submits is converted into a format that is uploaded by the Engineer into the task manager tab. The Contractor is responsible for providing schedule updates to the Engineer whenever the work progress in a manner different than the approved schedule.

# 5-1.48D Change Order Manager

The change order manager tab shall be used to track project change orders. Any potential change orders shall be tracked as a RFI in the RFI tab. Once the Engineer agrees that a RFI will result in a contract change order, a new contract change order shall be created by the Engineer in the change order manager tab. The Engineer will finalize the contract change order through this tab.

#### 5-1.48E Transmittals

The transmittal tab shall be used to communicate general project information amongst all parties as well as used by the Contractor in the submission of certified payroll reports. The Engineer will upload the project-specific information including: bid documents, conformed plans, conformed specifications and the Notice to Proceed to the transmittal tab.

The Contractor shall submit certified payroll reports on a weekly basis through the transmittal tab. Each week shall have a separate transmittal where all the certified payroll reports and statements of non-performance for each contractor shall be posted.

#### 5-1.48F Submittals

All submittals shall be submitted through the submittal tab. The preferred document type is PDF.

Before making submittals, the Contractor shall ensure that products and materials will be available in the quantities and in the time required by the Contract and the approved schedule of activities. Each submittal shall be legible and clearly identify, by highlighting, arrows or other defined and permanent mark, the products and materials proposed for use.

All submittals shall be generated from the prime contractor and any submittals that are uploaded by subcontractors or suppliers will not be reviewed. Contractor shall carefully review all subcontractor and suppliers submittals before submitting it to the Engineer for review. If a submittal contains extraneous information, unmarked options or is otherwise incomplete, it will be rejected and the Contractor shall make corrections and upload the resubmittal. Any resubmittal shall be made to the same transmittal item in VPM.

Submittals shall be processed by the Engineer within ten working days after upload to VPM. The Engineer will review submittals for general conformance with the Contract Documents and standards. Such review by the Engineer shall not relieve the Contractor of any responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents. Unless specifically authorized to do so by the Engineer, the Contractor shall not procure, manufacture, or fabricate any part of the contract work until submittals related to said contract work have been approved by the Engineer.

Each submittal shall have a unique title that is comprised of the item followed by a comma and the section of the specifications that reference the item (e.g. Minor Concrete, Section 90-2). The submittal type shall either be project materials or project information. The submittal description shall be used to identify any pertinent information or list a description of the item being submitted.

Certificates of compliance shall be submitted through the submittal tab. The submittal type shall be "certificate of compliance".

The Contractor shall submit progress invoices on the last working day of the month through the transmittal tab (select "progress invoice" for the type). The Engineer will review the submitted content and if found acceptable the Engineer will upload an official invoice for the Contractor to sign. The Contractor shall sign in blue ink and upload the signed invoice to the same transmittal where the Engineer will then process for payment.

# 5-1.48G Request for information (RFI)

The RFI tab shall be used to request information from the Contractor to the Engineer. The Contractor shall create a RFI upon recognition of any event or question of fact arising from the contract work. The RFI type for this submittal shall be "Request for Information." The Engineer will also utilize the RFI tab in a similar manner when there is a question for the Contractor; this RFI type shall be "Response Required."

The Engineer will respond to a RFI submitted by the Contractor within five days. The Contractor shall proceed with the work unless otherwise ordered. The Contractor may protest the Engineer's response by submitting a claim in accordance with Section 5-1.43 "Potential Claims and Dispute Resolution" of the Standard Specifications.

If the Engineer states the RFI leads to a change in scope, change in conditions, differing site conditions or extra work; a contract change order will be issued.

## 5-1.48H Daily Logs

The daily log tab is used by the County to document the activities of the work, any correspondence or direction given in the field, safety concerns and general comments about the project. The Contractor may view the contents of this tab for reference purposes. The information entered into the daily log tab is used to populate the project summary tab.

# 5-1.48I Weekly Statement of Working Days (WSWD)

The weekly statement of working days will be posted to the WSWD tab. VPM automatically generates the WSWD from the information entered into the daily log tab. The WSWD shows the working days and non-working days charged for the reporting week, any time adjustments, a work completion date with the remaining working days left in the contract and the controlling activities for the week.

The Contractor will be allowed 15 days from the last working day of the weekly statement to protest in writing the correctness of the statement. The Contractor shall submit a transmittal stating what is being protested and the reasons for protest. The Engineer will respond to the protest. The Contractor may protest the Engineer's response by submitting a claim in accordance with Section 5-1.43 "Potential Claims and Dispute Resolution" of the Standard Specifications.

## **END OF SECTION**

# **6 CONTROL OF MATERIAL**

**6-1.03B** Submittals **6-1.03B(1)** General

Not Used

## 6-1.03B(2) Work Plan

For local material, such as rock, gravel, earth, structure backfill, pervious backfill, imported borrow, and culvert bedding, obtained from a (1) noncommercial source, or (2) source not regulated under California jurisdiction, submit a local material plan for each material at least 60 days before placing the material. The local material plan must include:

1. Certification signed by you and an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State or a professional geologist licensed as a professional geologist by the State stating:

I am aware local material from a noncommercial source or a source not regulated under CA jurisdiction must be sampled and analyzed for pH and lead and may require sampling and analysis under section 6-1.03B(3) for other constituents of concern based on the land use history. I am aware that local material sources must not contain ADL at concentrations greater than 80 mg/kg total lead or equal to or greater than 5 mg/L soluble lead as determined by the Waste Extraction Test (WET) Procedures, 22 CA Code of Regs § 66261.24(a)(2) App II. I am aware that a maximum quantity of material may be excavated at the site based on the minimum number of samples taken before excavating at the site under section 6-1.03B(3).

- 2. Land use history of the local material location and surrounding property
- 3. Sampling protocol
- 4. Number of samples per volume of local material
- 5. QA and QC requirements and procedures
- 6. Qualifications of sampling personnel
- 7. Stockpile history
- 8. Name and address of the analytical laboratory that will perform the chemical analyses
- 9. Analyses that will be performed for lead and pH
- 10. Other analyses that will be performed for possible hazardous constituents based on:
  - 10.1. Source property history
  - 10.2. Land use adjacent to source property
  - 10.3. Constituents of concern in the ground water basin where the job site is located

The plan must be sealed and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State or a professional geologist licensed as a professional geologist by the State.

If the plan requires revisions, the Engineer provides comments. Submit a revised plan within 7 days of receiving comments. Allow 7 days for the review.

## 6-1.03B(3) Analytical Test Results

At least 15 days before placing local material, submit analytical test results for each local material obtained from a noncommercial source or a source not regulated under CA jurisdiction. The analytical test results must include:

1. Certification signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State or a professional geologist licensed as a professional geologist by the State stating:

The analytical testing described in the local material plan has been performed. I performed a statistical analysis of the test results using the US EPA's ProUCL software with the applicable 95 percent upper confidence limit. I certify that the material from the local material source is suitable

for unrestricted use at the job site, it has a pH above 5.0, does not contain soluble lead in concentrations equal to or greater than 5mg/l as determined by the Waste Extraction Test (WET) Procedures, 22 CA Code of Regs § 66261.24(a)(2) App II, does not contain lead in concentrations above 80 mg/kg total lead, is free from all other contaminants identified in the local material plan, and will comply with the job site's basin plan and water quality objectives of the RWQCB.

- 2. Chain of custody of samples
- 3. Analytical results no older than 1 year
- 4. Statistical analysis of the data using US EPA's ProUCL software with a 95 percent upper confidence limit
- 5. Comparison of sample results to hazardous waste concentration thresholds and the RWQCB's basin plan requirements and water quality objectives for the job site location

## 6-1.03B(4) Sample and Analysis

Sample and analyze local material from a (1) noncommercial source or (2) source not regulated under CA jurisdiction:

- 1. Before bringing the local material to the job site
- 2. As described in the local material plan
- 3. Under US EPA Test Methods for Evaluating Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods (SW-846)

The sample collection must be designed to generate a data set representative of the entire volume of proposed local material.

Before excavating at the (1) noncommercial material source or (2) a source not regulated under CA jurisdiction, collect the minimum number of samples and perform the minimum number of analytical tests for the corresponding maximum volume of local material as shown in the following table:

Maximum volume of imported borrow (cu yd)	Minimum number of samples and analytical tests
< 5,000	8
5,000–10,000	12 for the first 5,000 cu yd plus 1 for each additional 1,000 cu yd or portion thereof
10,000–20,000	17 for the first 10,000 cu yd plus 1 for each additional 2,500 cu yd or portion thereof
20,000-40,000	21 for the first 20,000 cu yd plus 1 for each additional 5,000 cu yd or portion thereof
40,000–80,000	25 for the first 40,000 cu yd plus 1 for each additional 10,000 cu yd or portion thereof
> 80,000	29 for the first 80,000 cu yd plus 1 for each additional 20,000 cu yd or portion thereof

Do not collect composite samples or mix individual samples to form a composite sample.

Analyze the samples using the US EPA's ProUCL software with a 95 percent upper confidence limit. All chemical analysis must be performed by a laboratory certified by the SWRCB's Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP).

The analytical test results must demonstrate that the local material:

- 1. Is not a hazardous waste
- 2. Has a pH above 5.0

- 3. Has an average total lead concentration, based upon the 95 percent upper confidence limit, at or below 80 mg/kg
- 4. Is free of possible contaminants identified in the local material plan
- 5. Complies with the RWQCB's basin plan for the job site location
- 6 Complies with the RWQCB's water quality objectives for the job site location

# 6-1.03C Local Material Management

Do not place local material until authorized.

If the Engineer determines the appearance, odor, or texture of any delivered local material suggests possible contamination, sample and analyze the material. The sampling and analysis is Supplemental Job Order work unless (1) hazardous waste is discovered or (2) the analytical test results indicate the material does not comply with section 6-1.03B(3).

Dispose of noncompliant local material at an appropriately permitted CA Class I, CA Class II or CA Class III facility. You are the generator of noncompliant local material.

# **Replace section 6-1.04 with:**

## 6-1.04 BUY AMERICA

#### 6-1.04A General

Buy America requirements do not apply to the following:

- 1. Tools and construction equipment used in performing the work
- 2. Temporary work that is not incorporated into the finished project

# 6-1.04B Crumb Rubber (Pub Res Code § 42703(d))

Furnish crumb rubber with a certificate of compliance. Crumb rubber must be:

- 1. Produced in the United States
- 2. Derived from waste tires taken from vehicles owned and operated in the United States

### 6-1.04C Steel and Iron Materials

Steel and iron materials must be melted and manufactured in the United States except:

- 1. Foreign pig iron and processed, pelletized, and reduced iron ore may be used in the domestic production of the steel and iron materials
- 2. If the total combined cost of the materials produced outside the United States does not exceed the greater of 0.1 percent of the total bid or \$2,500, the material may be used if authorized

Furnish steel and iron materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance and certified mill test reports. Mill test reports must indicate where the steel and iron were melted and manufactured.

All melting and manufacturing processes for these materials, including an application of a coating, must occur in the United States. Coating includes all processes that protect or enhance the value of the material to which the coating is applied.

#### Manufacturing includes:

- 1. Processing steel and iron materials, including smelting or other processes that alter the physical form or shape (such as rolling, extruding, machining, bending, grinding, and drilling) or chemical composition;
- 2. Coating application, including epoxy coating, galvanizing, and painting, that protects or enhances the value of steel and iron materials.

## **6-1.04D** Manufactured Products

Iron and steel used in precast concrete manufactured products must meet the requirements of section 6-1.04C regardless of the amount used.

Iron and steel used in other manufactured products must meet the requirements of section 6-1.04C if the weight of steel and iron components constitute 90 percent or more of the total weight of the manufactured product.

#### 6-1.04E Construction Materials

Buy America requirements apply to the following construction materials unless otherwise specified:

- 1. Non-ferrous metals
- 2. Plastic and polymer-based products such as:
  - 2.1. Polyvinylchloride
  - 2.2. Composite building materials
  - 2.3. Polymers used in fiber optic cables
- 3. Glass
- 4. Lumber
- 5. Drywall

Where one or more of these construction materials have been combined by a manufacturer with other materials through a manufacturing process, Buy America requirements do not apply unless otherwise specified.

Furnish construction materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance with each project delivery. Manufacturer's certificate of compliance must identify where the construction material was manufactured and attest specifically to Buy America compliance.

All manufacturing processes for these materials must occur in the United States.

## **Replace Section 6-2.01A with:**

The Department uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract.

Quality assurance includes sampling, testing, and inspections performed under your QAP to (1) control material quality and (2) ensure the specified quality characteristics for the project are met. Allow the Department to record, including photograph and video record, to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract.

You may examine the records and reports of tests the Department performs if they are available at the job site.

Schedule work to allow time for QAP.

The Department deducts testing costs for work that does not comply with the Contract.

The Department may retest material previously tested and authorized for use. If the Department notifies you of a retest, furnish resources for retesting.

For a material specified to comply with a State Specification number, the material may comply with a later version of the specification. Obtain State Specifications from METS.

For a material to comply with a property show in the following table, the Department tests under the corresponding test methods shown:

**Table 1: Typical Test Methods** 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				
Property	TEST METHOD			
Relative Compaction	ASTM D2922 and D3017			
Sand Equivalent	CT 217			
Resistance (R-Value)	CT 301			
Grading (sieve analysis)	CT 202			
Durability Index	CT 229			

## Add to the end of Section 6-2.01C:

The Department adopts Caltrans's maintained Pre-Qualified Products List (Authorized Materials List) for various construction materials, which can be found at:

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/engineering-services/authorized-materials-lists.

Materials may be used or specified to be on this maintained list. The Engineer shall not be precluded from sampling and testing products on the Pre-Qualified Products List.

The manufacturer of products on the list of Prequalified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials shall furnish the Engineer a Certificate of Compliance in conformance with the provisions in Section 6-2.03C, "Certificates of Compliance," of the Standard Specifications for each type of material supplied that applies to this list.

For those categories of materials included on the Pre-Qualified Products List, only those products shown within the listing may be used in the work. Other categories of products, not included on the list of Prequalified and Tested Signing and Delineation Materials, may be used in the work provided they conform to the requirements of the Standard Specifications.

Materials and products may be added to the Pre-Qualified Products List if the manufacturer submits a New Product Information Form to the New Product Coordinator at the Transportation Laboratory. Upon a Departmental request for samples, sufficient samples shall be submitted to permit performance of required tests. Approval of materials or products will depend upon compliance with the specifications and tests the Department may elect to perform.

## Replace the third paragraph in Section 6-2.01E with:

For the inspection request form and the procedure for its submittal, go to the Caltrans METS website. Notify the Engineer of each submittal.

## Replace the third paragraph in Section 6-2.01F with:

Submit material to be tested with a Sample Identification Card. For the card, go to the Caltrans METS website.

#### END OF SECTION

## 7 LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC

## Add the following at the end of Section 7-1.02K(2):

Job Orders must comply with the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and the general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations, as applicable.

The minimum wage rates for the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations can be found at:

## http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/index.htm

The Department does not utilize a Labor Compliance Plan, and therefore California Labor Code 1771.6 shall apply to this project.

# Replace the 4th paragraph in Section 7-1.02K(3) with:

The Department allows the use of a form with identical wording as the Statement of Compliance form available at the Caltrans website.

## Replace paragraphs 6 through 10 in Section 7-1.02K(3) with:

Electronic submittals of certified payroll records will not be accepted. Submittals shall be original hard copies of required documents. Submittal of payroll records shall continue to be submitted on a weekly basis as specified in the Standard Specifications.

Obtain the emergency phone numbers of the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection unit headquarters, United States Forest Service ranger district office, and U.S. Department of Interior Bureau of Land Management field offices. Submit these phone numbers to the Engineer before the start of job site activities. Post the agencies names and emergency phone numbers at a prominent place at the job site.

Hydrocarbon-fueled engines, both stationary and mobile, must be equipped with spark arresters pursuant to Pub Res Code § 4442 except for either of the following:

- 1. Motor trucks, truck tractors, buses, or passenger vehicles
- 2. Equipment powered by properly maintained exhaust-driven turbo-charged engines or equipped with scrubbers with properly maintained water levels

Each toilet must have a metal ashtray at least 6 inches in diameter by 8 inches deep, half-filled with sand, and within easy reach of anyone accessing the facility.

Locate flammable materials at least 50 feet away from equipment service, parking, and gas or oil storage areas. Each small mobile or stationary engine site must be cleared of flammable material for a radius of at least 15 feet from the engine.

Before clearing and grubbing, clear a fire break at the outer limits of the areas to be cleared and grubbed. Where clearing and grubbing limits allow, use a minimum fire break width of 20 feet. Each area to be cleared and grubbed must be cleared and kept clear of flammable material such as dry grass, weeds, brush, downed trees, oily rags and waste, paper, cartons, and plastic waste.

Furnish a pickup truck and driver that will be available for fire control during working hours.

The pickup truck and operator must patrol the area of construction for at least 1/2 hour after job site activities have ended.

Cal Fire, USFS, and BLM have established the following adjective class ratings for 5 levels of fire danger for use in public information releases and fire protection signing: "low," "moderate," "high," "very high,"

Job Order Contracting General Civil Services 2025

"extreme." Obtain the fire danger rating daily for the project area from the nearest Cal Fire unit headquarters, USFS ranger district office, or BLM field office. Monitor the National Weather Service daily forecasts for "fire weather watches" and "red flag warnings" covering the project's locations.

If the fire danger rating is "very high" or a "fire weather watch" is issued, then:

- 1. Falling of dead trees or snags must be discontinued.
- 2. No open burning is permitted and fires must be extinguished.
- 3. Welding must be discontinued except in an enclosed building or within an area cleared of flammable material for a radius of 25 feet.
- 4. Blasting must be discontinued.
- 5. Smoking is allowed only in automobiles and cabs of trucks equipped with an ashtray or in cleared areas immediately surrounded by a fire break unless prohibited by other authority.
- 6. Vehicular travel is restricted to cleared areas except in case of emergency.

If the fire danger rating is "extreme" or a "red flag warning" is issued, take the precautions specified for a "very high" fire danger rating or a "fire weather watch" issuance, except:

- 1. Smoking is only allowed in automobiles and cabs of trucks equipped with an ashtray.
- 2. Work of a nature that could start a fire requires that properly equipped fire guards be assigned to such operation for the duration of the work.

The Engineer may suspend work wholly or in part due to hazardous fire conditions. The days during this suspension are non-working days. If field and weather conditions become such that the work is suspended, section 7-1.02M(2) will not be enforced for the period of the suspension.

# Replace the 11<sup>th</sup> paragraph in Section 7-1.04 with:

Cover signs that direct traffic to a closed area. All work related to covering, maintaining and removing sign covers on all signs shall not be Supplemental Job Order work, but shall be included in the Job Order Price Proposal and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor.

## **Replace Section 7-1.05 with:**

You must defend, indemnify, and save harmless the County of Tehama, including its officers, employees, and agents, from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, costs, expenses, actual attorneys' fees, losses or liabilities, in law or in equity (Section 7-1.05 "Claims") arising out of or in connection with your performance of this Contract for:

- 4. Bodily injury including, but not limited to, bodily injury, sickness or disease, emotional injury or death to persons, including, but not limited to, the public, any employees or agents of you, the State, or any other contractor; and
- 5. Damage to property of anyone including loss of use thereof; caused or alleged to be caused in whole or in part by any negligent or otherwise legally actionable act or omission of you or anyone directly or indirectly employed by you or anyone for whose acts you may be liable.

You must, at your own expense, defend any suit or action founded upon a claim of the foregoing.

Except as otherwise provided by law, these requirements apply regardless of the existence or degree of fault of the County. You are not obligated to indemnify the County for Claims arising from conduct delineated in Civil Code § 2782 and for Claims arising from any defective or substandard condition of the highway that existed at or before the start of work, unless this condition has been changed by the work or the scope of the work requires you to maintain existing highway facilities and the Claim arises from your failure to maintain. Your defense and indemnity obligation shall extend to Claims arising after the work is completed and accepted if the Claims are directly related to alleged acts or omissions by you that occurred during the

course of the work. Any inspection of the work by the Department is not a waiver of full compliance with these requirements.

Your obligation to defend and indemnify is not excused because of your inability to evaluate liability or because you evaluate liability and determine that you are not liable. You must respond within 30 days to the tender of any Claim for defense and indemnity by the County, unless this time has been extended by the County. If you fail to accept or reject a tender of defense and indemnity within 30 days, in addition to any other remedy authorized by law, the Department may withhold such funds the County reasonably considers necessary for its defense and indemnity until disposition has been made of the Claim or until the Contractor accepts or rejects the tender of defense, whichever occurs first.

With respect to third-party claims against you, you waive all rights of any type to express or implied indemnity against the County, its officers, employees, or agents.

Nothing in the Contract is intended to establish a standard of care owed to any member of the public or to extend to the public the status of a third-party beneficiary for any of these indemnification specifications.

## Add the following at the end of Section 7-1.06F:

The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall include, or be endorsed to include <u>"Tehama County, its elected officials, officers, employees and volunteers"</u> as an additional insured.

The certificate holder shall be "County of Tehama."

## **Replace section 7-1.11B with:**

7-1.11B FHWA-1273

Attached below for ease of use and can also be found at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/cqit/form1273.cfm

#### REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

- General
- II. Nondiscrimination
- III. Non-segregated Facilities
- V. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
- Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Provisions
- VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
- VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
- VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
- Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water Pollution Control Act
- Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
- Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for Lobbying
- XII. Use of United States-Flag Vessels:

#### ATTACHMENTS

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

#### I. GENERAL

 Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each construction contract funded under title 23, United States Code, as required in 23 CFR 633.102(b) (excluding emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal). The contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services). 23 CFR 633.102(e).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase order, rental agreement or agreement for other services. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider. 23 CFR 633.102(e).

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid designbuild contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services) in accordance with 23 CFR 633.102. The design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in solicitation-for-bids or request-for-proposals documents, however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for supplies or services related to a construction contract). 23 CFR 633.102(b).

Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract. 23 CFR 633.102(d).

- A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for withholding of progress payments, withholding of final payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment or any other action determined to be appropriate by the contracting agency and FHWA.
- 4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract, the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on parole, supervised release, or probation. 23 U.S.C. 114(b). The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors. 23 U.S.C. 101(a).
- NONDISCRIMINATION (23 CFR 230.107(a); 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A; EO 11246)

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of \$10,000 or more. The provisions of 23 CFR Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or architectural service contracts.

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply with the following policies: Executive Order 11248, 41 CFR Part 80, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with: the requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding \$10,000, the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3.

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR Part 80, and 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627. The contracting agency and the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure compliance with 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633.

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR Part 230, Subpart A, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA requirements.

1

- 1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (see 28 CFR Part 35, 29 CFR Part 1630, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 41 CFR Part 60 and 49 CFR Part 27) and orders of the Secretary of Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140, shall constitute the EEO and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's project activities under this contract. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) set forth under 28 CFR Part 35 and 29 CFR Part 1630 are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO:
- a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review of activities under the contract. 23 CFR 230.409 (g)(4) & (5).
- b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the following statement:

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, color, national origin, age or disability. Such action shall include: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training."

- EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active EEO program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.
- 3. Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action or are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of and will implement the contractor's EEO policy and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:
- a. Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official.
- b. All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
- All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and women.

- d. Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees.
- e. The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.
- 4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer." All such advertisements will be placed in publications having a large circulation among minorities and women in the area from which the project work force would normally be derived.
- a. The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women. To meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of potential minority group employees and establish with such identified sources procedures whereby minority and women applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment consideration.
- b. In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's compliance with EEO contract provisions. Where implementation of such an agreement has the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the contractor to do the same, such implementation violates Federal nondiscrimination provisions.
- c. The contractor will encourage its present employees to refer minorities and women as applicants for employment. Information and procedures with regard to referring such applicants will be discussed with employees.
- 5. Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability. The following procedures shall be followed:
- a. The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to ensure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The contractor will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the contractor will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action

within a reasonable time. If the investigation indicates that the discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, such corrective action shall include such other persons. Upon completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal.

#### 6. Training and Promotion:

- a. The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minorities and women who are applicants for employment or current employees. Such efforts should be aimed at developing full journey level status employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.
- b. Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the contractor shall make full use of training programs (i.e., apprenticeship and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance). In the event a special provision for training is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the special provision. The contracting agency may reserve training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a).
- The contractor will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and entrance requirements for each.
- d. The contractor will periodically review the training and promotion potential of employees who are minorities and women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.
- 7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minorities and women. 23 CFR 230.409. Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent, will include the procedures set forth below:
- a. The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability.
- c. The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except that to the extent such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
- d. In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minorities and women. The failure of a union to provide

- sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the requirements of this paragraph. In the event the union referral practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the contracting agency.
- 8. Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / Employees with Disabilities: The contractor must be familiar with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established thereunder. Employers must provide reasonable accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so would cause an undue hardship.
- 9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract.
- The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors, suppliers, and lessors of their EEO obligations under this contract.
- The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations.

#### 10. Assurances Required:

- The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State DOT's FHWA-approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program are incorporated by reference.
- b. The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 28 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:
  - (1) Withholding monthly progress payments;
- (2) Assessing sanctions;
- (3) Liquidated damages; and/or
- (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as nonresponsible.
- c. The Title VI and nondiscrimination provisions of U.S. DOT Order 1050.2A at Appendixes A and E are incorporated by reference. 49 CFR Part 21.
- 11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO requirements. Such records shall be retained for a period of three years following the date of the final payment to the contractor for all contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA.
- The records kept by the contractor shall document the following:

- The number and work hours of minority and nonminority group members and women employed in each work classification on the project;
- (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions, when applicable, to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; and
- (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women.
- b. The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of the project indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form FHWA-1391. The staffing data should represent the project work force on board in all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July. If on-the-job training is being required by special provision, the contractor will be required to collect and report training data. The employment data should reflect the work force on board during all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of July.

#### III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of more than \$10,000. 41 CFR 60-1.5.

As prescribed by 41 CFR 60-1.8, the contractor must ensure that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin cannot result. The contractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The contractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location under the contractor's control where the facilities are segregated. The term "facilities" includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing provided for employees. The contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

#### IV. DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction projects exceeding \$2,000 and to all related subcontracts and lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size), in accordance with 29 CFR 5.5. The requirements apply to all projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is functionally classified as Federal-aid highway. 23 U.S.C. 113. This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors, which are exempt. 23 U.S.C. 101. Where applicable law requires that projects be treated as a project on a Federal-aid highway, the provisions of this subpart will apply regardless of the location of the project. Examples include: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 133 [excluding recreational trails projects], the Nationally Significant Freight and Highway

Projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 117, and National Highway Freight Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 167.

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "Contract provisions and related matters" with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-1273 format and FHWA program requirements.

#### 1. Minimum wages (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Wage rates and fringe benefits. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of basic hourly wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. As provided in paragraphs (d) and (e) of 29 CFR 5.5, the appropriate wage determinations are effective by operation of law even if they have not been attached to the contract. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B)) on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph 1.e. of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics must be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification(s) of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in paragraph 4. of this section. Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.c. of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) must be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.
- b. Frequently recurring classifications. (1) In addition to wage and fringe benefit rates that have been determined to be prevailing under the procedures set forth in 29 CFR part 1, a wage determination may contain, pursuant to § 1.3(f), wage and fringe benefit rates for classifications of laborers and mechanics for which conformance requests are regularly submitted pursuant to paragraph 1.c. of this section, provided that:
- (i) The work performed by the classification is not performed by a classification in the wage determination for which a prevailing wage rate has been determined;

- (ii) The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
- (iii) The wage rate for the classification bears a reasonable relationship to the prevailing wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (2) The Administrator will establish wage rates for such classifications in accordance with paragraph 1.c.(1)(iii) of this section. Work performed in such a classification must be paid at no less than the wage and fringe benefit rate listed on the wage determination for such classification.
- c. Conformance. (1) The contracting officer must require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract be classified in conformance with the wage determination. Conformance of an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits is appropriate only when the following criteria have been met:
  - (i) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
  - (ii) The classification is used in the area by the construction industry; and
  - (iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (2) The conformance process may not be used to split, subdivide, or otherwise avoid application of classifications listed in the wage determination.
- (3) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken will be sent by the contracting officer by email to <a href="mailto:DBAconformance@dol.gov">DBAconformance@dol.gov</a>. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (4) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer will, by email to <u>DBAconformance@dol.gov</u>, refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (5) The contracting officer must promptly notify the contractor of the action taken by the Wage and Hour Division

- under paragraphs 1.c.(3) and (4) of this section. The contractor must furnish a written copy of such determination to each affected worker or it must be posted as a part of the wage determination. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraph 1.c.(3) or (4) of this section must be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- d. Fringe benefits not expressed as an hourly rate. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor may either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or may pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- e. Unfunded plans. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, in accordance with the criteria set forth in § 5.28, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- f. Interest. In the event of a failure to pay all or part of the wages required by the contract, the contractor will be required to pay interest on any underpayment of wages.

#### 2. Withholding (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Withholding requirements. The contracting agency may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for the full amount of wages and monetary relief, including interest, required by the clauses set forth in this section for violations of this contract, or to satisfy any such liabilities required by any other Federal contract, or federally assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards, that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in § 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to Davis-Bacon labor standards requirements and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld. In the event of a contractor's failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice or helper working on the site of the work all or part of the wages required by the contract, or upon the contractor's failure to submit the required records as discussed in paragraph 3.d. of this section, the contracting agency may on its own initiative and after written notice to the contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.
- b. Priority to withheld funds. The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with paragraph

- 2.a. of this section or Section V, paragraph 3.a., or both, over claims to those funds by:
- A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
- (2) A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
- (3) A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate;
- (4) A contractor's assignee(s);
- (5) A contractor's successor(s); or
- (6) A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, 31 U.S.C. 3901–3907.

#### 3. Records and certified payrolls (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Basic record requirements (1) Length of record retention. All regular payrolls and other basic records must be maintained by the contractor and any subcontractor during the course of the work and preserved for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or otherwise working in construction or development of the project under a development statute) for a period of at least 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- (2) Information required. Such records must contain the name; Social Security number; last known address, telephone number, and email address of each such worker; each worker's correct classification(s) of work actually performed; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours actually worked in total and on each covered contract; deductions made; and actual wages paid.
- (3) Additional records relating to fringe benefits. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under paragraph 1.e. of this section that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in 40 U.S.C. 3141(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor must maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.
- (4) Additional records relating to apprenticeship. Contractors with apprentices working under approved programs must maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs, the registration of the apprentices, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- b. Certified payroll requirements (1) Frequency and method of submission. The contractor or subcontractor must submit weekly, for each week in which any DBA- or Related Actscovered work is performed, certified payrolls to the contracting

- agency. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of all certified payrolls by all subcontractors. A contracting agency or prime contractor may permit or require contractors to submit certified payrolls through an electronic system, as long as the electronic system requires a legally valid electronic signature; the system allows the contractor, the contracting agency, and the Department of Labor to access the certified payrolls upon request for at least 3 years after the work on the prime contract has been completed; and the contracting agency or prime contractor permits other methods of submission in situations where the contractor is unable or limited in its ability to use or access the electronic system.
- (2) Information required. The certified payrolls submitted must set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under paragraph 3.a.(2) of this section, except that full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses must not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead, the certified payrolls need only include an individually identifying number for each worker ( e.g., the last four digits of the worker's Social Security number). The required weekly certified payroll information may be submitted using Optional Form WH-347 or in any other format desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division website at https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/ legacy/files/wh347/.pdf or its successor website. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide full Social Security numbers and last known addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission by the subcontractor to the contracting agency.
- (3) Statement of Compliance. Each certified payroll submitted must be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons working on the contract, and must certify the following:
- (i) That the certified payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under paragraph 3.b. of this section, the appropriate information and basic records are being maintained under paragraph 3.a. of this section, and such information and records are correct and complete;
- (ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper and apprentice) working on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR part 3; and
- (iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification(s) of work actually performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (4) Use of Optional Form WH–347. The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH–347 will satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 3.b.(3) of this section.

- (5) Signature. The signature by the contractor, subcontractor, or the contractor's or subcontractor's agent must be an original handwritten signature or a legally valid electronic signature.
- (6) Falsification. The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under <u>18 U.S.C. 1001</u> and <u>31 U.S.C. 3729</u>.
- (7) Length of certified payroll retention. The contractor or subcontractor must preserve all certified payrolls during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- c. Contracts, subcontracts, and related documents. The contractor or subcontractor must maintain this contract or subcontract and related documents including, without limitation, bids, proposals, amendments, modifications, and extensions. The contractor or subcontractor must preserve these contracts, subcontracts, and related documents during the course of the work and for a period of 3 years after all the work on the prime contract is completed.
- d. Required disclosures and access (1) Required record disclosures and access to workers. The contractor or subcontractor must make the records required under paragraphs 3.a. through 3.c. of this section, and any other documents that the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor deems necessary to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of any of the applicable statutes referenced by § 5.1, available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and must permit such representatives to interview workers during working hours on the job.
- (2) Sanctions for non-compliance with records and worker access requirements. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, or refuses to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, owner, or other entity, as the case may be, that maintains such records or that employs such workers, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available, or to permit worker interviews during working hours on the job, may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to § 5.12. In addition, any contractor or other person that fails to submit the required records or make those records available to WHD within the time WHD requests that the records be produced will be precluded from introducing as evidence in an administrative proceeding under 29 CFR part 6 any of the required records that were not provided or made available to WHD. WHD will take into consideration a reasonable request from the contractor or person for an extension of the time for submission of records. WHD will determine the reasonableness of the request and may consider, among other things, the location of the records and the volume of
- (3) Required information disclosures. Contractors and subcontractors must maintain the full Social Security number and last known address, telephone number, and email address

of each covered worker, and must provide them upon request to the contracting agency, the State DOT, the FHWA, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or other compliance action.

## Apprentices and equal employment opportunity (29 CFR 5.5)

- a. Apprentices (1) Rate of pay. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship (OA), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA. A person who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice, will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform in the first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such a program. In the event the OA or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the OA withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to use apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (2) Fringe benefits. Apprentices must be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringe benefits must be paid in accordance with that determination.
- (3) Apprenticeship ratio. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeyworkers on the job site in any craft classification must not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program or the ratio applicable to the locality of the project pursuant to paragraph 4.a.(4) of this section. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in paragraph 4.a.(1) of this section, must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under this section must be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed.
- (4) Reciprocity of ratios and wage rates. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than the locality in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyworker's hourly rate) applicable within the locality in which the construction is being performed must be observed. If there is no applicable ratio or wage rate for the locality of the project, the ratio and wage rate specified in the contractor's registered program must be observed.
- Equal employment opportunity. The use of apprentices and journeyworkers under this part must be in conformity with

the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR part 30.

c. Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT).

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and skill training programs which have been certified by the Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 23 CFR 230.111(e)(2). The straight time hourly wage rates for apprentices and trainees under such programs will be established by the particular programs. The ratio of apprentices and trainees to journeyworkers shall not be greater than permitted by the terms of the particular program.

- Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- 6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor must insert FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts, along with the applicable wage determination(s) and such other clauses or contract modifications as the contracting agency may by appropriate instructions require, and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses and wage determination(s) in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this section. In the event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss, due to any workers of lower-tier subcontractors, and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate. 29 CFR 5.5.
- Contract termination: debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract as provided in 29 CFR 5.5.
- 9. Disputes concerning labor standards. As provided in 29 CFR 5.5, disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- 10. Certification of eligibility. a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of 40 U.S.C. 3144(b) or § 5.12(a).

- No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of 40 U.S.C. 3144(b) or § 5.12(a).
- c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Code, Title 18 Crimes and Criminal Procedure, <u>18</u> U.S.C. 1001.
- 11. Anti-retaliation. It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
- a. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or <u>29 CFR part 1</u> or <u>3</u>;
- b. Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or <u>29 CFR part 1</u> or <u>3</u>;
- c. Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or <u>29 CFR part 1</u> or <u>3</u>; or
- d. Informing any other person about their rights under the DBA, Related Acts, this part, or <u>29 CFR part 1</u> or <u>3</u>.

## V. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

Pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(b), the following clauses apply to any Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in this paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchpersons and guards.

- 1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 29 CFR 5.5.
- 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages and interest from the date of the underpayment. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or

mechanic, including watchpersons and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section, in the sum currently provided in 29 CFR 5.5(b)(2)\* for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph 1. of this section.

\* \$31 as of January 15, 2023 (See 88 FR 88 FR 2210) as may be adjusted annually by the Department of Labor, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990.

#### 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages

- a. Withholding process. The FHWA or the contracting agency may, upon its own action, or must, upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to satisfy the liabilities of the prime contractor or any subcontractor for any unpaid wages; monetary relief, including interest; and liquidated damages required by the clauses set forth in this section on this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act that is held by the same prime contractor (as defined in § 5.2). The necessary funds may be withheld from the contractor under this contract, any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally assisted contract that is subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and is held by the same prime contractor, regardless of whether the other contract was awarded or assisted by the same agency, and such funds may be used to satisfy the contractor liability for which the funds were withheld.
- b. Priority to withheld funds. The Department has priority to funds withheld or to be withheld in accordance with Section IV paragraph 2.a. or paragraph 3.a. of this section, or both, over claims to those funds by:
- A contractor's surety(ies), including without limitation performance bond sureties and payment bond sureties;
- (2) A contracting agency for its reprocurement costs;
- (3) A trustee(s) (either a court-appointed trustee or a U.S. trustee, or both) in bankruptcy of a contractor, or a contractor's bankruptcy estate;
- (4) A contractor's assignee(s);
- (5) A contractor's successor(s); or
- (6) A claim asserted under the Prompt Payment Act, 31 U.S.C. 3901–3907.
- 4. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor must insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1. through 5. of this section and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor is responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1. through 5. In the

event of any violations of these clauses, the prime contractor and any subcontractor(s) responsible will be liable for any unpaid wages and monetary relief, including interest from the date of the underpayment or loss, due to any workers of lowertier subcontractors, and associated liquidated damages and may be subject to debarment, as appropriate.

- 5. Anti-retaliation. It is unlawful for any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, or to cause any person to discharge, demote, intimidate, threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, harass, or in any other manner discriminate against, any worker or job applicant for:
- a. Notifying any contractor of any conduct which the worker reasonably believes constitutes a violation of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA) or its implementing regulations in this part;
- b. Filing any complaint, initiating or causing to be initiated any proceeding, or otherwise asserting or seeking to assert on behalf of themselves or others any right or protection under CWHSSA or this part;
- c. Cooperating in any investigation or other compliance action, or testifying in any proceeding under CWHSSA or this part; or
- Informing any other person about their rights under CWHSSA or this part.

#### VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts on the National Highway System pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116.

- 1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items designated by the contracting agency. Specialty items may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such specialty items performed may be deducted from the total original contract price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by the contractor's own organization (23 CFR 635.118).
- a. The term "perform work with its own organization" in paragraph 1 of Section VI refers to workers employed or leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators. Such term does not include employees or equipment of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime contractor, or any other assignees. The term may include payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State regulatory requirements. Leased employees may only be included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the following conditions: (based on longstanding interpretation)
- the prime contractor maintains control over the supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased employees;
- (2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality of the work of the leased employees;

- (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or exclude individual employees from work on the project; and (4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the
- the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all other Federal regulatory requirements.
- b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor components of the overall contract. 23 CFR 635.102.
- Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(a), the contract amount upon which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the contractor under the contract provisions.
- 3. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(c), the contractor shall furnish (a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources (supervision, management, and engineering services) as the contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the performance of the contract.
- 4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the contract. Written consent will be given only after the contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions and requirements of the prime contract. (based on long-standing interpretation of 23 CFR 635.116).
- The 30-percent self-performance requirement of paragraph (1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance requirements. 23 CFR 635.116(d).

#### VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

- 1. In the performance of this contract the contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR Part 635). The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract. 23 CFR 635.108.
- It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a
  condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into
  pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any
  subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance
  of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions
  which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her
  health or safety, as determined under construction safety and

health standards (29 CFR Part 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704). 29 CFR 1926.10.

3. Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3704).

## VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY PROJECTS

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts.

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high degree of reliability on statements and representations made by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, and honestly as possible. Willful falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the project is a violation of Federal law. To prevent any misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR Part 635) in one or more places where it is readily available to all persons concerned with the project:

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows:

"Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, or false report as to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs of construction on any highway or related project submitted for approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false representation, false report or false claim with respect to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in connection with the construction of any highway or related project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or

Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid Roads Act approved July 11, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as amended and supplemented;

Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 years or both."

#### IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (42 U.S.C. 7606; 2 CFR 200.88; EO 11738)

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts in excess of \$150,000 and to all related subcontracts. 48 CFR 2.101; 2 CFR 200.327.

By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this contract or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, Federal-aid construction contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal Highway Administration and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II.

The contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the requirements of this Section in every subcontract, and further agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may direct as a means of enforcing such requirements. 2 CFR 200.327.

# X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA approval or that is estimated to cost \$25,000 or more – as defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

#### 1. Instructions for Certification - First Tier Participants:

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this transaction. 2 CFR 180.320.
- c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may terminate this transaction for cause of default. 2 CFR 180.325.
- d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.345 and 180.350.

- e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred,"
  "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal,"
  and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined
  in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180,900-180,1020, and 1200.
  "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered
  transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal
  funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract).
  "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered
  transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as
  subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant
  who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or
  subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general
  contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who
  has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier
  Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as
  subcontractors and suppliers).
- f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 2 CFR 180.330.
- g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by the department or contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 180.300.
- h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. 2 CFR 180.300; 180.320, and 180.325. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. 2 CFR 180.335. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (<a href="https://www.sam.gov/">https://www.sam.gov/</a>). 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, and 180.325.
- i. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.325.

\*\*\*\*

- Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier Participants:
- The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:
- Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.335;.
- (2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property, 2 CFR 180.800;
- (3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification, 2 CFR 180.700 and 180.800: and
- (4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 2 CFR 180.335(d).
- (5) Are not a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (6) Are not a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements).
- b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal. 2 CFR 180.335 and 180.340.

\*\*\*\*

#### 3. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants:

(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders, and other lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or estimated to cost \$25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200). 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.

- a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below.
- b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which

this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

- c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 2 CFR 180.365.
- d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900 - 180.1020, and 1200. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. "First Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract). "Lower Tier Covered Transactions" refers to any covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts). "First Tier Participant" refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor). "Lower Tier Participant" refers any participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).
- e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 2 CFR 1200.220 and 1200.332.
- f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the \$25,000 threshold. 2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220.
- g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), which is compiled by the General Services Administration. 2 CFR 180.300, 180.320, 180.330, and 180.335.
- h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily

excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 2 CFR 180.325.

\*\*\*\*

#### 4. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier Participants:

- a. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals:
- is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 CFR 180.355;
- (2) is a corporation that has been convicted of a felony violation under any Federal law within the two-year period preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements); and
- (3) is a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act requirements)
- Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant should attach an explanation to this proposal.

\*\*\*\*

## XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT FUNDS FOR LOBBYING

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed \$100,000. 49 CFR Part 20, App. A.

- The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
- a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or

cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

- 2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.
- 3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

#### XII. USE OF UNITED STATES-FLAG VESSELS:

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, or any other covered transaction. 46 CFR Part 381.

This requirement applies to material or equipment that is acquired for a specific Federal-aid highway project. 46 CFR 381.7. It is not applicable to goods or materials that come into inventories independent of an FHWA funded-contract.

When oceanic shipments (or shipments across the Great Lakes) are necessary for materials or equipment acquired for a specific Federal-aid construction project, the bidder, proposer, contractor, subcontractor, or vendor agrees:

- 1. To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels. 46 CFR 381.7.
- 2. To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 'on-board' commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b)(1) of this section to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Office of Cargo and Commercial Sealift (MAR-620), Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590. (MARAD requires copies of the ocean carrier's (master) bills of lading, certified onboard, dated, with rates and charges. These bills of lading may contain business sensitive information and therefore may be submitted directly to MARAD by the Ocean Transportation Intermediary on behalf of the contractor). 46 CFR 381.7.

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS (23 CFR 633, Subpart B, Appendix B) This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965.

- 1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is situated, except:
- To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in the area are not available.
- For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to assure an efficient execution of the contract work.
- c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in subparagraph (4) below.
- 2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in each classification, (c) the date on which the participant estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other pertinent information required by the State Employment Service to complete the job order form. The job order may be placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by telephone. If during the course of the contract work, the information submitted by the contractor in the original job order is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify the State Employment Service.
- The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified job applicants referred to him by the State Employment Service. The contractor is not required to grant employment to any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to perform the classification of work required.
- 4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job applicants to the contractor, or less than the number requested, the State Employment Service will forward a certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of applicants. Such certificate shall be made a part of the contractor's permanent project records. Upon receipt of this certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) above.
- The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian region.
- 6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work.

## 8 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS

#### Add to the end of Section 8-1.01A

Whenever you change the normal agreed-to hours of work you must provide 24-hour notice to the Engineer. The Engineer may or may not approve such a change. If the change is not approved any work you perform outside the normal hours of work will be subject to rejection.

Normal hours of work fall between 7:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M. Monday through Friday excluding holidays. Obtain approval from the Engineer for any work between the hours of 5:00 P.M. and 7:00 A.M.

Contractor shall adhere to "Level 1 Critical Path Method Schedule" provisions in Section 8-1.02B of the Standard Specifications.

## Replace the table in the 2<sup>nd</sup> paragraph of 8-1.03 with:

## Table 2: Preconstruction Topic Table

TOPICS DOCUMENT OR DESCRIPTION

Potential claim and dispute resolution Potential claim forms

Contractor's representation Assignment of Contractor's representative

DBE Final utilization reports and other requirements

Equipment list

Labor compliance and equal employment

Job site posters and benefit and payroll reports

opportunity

Material inspection Notice of Materials to be Used form

Materials on hand Request for Payment for Materials on Hand form

Measurements ---

Landscape Materials Material changes
Quality control QC plans and protocol

Safety Injury and Illness Prevention Program and job site posters
Schedule Baseline schedule and Weekly Statement of Working Days

form

Subcontracting Subcontracting Request form Surveying Survey Request form

Traffic control Traffic contingency plan and traffic control plans

Utility work -Project Limits/ Adjacent Properties --

Water pollution control SWPPP or WPCP

Weight limitations

Work restrictions PLACs (Permits, License, Approvals, and Certificates)

Record drawings --Action submittals ---

## **Replace Section 8-1.04B with:**

Start job site activities on the date specified in the Notice to Proceed.

All contract documents must be satisfactorily executed as described in Section 3-1.18, "Contract Execution" prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Contract time will start after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed and the first charged working day will be THE EARLIER OF EITHER the start of job site activities, OR 15 calendar days after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed. Submit a notice 72 hours before starting job site activities. If the project has more than 1 location of work, submit a separate notice for each location. The Department does not adjust contract time for starting before the 1<sup>st</sup> working day.

Contractor is encouraged to start the pre-construction submittal and approval process after the issuance of the Notice of Award.

Do not start job site activities until the Department authorizes or accepts your submittal for:

- 1. CPM baseline schedule
- 2. Contractor-Supplied Biologist
- 3. Biological Resource Information Program
- 4. SWPPP

If the submittals for Contractor-supplied biologist and biological resource information program are authorized, you may enter the job site only to measure controlling field dimensions and locate utilities.

Do not start other job site activities until all the submittals from the above list are received and authorized and the following information is received by the Engineer:

- 1. Notice of Materials To Be Used.
- 2. Contingency plan for reopening closures to public traffic.

If the Contract is not approved, leave the job site in a neat condition. If a facility has been changed, restore it to its former condition or an equivalent condition. The Department does not pay for the restoration.

## Add the following to the 2<sup>nd</sup> paragraph of Section 8-1.05 with:

This work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the expiration of 115 working days after the date provided in Section 8-1.04B.

## Add the following to the end of Section 8-1.06:

- 1. If the performance of all or any portion of the work is suspended or delayed by the engineer in writing for an unreasonable period of time (not originally anticipated, customary, or inherent to the construction industry) and the contractor believes that additional compensation and/or contract time is due as a result of such suspension or delay, the contractor shall submit to the engineer in writing a request for adjustment within 7 calendar days of receipt of the notice to resume work. The request shall set forth the reasons and support for such adjustment.
- 2. Upon receipt, the engineer will evaluate the contractor's request. If the engineer agrees that the cost and/or time required for the performance of the contract has increased as a result of such suspension and the suspension was caused by conditions beyond the control of and not the fault of the contractor, its suppliers, or subcontractors at any approved tier, and not caused by weather, the engineer will make an adjustment (excluding profit) and modify the contract in writing accordingly. The contractor will be notified of the engineer's determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.
- 3. No contract adjustment will be allowed unless the contractor has submitted the request for adjustment within the time prescribed.
- 4. No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause to the extent that performance would have been suspended or delayed by any other cause, or for which an adjustment is provided or excluded under any other term or condition of this contract.

## END OF SECTION

## 9 PAYMENT

## Add to the end of Section 9-1.02D:

This section will not be used unless the Engineer deems necessary to determine water weight of material.

## Replace the 11th and 12th paragraphs of Section 9-1.03 with:

The Department pays 10 percent annual interest for unpaid and undisputed:

- 1. Progress payments
- 2. After-acceptance payment except for claims

Pursuant to Public Contract Code § 20104.50, for these payments, interest starts to accrue 30 days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from a contractor on a construction contract.

## **Replace Section 9-1.07 with:**

The Department will not adjust payment of HMA, tack coat, asphalt emulsions, bituminous seals, asphalt binders, and modified asphalt binders due to crude oil price index fluctuations.

## Add to the list in the 1st paragraph of Section 9-1.16A:

1. Retention

## **Replace Section 9-1.16D(2) with:**

The Department makes partial payments for Mobilization costs which shall adhere to Public Contract Code § 10264 as follows and not to exceed the following:

- When 5 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 50 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- When 10 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 75 percent of the amount bid for mobilization or 7.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- When 20 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 95 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 9.5 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.
- When 50 percent of the original contract amount is earned, 100 percent of the amount bid for mobilization, or 10 percent of the original contract amount, whichever is lesser, may be paid.

Upon completion of all work on the project, payment of any amount bid for mobilization in excess of 10 percent of the original contract amount will be paid.

The adjustment provisions in Section 4-1.05 "Changes and Extra Work" of the Standard Specifications and the retention of payment provisions in Section 9-1.16F "Retentions" shall not apply to the contract lump sum item of mobilization.

When other contract bid item(s) are adjusted as provided in Section 4-1.05 "Changes and Extra Work" of the Standard Specifications, if the costs applicable to an item of work include mobilization costs, those mobilization costs will be deemed to have been recovered by the Contractor by the payments made for mobilization, and will be excluded from consideration in determining compensation under said Section 4-1.05.

If the Contract does not include a mobilization bid item, mobilization is included in the payment of the various bid items involved.

## Replace the 2<sup>nd</sup> paragraph in Section 9-1.16E(2) with:

The Engineer determines the percent of the working days elapsed by dividing the total days to date by the Contract working days and converting the quotient to a percentage.

## **Replace Section 9-1.16F with:**

The County does not retain moneys from progress payments due to the Contractor for work performed. No such estimate or payment shall be required to be made when, in the judgment of the Engineer, the work is not proceeding in accordance with the provisions of the contract. (see also Appendix C: Prompt Progress Payment)

For federally funded projects, Section 9-1.16F(1), "Prompt Payment of Funds Withheld to Subcontractors" of these Special Provisions shall apply.

## 9-1.16F(1) Prompt Payment Of Funds Withheld To Subcontractors

No retainage will be held by the agency from progress payments due to the prime contractor. Prime contractors and subcontractors are prohibited from holding retainage from subcontractors. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. **9-1.16F(2) Prompt Progress Payment** 

## **To Subcontractors**

A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any subcontractor not later than 7 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to subcontractors. The 7 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing. Any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency's prior written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

All unresolved claims shall be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the County of Tehama. Any reference in the Standard Specifications to arbitration shall be deemed to refer to such litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

#### END OF SECTION

## **DIVISION II GENERAL CONSTRUCTION**

## 10 GENERAL

## Replace *Reserved* in Section 10-1.02A with the following:

## 10-1.02A General

Before obliterating any traffic stripes, pavement markings, and pavement markers to be replaced at the same location, reference the stripes, markings, and markers. Include limits and transitions with control points to reestablish the new stripes, markings, and markers.

## Replace *Reserved* in section 10-1.03 with:

No Changes to this section

#### END OF SECTION

## 11 WELDING

No Changes to this section.

## **END OF SECTION**

## 12 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL

## 12-3.11B(5)(a) General

Not Used

#### 12-3.11B(5)(b) Construction Project Funding Identification Signs

Construction project funding identification C47 B(CA) sign must comply with the policy for construction funding identification signs in section 6F.109(CA) of the *California MUTCD* and as directed.

Sign must be mounted on wood posts complying with section 82-3.

Sign panels must be framed, single-sheet, aluminum panels complying with section 82-2.

Background on the sign must be Type XI retroreflective sheeting. Type XI retroreflective sheeting must be on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation materials.

Legend must be retroreflective except for nonreflective black letters and numerals.

Legend for the types of funding on a construction project funding sign must read as follows and in the following order:

1. FEDERAL HIGHWAY TRUST FUNDS

Engineer provides the year of completion for the legend on the sign. Install a sign overlay for the year of completion within 15 days of notification.

## 12-3.11C(3)(a) General

Not Used

## 12-3.11C(3)(b) Construction Project Funding Identification Signs

Install 4 48 x 30 inch construction project funding identification signs (2 per bridge) at the locations determined by the Engineer before starting major work activities visible to roadway users.

Dispose of construction project funding identification signs upon completion of the project if authorized.

#### Add to section 12-3.11D:

Payment for Construction Area signs used for the detour will be paid for as Construction Area Signs.

#### Add to section 12-4.01C:

No Changes to this section.

## Add between the 3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> paragraph of Section 12-4.02A(3)(c):

Based on the Engineer's review, additional materials, equipment, workers, or time to complete operations from that specified in the contingency plan may be required.

Provide a general time-scaled logic diagram displaying the major activities and sequence of planned operations that comply with the requirements of section 12-4.03. For each operation, identify the critical event when the contingency plan will be activated.

#### Add to section 12-4.02D:

Payment for traffic control systems used for the detour will be paid for equally across both locations and paid as Traffic Control Systems.

## END OF SECTION

## 13 WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

#### Add to the end of section 13-1.01A:

The specifications in section 13 for water quality monitoring apply to the following work activities whenever they occur in water:

- 1. installation and removal of diversions
- 2. installation and removal of cofferdams
- 3. all other in water work

## Add between the 4th and 5th paragraphs of section 13-1.01D(5)(b):

Test the receiving water under the test methods for the WQOs shown in the following table:

**Water Quality Objectives** Detection Quality characteristic Test method Requirement limit (min) Field test with a Turbidity during calibrated portable activities for in-water instrument 1 15 above natural background work (NTU) (Measured at downstream sampling location) 1. Where natural turbidity is less than 1 NTU, increases must not exceed 2 NTU. 2. Where natural turbidity is from 1 to 5 NTUs, increases must not exceed 1 NTU. Field test with a 3. Where natural turbidity is Turbidity during calibrated portable from 5 to 50 NTUs, increases activities excluding ininstrument 1 must not exceed 20 percent. water work (NTU) (Measured at downstream 4. Where natural turbidity is sampling location) from 50 to 100 NTUs, increases must not exceed 10 NTUs. 5. Where natural turbidity is greater than 100 NTUs, increases must not exceed 10 percent. Settleable material Observed Greater than 0.1 ml/L (ml/L)

#### Add to the end of section 13-3.01A:

This project's risk level is  $\underline{2}$ .

Replace "100 feet" in the last paragraph of section 13-4.03C(1) with:

150 feet

## Add to the last paragraph of section 13-4.03C(1):

Refueling of equipment or storage of hazardous materials, pesticides, fuels, lubricants, oils, hydraulic fluids, or other potentially hazardous substances within the floodplain or within 300 feet of the waterway is prohibited.

## Replace section 13-12 with:

#### 13-12 TEMPORARY CREEK DIVERSION SYSTEMS

#### 13-12.01 GENERAL

## 13-12.01A Summary

Section 13-12 includes specifications for constructing, maintaining, reconstructing, and removing temporary creek diversion system (TCDS), and restoring creek bed to original condition. The temporary diversion system is used to divert upstream water flows to allow construction in a dry or dewatered location.

The TCDS must fit within the APE and TCE limits.

#### 13-12.01B Definitions

Not Used

## 13-12.01C Submittals

Submit a certificate of compliance for:

- 1. pipe material
- 2. gravel shape, gradation
- 3. plastic sheeting

Within three (3) working days following completion of work in water or diversions, an in-water Work/Diversions Water Quality Monitoring Report must be submitted to the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board.

## 13-12.01C(1) Temporary Creek Diversion System Plan

Within 20 days of Contract approval, submit 3 copies of the Temporary Creek Diversion System Plan (TCDSP). The TCDSP must include:

- 1. Installation and removal process, including equipment, platforms for equipment, and access locations.
- 2. Anticipated flow rates.
- 3. Calculations supporting the sizing of piping, channels, pumps, or other conveyance by using FHWA HY-8 or other equivalent method. Calculate the discharge water flow rate and velocity anticipated where it discharges on any erodible surface, so its conveyance does not cause erosion within the project or at the discharge to the water body. Temporary culverts attached to banks, walls, or other locations must be designed to hold the full weight of the culvert at capacity and restrain the culvert for any expected hydraulic forces.
- 4. Plans showing locations of diversion, including layouts, cross sections, and elevations.
- 5. Materials proposed for use, including MSDS if applicable.
- 6. Operation and maintenance procedures for the TCDS.
- 7. Restoration plans showing before and after conditions, including photos of existing conditions for areas disturbed during the installation, operation, and removal of the TCDS.
- 8. Monitoring and reporting plan to ensure applicable water quality objectives are met. This includes schedule of work including Temporary BMP implementation as part of the Construction Site BMP strategy, and SWPPP or WPCP as applicable. Use with section 13-3.01A.
- 9. Details of the pumping system, if used, including power source, debris handling, fish screens, and monitoring requirements.
- 10. Fish passage plan, following the Caltrans Fish Passage Design for Road Crossings, CA Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), CA Salmonid Stream Habitat Restoration Manual, and National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), Guidelines for Salmonid Passage at Stream Crossings, as required by the applicable PLACs.
- 11 The TCDS design must demonstrate how it will comply with section 13-12.03A, water tightness, and prevent seepage.
- 12. Contingency plan to remove workers, equipment, materials, fuels, and any other work items that will cause pollution or violation of PLACs during a rain event out of the flow area. Develop the contingency plan for when a 12-inch freeboard cannot be maintained and overtopping of the coffer dams may occur.
- 13. Duration of the diversion activities.
- 14. Water Quality monitoring to be conducted.

If revisions are required, the Engineer notifies you of the date when the review stopped and provides comments. Submit a revised TCDSP within 15 days of receiving the comments. The Department's review resumes when a complete TCDSP has been resubmitted.

Submit an electronic copy on a read-only CD, DVD, or other Engineer-authorized data storage device and 4 printed copies of the authorized TCDSP.

If the RWQCB or other regulatory agency requires review of the authorized TCDSP, the Engineer submits it to the RWQCB for review and comment. If the Engineer orders changes to the TCDSP based on the RWQCB's comments, submit a revised TCDSP within 10 days.

All submittals which include plans, specifications, and calculations must be sealed and signed by a civil engineer registered in the State.

## 13-12.01D Quality Assurance

Not Used

#### 13-12.02 MATERIALS

#### 13-12.02A Gravel

Gravel must:

- 1. Be river run gravel obtained from a river or creek bed with gradation of 100 percent passing a 3/4 inch sieve and 0% passing a 3/8 inch sieve
- 2. Be clean, hard, sound, durable, uniform in quality, and free of any detrimental quantity of soft, thin, elongated or laminated pieces, disintegrated material, organic matter, or other deleterious substances
- 3. Be composed entirely of particles that have no more than 1 fractured face
- 4. Have a cleanliness value of at least 85, as determined by California Test 227

## 13-12.02B Impermeable Plastic Membrane

Impermeable plastic membrane must be:

- 1. Single ply, commercial quality, polyethylene with a minimum thickness of 10 mils complying with ASTM D2103. You must use stronger plastic membrane if required as part of design to resist hydraulic forces.
- 2. Free of holes, punctures, tears or other defects that compromise the impermeability of the material.
- 3. Suitable for use as an impermeable membrane.
- 4. Resistant to UV light, retaining a minimum grab breaking load of 70 percent after 500 hours under ASTM D4355.

## 13-12.02C Gravel-Filled Bags

Gravel-filled bags must comply with section 13-5.02G.

The 2nd paragraph of section 13-5.02G does not apply.

## 13-12.02D Plastic Pipes

Plastic pipe must comply with section 61-3.01 and must:

- 1. Be clean, uncoated, in good condition free of rust, paint oil dirt or other residues that could potentially contribute to water pollution
- 2. Be adequately supported for planned loads
- 3. Use watertight joints under section 61-2.01.
- 4 Be made of a material or combination of materials that are suitable for clean water and which do not contain banned, hazardous or unlawful substances
- 5. For temporary pipes not reused on the project you may use the following materials:
  - 5.1. PVC closed-profile wall pipe must comply with ASTM F1803
  - 5.2. PVC solid wall pipe must comply with ASTM D3034, ASTM F679, AWWA C900, AWWA C905, or ASTM D2241 and cell class 12454 defined by ASTM D1784
  - 5.3. HDPE solid wall pipe must comply with AASHTO M 326 and ASTM F714

5.4. Polyethylene large-diameter-profile wall sewer and drain pipe must comply with ASTM F894

#### 13-12.02E Rock

Rock layer must comply with the table titled *Rock Gradation for 7-inch-thick Layer* in section 72-4.02.

## 13-12.02F Pumping System

Pumping system must:

- 1. Comply with section 74-2.02B
- 2. Be equipped with secondary containment
- 3. Be free of fuel and oil leaks
- 4. Meet intake screen regulatory requirements

## 13-12.02G Seepage Pumping System

If seepage occurs in the dewatered work area, the water must be removed by sump pumps as part of the TCDS. The water must be pumped to a portable tank, truck, or and adjacent upland area where the water cannot return to the creek.

Seepage pumping system must:

- 1. Comply with section 74-2.02B
- 2. Ensure discharge water conform with PLACs or is treated on site
- 3. Be free of fuel and oil leaks

## 13-12.02H Discharge Water Energy Dissipation and Erosion Control

Discharge water from pumps, pipes, ditches, or other conveyances must have BMPs to dissipate the flows and velocity of water discharged from the temporary diversion system if erosion would otherwise occur.

Energy dissipation measures:

- 1. May be plastic sheeting, flared end sections, rubber matting, or other materials appropriate for the design hydraulics
- 2. Must be anchored to prevent movement by expected flows
- 3. Must be removed when the TCDS is removed

#### 13-12.03 CONSTRUCTION

#### 13-12.03A General

Construction, use and removal of the TCDS is restricted to the time period from <u>June 1</u> to <u>October 15</u>. If the work cannot be completed during the initial restricted time period, remove TCDS, restore the creek to original flow condition, and reconstruct the TCDS after <u>June 1</u> of the following year. No work is allowed within the stream except during the restricted time period.

Do not use motorized equipment or vehicles in areas of flowing or standing water for the construction or removal of the TCDS in compliance with section 13-4.03.

Remove vegetation to ground level and clear away debris.

Place temporary or permanent fill as allowed by PLACs.

Place rock at outlet of diversion pipe under section 72-4.03, except motorized vehicles and equipment must not be used in areas of flowing or standing water.

Do not construct or reconstruct TCDS if the 72-hour forecasts predict a 50 percent or greater chance of rain in the project area.

Stop all work and remove all material and equipment from the creek between upstream and downstream cofferdams if the 72-hour forecasts predict a 50 percent or greater chance of rain in the project area and the predicted rainfall is estimated to produce a flow rate exceeding the design capacity of the TCDS.

If the required freeboard cannot be maintained and overtopping may occur, implement contingency plan to remove all workers, equipment, and potential sources of pollution from the dry working area of the creek bed.

The TCDS must be constructed within the temporary impact footprint as described in the environmental commitments.

Lap and join joints between the edges of impermeable plastic membrane with commercial-quality waterproof tape with minimum 4-inch lapping at the edges.

Seal openings or penetrations through the impermeable plastic membrane with commercial quality waterproof tape.

The TCDS must be water tight to keep the work area dry for construction and prevent the creation of pollutants. Maintain all portions of the TCDS and fix leaks as soon as they are discovered.

Contact water agencies that discharge to the construction area to ensure that unexpected water is not discharged during construction which could compromise the TCDS.

#### 13-12.03B Maintenance

Maintain the TCDS to provide a minimum freeboard of 12 inches between the water surface and the impermeable top of the cofferdams.

Do not discharge runoff from existing or proposed drainage systems into the dry work area between the cofferdams. Runoff from these systems may be connected to the diversion pipe or conveyed by pipes downstream of the cofferdam.

Prevent leaks in the TCDS. Provide seepage pumps as necessary and keep the work area dry to prevent the creation of sediment-laden water.

Repair holes, rips and voids in the impermeable plastic membrane with commercial-quality waterproof tape. Replace impermeable plastic membrane when patches or repairs compromise the impermeability of the material.

Repair TCDS within 24 hours after the damage occurs.

Prevent debris from entering the TCDS and receiving water.

Remove and immediately replace gravel, gravel-filled bags, impermeable plastic membrane, or plastic pipes contaminated by construction activities.

Remove sediment deposits and debris from the TCDS as needed. If removed sediment is deposited within project limits, it must be stabilized and not subject to erosion by wind or water, under sections 19-1.01 and 19-2.03 B.

## 13-12.03C Removal

When no longer required, remove all components of TCDS. Return the creek bed and banks to the original condition.

Do not excavate the native creek material. Backfill ground disturbance, including holes and depressions caused by the installation and removal of the TCDS with gravel. Maintain the original line and grade of the creek bed.

#### 13-12.04 PAYMENT

Not Used

## **END OF SECTION**

## 14 ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP

An ESA may exist on projects under this contract.

Before starting job site activities, if such ESA is in place, Contractors must install temporary high-visibility fence and silt fence to protect the ESA and mark its boundaries.

Access to an ESA other than that described is prohibited.

## Add to Section 14-2.03A:

If human remains are encountered, construction activities within 60 feet of discovery shall be stopped and redirected away from discovery and Tehama County Coroner notified. An evaluation of human remains shall occur and if determined they are of American Native origin the Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified so a Native American Most Likely Descendent (MLD) can inspect the site and remains. A report shall be prepared and submitted to Tehama County and Northwest Information Center documenting the finding, methods of identification, and recommendations for the treatment of the remains.

## Add to the 1st paragraph of section 14-6.03A:

Projects may be within or near habitat for the regulated species shown in the following table:

## **Regulated Species**

Salmon
Steelhead
Western Spadefoot
Western Pond Turtle
Roosting Bats
Migratory Birds
Swainson's Hawk
White-tailed Kite

## Replace item 1 in the 2nd paragraph of section 14-6.03A with:

1. Stop all work within a 500-foot radius of the discovery.

## Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 14-6.03B with:

The Department anticipates nesting or attempted nesting by migratory and nongame birds from <u>February 1</u> to August 31.

#### Replace item 1 in the list in the 6th paragraph of section 14-6.03B with:

1. Stop all work within a 500-foot radius of the discovery.

#### Add to section 14-6.03C:

Regulated fish and other aquatic species may potentially be adjacent project sites

If water is present during the work period, in-water construction activities can be undertaken only if:1) the water temperature equals or exceeds 25°C, and 2) an anadromous/native fish survey is completed by a qualified biologist at the outset of each day that in-water work occurs.

Implement the following protection measures:

- 1. Install exclusionary material, a cofferdam, or a combination of both
- 2. Provide a Contractor-supplied biologist to relocate the fish if relocation is allowed

Capture methods may include fish landing nets, dip nets, buckets and by hand. Capture aquatic life must be released immediately in the closet body of water adjacent to the work site, identified by the biologist and authorized by the Engineer. The biologist must possess a valid Scientific Collecting Permit, per CDFW regulations, for the removal and relocation of any organism during dewatering activities.

Handle regulated fish to minimize stress by:

- 1. Keeping the fish in water to the maximum extent possible during relocation
- 2. Keeping the fish in cool, shaded, and aerated water while in captivity
- 3. Protecting the fish from excessive noise, handling, temperature variation, jostling, or overcrowding while in captivity
- 4. Removing the fish from water only when releasing them
- 5. Segregating young-of-year salmonids into separate containers from older salmonids and other aquatic predators

Exclusion material must be 0.25-inch stretched mesh.

Exclude fish from the work area in the following sequence:

- 1. Install exclusion materials and remove as many fish as possible
- 2. Install a cofferdam or water bypass
- 3. Gradually dewater the work area
- 4. Remove the remaining fish using one or a combination of seining, baited minnow traps, and dip net and hand removal

Maintain exclusion material and cofferdams such that regulated fish are prevented from entering the work area.

The pump screen's approach velocity must not exceed 0.33 feet per second.

#### **Add to section 14-6.03D(1):**

The biologist must posses a valid Scientific Collecting Permit for the removal and relocation of any organism during dewatering activities.

Within 30 days before starting job site activities, submit protocols for species protection surveys. Use protocols required in the PLACs.

Survey the job site for regulated species and submit a preconstruction survey report within 3 days before starting work or vegetation removal.

Conduct a nesting bird survey of the project area within 14 days of the start of construction.

Contractor supplied biologist must be onsite if dewatering a live stream.

Job Order Contracting General Civil Services 2025

Bid Book/ Special Provisions

The preconstruction survey report must include one of the following:

- 1. Detailed observations and locations where regulated species were observed
- 2. Statement that no regulated species were observed

Submit an initial monitoring report as an informational submittal within 12 hours after starting ground-disturbing activities.

Submit a biological resource incident report within 24 hours of the incident.

The incident report must include:

- 1. Description of any take of regulated species or any violation of a biological resource PLAC
- 2. Species name and number taken
- 3. Details of required notifications with contact information
- 4. Corrective actions proposed or taken
- 5. Disposition of taken species

Submit an annual monitoring report no later than January 15 during each year of construction.

The annual monitoring report must include:

- 1. Start and end dates of construction
- 2. Project impacts on the regulated species
- 3. Species protection measures and implementation details
- 4. Incidental take details, including species name, number taken, people contacted, contact information, and disposition of taken species
- 5. Assessment of the effectiveness of the species protection measures in mitigating project impacts
- 6. Recommendations for improving species protection measures

Submit a final monitoring report no later than 20 days after completion of the project. If the report requires revisions, the Department provides comments. Submit a revised report within 7 days of receiving comments. The final monitoring report must be a cumulative report including:

- 1. Start and end dates of construction
- 2. Project impacts on the regulated species
- 3. Species protection measures and implementation details
- 4. Incidental take details, including species name, number taken, people contacted, contact information, and disposition of taken species
- 5. Assessment of the effectiveness of the species protection measures in mitigating project impacts
- 6. Recommendations for improving species protection measures

## Replace *Reserved* in section 14-6.03D(3) with:

On a Job Order by Job Order basis, if requested, contractors must prepare and present a biological resource information program to familiarize personnel with regulated species and habitats, related laws and regulations, and species protection measures and protocols.

The biological resource information program must include:

- 1. Identification of the job site, ESAs, and species protection areas
- 2. Description of the regulated species and its general ecology
- 3. Description of habitats used by the regulated species and their locations
- 4. Requirements for protecting regulated species
- 5. Definition and consequences of take of regulated species

- 6. Response plan for encounters with the regulated species or a species that looks like one
- 7. Permit requirements for touching or moving a regulated species
- 8. Requirements for species protection
- 9. Description of avoidance and minimization measures
- 10. Handout materials about the regulated species, its habitats, and species protection measures

A Contractor-supplied biologist must develop the program and present the biological resource training.

Submit an outline of your program within 7 days after Contract approval. If the submittal is rejected, submit a revised outline within 7 days of receiving the rejection.

Allow 15 days for the Department's review of your outline of the program.

Notify the Engineer at least 7 days before the 1st training session. Submit an attendance list with the printed and signed name of each attendee within 2 business days after each session. Submit a separate attendance list for each subsequent training session for new personnel.

Personnel who must complete biological resource training include laborers, tradesmen, material suppliers, equipment maintenance staff, supervisors, foremen, office staff, food vendors, and other workers who stay at the job site longer than 30 minutes.

Provide a handout that describes the regulated species, their habitats, and protection measures as listed in species protection or in PLACs.

Distribute the handout to each attendee. Display and maintain the handout at all construction field offices and on all information boards.

## **Replace RESERVED in section 14-6.05 with:**

#### 14-6.05 INVASIVE SPECIES CONTROL

Section 14-6.05 includes specifications for preventing the introduction and spread of invasive species to and from the job site.

Comply with section 13-4.03E(3).

At least 2 business days before using vehicles and equipment on the job site, submit a signed statement that the vehicles and equipment have been cleaned of soil, seeds, vegetative matter, and other such debris that may introduce or spread invasive species. The statement must include:

- 1. List of the vehicles and equipment with identifying numbers
- 2. Date of cleaning for each vehicle and piece of equipment
- 3. Description of the cleaning process
- 4. Measures to be taken to ensure the vehicles and equipment remain clean until operation at the job site
- 5. Verification that the equipment has not been operated in waters known to be infested by aquatic invasive species

Update the list of vehicles and equipment as needed.

Clean the following vehicles and equipment before operation at the job site:

- 1. Excavators
- 2. Loaders
- 3. Graders
- 4. Haul trucks
- 5. Water trucks
- 6. Cranes

- 7. Tractors
- 8. Trailers
- 9. Dump trucks
- 10. Waders

Do not clean vehicles, equipment, or tools at locations near sensitive habitat or waterways at the job site. Clean vehicles and equipment every time before it enters or leaves a sensitive habitat. Within project limits, implement the following protection measures:

- 1. Before entering or exiting, pressure wash your vehicles and equipment:
  - 1.1. At a temperature of 140 degrees F
  - 1.2. With a minimum nozzle pressure of 2,500 psi
  - 1.3. With a minimum fan tip angle of 45 degrees
- 2. Thoroughly scrub personal work equipment and tools, such as boots, waders, hand tools, and any other equipment used in water at the job site, using a stiff-bristled brush to remove any organisms. Decontaminate the equipment by one of the following methods:
  - 2.1. Immerse the equipment in water at a temperature of 140 degrees F for at least 5 minutes. If necessary, weigh down the equipment to keep it immersed in the water.
  - 2.2 Freeze the equipment to a temperature of 32 degrees F or colder for at least 8 hours.
  - 2.3 Thoroughly dry the equipment in a weed-free area for at least 48 hours.
- 3. Clean personal work equipment, and tools over drip pans or containment mats at the job site. Collect and contain the wastewater. Dispose of the wastewater at a waste management facility.

## Replace Reserved in section 14-6.06 with:

## 14-6.06 BAT AND BIRD EXCLUSION DEVICES

## 14-6.06A General

## 14-6.06A(1) Summary

Section 14-6.06 includes specifications for exclusion devices to prevent:

- 1. Roosting of bats.
- 2. Nesting of migratory birds and nongame birds.

Use exclusion devices at the following locations:

- 1. Temporary structures required to construct the project
- 2. Areas identified during the pre-construction survey for nesting of migratory and nongame birds
- 3. Areas listed in the PLAC.
- 4. Existing bridges

#### **14-6.06A(2) Definitions**

**temporary structure**: Protective covers, falsework, scaffolding, or similar components required to construct the project

**nesting season**: The dates the Department anticipates nesting or attempted nesting. Comply with Section 14-6.03B.

day roost: A roost site that bats utilize during daylight hours for resting and pup rearing including abutment joints, span hinge joints, bent joints, bridge cavities, deck drains and any access or openings to cells of box girders. Day roosting occurs April 1 through September 15.

**night roost**: A roost site bats use during hours of darkness for resting including any portion of a structure or components of that structure.

**continuous construction presence**: Actual construction activity or personnel presence, or equivalent construction noise of at least 85 dBA hourly average measured from the source to the receptor no fewer than 5 days each week for at least 8 daylight hours per day.

## **14-6.06A(3)** Submittals

Submit an exclusion plan prepared by a qualified biologist to the Engineer. Allow 10 days for review.

Do not start jobsite activities until the plan is authorized.

The exclusion plan must include:

- 1. Title sheet
- 2. Table of contents
- 3. Exclusion devices to be used to exclude bats and nesting birds
- 4. Location and schedule of exclusion devices
- 5. Disposal method for partially constructed and unoccupied nests
- 6. Daily inspection and maintenance schedule
- 7. Methods of maintenance, including types of adhesive tape and/or sealants for repair, bioacoustic deterrent, and visual deterrent devices
- 8. PLAC requirements

## 14-6.06A(4) Quality Assurance

Monitor the effectiveness and maintenance of the exclusion devices.

If a nest becomes established during the nesting season:

- 1. Do not remove the nest.
- 2. Immediately contact the Engineer for evaluation and discussions of possible actions to avoid disrupting the nesting activity.

#### 14-6.06B Materials

Materials for bird exclusion must be one or a combination of the following:

- 1. Polytetrafluorethylene (PTFE) sheeting.
- 2. Acoustical deterrent
- 3. Visual deterrent
- 4. Other materials authorized by the engineer.

You may not use devices that include netting.

Material for bat exclusion must be one or a combination of the following:

- 1. Backer rod
- 2. Expansion foam
- 3. Non-toxic foamed concrete (similar to Aircrete, Foamcrete or Cellular Lightweight Concrete)
- Steel wool
- 5. Other materials authorized by the engineer

Exclusion devices must be installed to withstand the elements including wind and rain.

#### 14-6.06C Construction

Install exclusion devices:

- 1. For temporary structures, at the time of erection.
- 2. For existing structures:
  - 2.1 Prior to the start of construction.

- 2.2 During the non-nesting season and non-day roosting time period.
- 3. To completely block bat and bird access to the bridge or temporary structure, including its exterior girders and overhang.
- 4 For areas identified during the pre-construction survey for nesting of migratory and nongame birds

A qualified biologist must oversee installation, maintenance and removal of the exclusion device.

During the nesting season, nest removal is not allowed. If attempted nesting occurs during the nesting season, you may remove the nest material prior to the nests becoming one-third complete.

During the non-nesting season, nest removal is allowed.

Clean bat and bird waste or other debris from the contact surfaces of the bridge girders before installing the exclusion devices.

Install bat exclusion devices 2 hours after sunset and when the ambient air temperature is at least 45 degrees Fahrenheit.

Monitor weekly to maintain and repair devices.

Upon completion of the work, remove exclusion devices.

## **14-6.06D** Payment

Not Used

## Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 14-8.02 with:

Noise from job site activities must not exceed 86 dBA Lmax at 50 feet from the job site from 6 p.m. to 8 a.m.

Do not operate construction equipment or run equipment engines from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. or on Sundays at the job site except to:

- 1. Service traffic-control facilities
- 2. Service construction equipment

#### Add to the end of section 14-9.02:

The US EPA has established the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP). Under the Health & Safety Code § 39658(b)(1), your demolition and rehabilitation activities must comply with 40 CFR 61, Subpart M (National Emission Standard for Asbestos).

Asbestos survey and sampling have not been done. Perform asbestos testing before demolition. Payment for testing is included in the payment for Bridge removal. If asbestos is found, removal and disposal will be paid by Supplemental Job Order.

Notify the US EPA and the California Air Resources Board of your demolition activities even if the activities will not disturb asbestos-containing material.

You may obtain an Asbestos NESHAP Notification of Demolition and Renovation Form at the California Air Resources Board's website:

http://www.arb.ca.gov/enf/asbestos/asbestos.htm

Instead of the 10 working days specified at the website, mail or deliver the form with the necessary attachments at least 15 days before starting demolition or rehabilitation activities to:

US EPA - REGION IX ASBESTOS NESHAP NOTIFICATION (AIR-5) 75 HAWTHORNE ST SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105

Mail or fax a copy of the notification form to:

CALIFORNIA AIR RESOURCES BOARD ENFORCEMENT DIVISION ASBESTOS NESHAP NOTIFICATION P.O. BOX 2815 SACRAMENTO, CA 95812

FAX: (916) 229-0645

Submit a copy of the notification form and attachments as informational submittals before starting demolition or rehabilitation activities.

If you discover unanticipated asbestos-containing material during the demolition or rehabilitation activities, immediately stop work in that area and notify the Engineer. The Department will use other forces to remove and dispose of the material. Do not resume work in the area until authorized.

Notify the US EPA Region IX and the California Air Resources Board of a change to your demolition or rehabilitation activities, including a revised work plan or the discovery of unanticipated asbestos-containing materials, within 2 days of the change or discovery.

#### Add to first list under Section 14-11.03:

- 15. Hazardous materials used during Project that exceed regulated quantities shall be reported to the Environmental Management Department, Hazardous Materials Division (HMD). A Hazardous Materials Plan (HMP) shall be filed with HMD.
- 16. Hazardous waste and petroleum products shall be collected and removed from site per Resource Conservation and Recovery Act regulations and Fed/OHSA standards.
- 17. Fueling and maintenance of construction equipment shall only take place in staging areas.
- 18. Fire extinguishers shall be on-site to adequately contain fires caused by machinery or equipment.

#### Add to the end of Section 14-11.04:

The Contractor must also comply with the requirements of the Tehama County Air Pollution Control District. If required, compliance may include submitting Dust Control Plan(s) and/or obtaining necessary permits.

A fee may be required to obtain a fugitive dust permit. Full compensation for conforming to the provisions in the Section and the requirements of the permit, including the cost of the permit, shall be considered as included in the contract prices paid for the various items of work and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor.

## 14-11.14 TREATED WOOD WASTE

## 14-11.14A General

Section 14-11.14 includes specifications for handling, storing, transporting, and disposing of treated wood waste. Manage treated wood waste under Health & Safety Code §25230 et seq.

Wood removed from bridge approach railing and roadside signs is treated wood waste.

#### 14-11.14B Submittals

Within 5 business days of disposing of treated wood waste, submit as an informational submittal a copy of each completed shipping record and weight receipt.

## **14-11.14C** Training

Provide training to personnel who handle or may come in contact with treated wood waste. Training must include:

- 1. Requirements of 8 CA Code of Regs
- 2. Procedures for identifying and segregating treated wood waste
- 3. Safe handling practices
- 4. Requirements of Health & Safety Code §25230 et seq
- 5. Proper disposal methods

Maintain training records for 3 years after contract acceptance.

## 14-11.14D Storage of Treated Wood Waste

Store treated wood waste at the jobsite until transport to the CA permitted disposal site.

Until disposal, store treated wood waste using the following methods:

- 1. Raise the waste on blocks above a foreseeable run-on elevation and protect it from precipitation for no more than 90 days.
- 2. Place the waste on a containment surface or pad protected from run-on and precipitation for no more than 180 days.
- 3. Place the waste in water-resistant containers designed for shipping or solid waste collection for no more than 1 year.
- 4. Place the waste in a storage building as defined in Health & Safety Code §25230 et seq.

Prevent unauthorized access to treated wood waste using a secure enclosure such as a locked chain-link-fenced area or a lockable shipping container located within the job site.

Resize and segregate treated wood waste at a location where debris including sawdust and chips can be contained. Collect and manage the debris as treated wood waste.

Identify treated wood waste and accumulation areas using water-resistant labels that comply with Health & Safety Code §25230 et seq. Labels must include:

- 1. The words TREATED WOOD WASTE Do not burn or scavenge
- 2. The words *Caltrans District* and the district number
- 3. The words Construction Contract and the contract number
- 4. District office address
- 5. Engineer's name, address, and telephone number
- 6. Contractor's contact name, address, and telephone number
- 7. Date placed in storage

## 14-11.14E Transport and Disposal of Treated Wood Waste

Dispose of treated wood waste within:

- 1. 90 days of generation if stored on blocks
- 2. 180 days of generation if stored on a containment surface or pad
- 3. 1 year of generation if stored in a water-resistant container or within 90 days after the container is full, whichever is shorter

4. 1 year of generation if stored in a storage building as defined in Health & Safety Code §25230 et seq

Before transporting treated wood waste, obtain agreement from the receiving facility that it will accept the waste. Protect shipments of the waste from loss and exposure to precipitation. For projects generating 10,000 lbs or more of treated wood waste, request a generator's EPA Identification Number from the Engineer at least 5 business days before the 1st shipment. Each shipment must be accompanied by a shipping record such as a bill of lading or invoice that includes:

- 1. The words Caltrans District and the district number
- 2. The words *Construction Contract* and the contract number
- 3. District office address
- 4. Engineer's name, address, and telephone number
- 5. Contractor's name, contact person, and telephone number
- 6. Receiving facility's name and address
- 7. Description of the waste (e.g., treated wood waste with preservative type if known or unknown/mixture)
- 8. Project location
- 9. Estimated weight or volume of the shipment
- 10. Date accumulation begins
- 11. Date of transport
- 12. Name of transporter
- 13. Date of receipt by the treated wood waste facility
- 14. Weight of shipment measured by the receiving facility
- 15. Generator's US EPA Identification Number for projects generating 10,000 lbs or more of treated wood waste

The shipping record must be 8-1/2 by 11 inches and a 4-part carbon or carbonless form to provide copies for the Engineer, transporter, and treated wood waste facility.

Transport treated wood waste directly to the CA permitted disposal site after leaving the jobsite. Do not mix treated wood waste from the job site with waste from any other generator.

Dispose of treated wood waste at one of the following:

- 1. An approved California disposal site operating under a RWQCB permit that includes acceptance of treated wood waste
- 2. California disposal site operating under a DTSC permit that includes acceptance of treated wood waste

Treated wood waste may be disposed as a hazardous waste at any of the following Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Subtitle C disposal facilities:

- 1. US Ecology, Beatty, Nevada
- 2. US Ecology, Grandview, Idaho
- 3. Chemical Waste Management of the Northwest, Arlington, Oregon

## 14-11.14F Payment

Payment for handling, storing, transporting, and disposing of treated wood waste is included in the payment for the bid items involved.

## END OF SECTION

## 15 EXISTING FACILITIES

Delete the 7th paragraph of section 15-1.03B.

#### Add to the end of Section 15-1.03C:

At least 2 business days before hauling the material to the salvaged material stockpile location, notify the Engineer and inform a Tehama County representative at telephone no. (530) 385-1462.

The stockpile location is:

Tehama County Public Works Maintenance Yard 9380 San Benito Avenue Gerber, CA 96035

#### Replace Reserved Section 15-1.03D with:

## **15-1.03D Removing Pavement**

Remove existing pavement as shown on plans and as directed in the field by the Engineer by saw cutting asphalt concrete.

Where portions of the surface are to remain in place, saw cut a neat line along the edge of the portion to remain in place before starting the removal operation.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 16 TEMPORARY FACILITIES

No Changes to this section.

#### DIVISION III EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE GENERAL

#### 17 GENERAL

#### Add to section 17-2.03A:

Stumps within two feet of the grading plane must be removed completely.

Vegetation removal and construction activities must occur before February 1 or after August 31 to avoid impacts on nesting migratory birds. If vegetation removal and construction must occur during the nesting season, a nesting survey must be conducted by a qualified biologist to identify active nests in and adjacent to the work area.

#### Replace the 4th paragraph in section 17-2.03A with:

Clear and grub vegetation only within the excavation and embankment slope lines, contour grading limits, fence work limits, and drainage limits.

# Add to section 17: 17-3 REMOVE TREE

#### 17-3.01 GENERAL

Section 17-3 includes specifications for tree removal.

#### **17-3.02 MATERIALS**

Not Used

#### 17-3.03 CONSTRUCTION

Remove and dispose trees shown. Dispose of trees under section 17-2.03D.

Trees, including stumps, roots and objectionable material, must be removed to a depth of one-foot below the original ground level. Roots must be treated and killed with an approved herbicide under section 20-1.02C.

Backfill holes resulting from tree removal under section 19-3.

#### **17-3.04 PAYMENT**

Payment for tree removal is included in the payment for clearing and grubbing.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 18 DUST PALLIATIVES

No Changes to this section.

#### 19 EARTHWORK

#### Add to section 19-1.03A:

Double handling of earthwork materials may be required.

#### Add to section 19-1.04:

Payment for double handling of earthwork materials is included in the payment for roadway excavation.

#### Add to the end of Section 19-2.01A:

Quantity calculations for Roadway Excavation and Imported Borrow do not consider shrinkage and/or compaction.

#### Replace the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th paragraphs of Section 19-2.03B with:

Dispose of surplus material. Ensure enough material is available to complete the embankments before disposing of it.

#### Add to Section 19-2.03B:

No castings or spoil from excavation operations allowed on the Creekside of the excavation site.

#### Replace section 19-2.03D(2) with:

#### 19-2.03D(2) Topsoil

Section 19-2.03D(2) includes specifications for excavation, handling, and placing topsoil.

Excavate the top 4 inches of topsoil. Include leaf litter and extraneous organic matter in the excavation.

Topsoil must be placed to fill the voids in the rock slope protection and provide substrate for seeding. Additionally, topsoil must be stockpiled and redistributed as close to its original location as possible over the construction area before applying permanent erosion control.

Any excess topsoil can be distributed over roadway fill slopes before the application of permanent erosion control measures.

Place and spread the topsoil in its final position to a uniform layer thickness. Compact the topsoil finished surface uniformly using track-mounted equipment run perpendicular to slope contours. Section 19-5.03C does not apply to topsoil compaction.

If you stockpile topsoil, stockpiles must:

- 1. Not be higher than 5 feet
- 2. Not be covered with a material that will stop air circulation, increase soil temperatures, or harm beneficial biological activity and resident seeds
- 3. Be marked with signs and flags as *Topsoil*

#### Add to Section 19-2.04:

Payment for excavating, stockpiling and placing topsoil is included in the payment for rock slope protection and roadway excavation.

#### Add to the end of section 19-3.01A:

Structure backfill includes constructing the geocomposite drain system. The systems must comply with section 68-7.

#### Add to section 19-3.02C:

No waiting period is required prior to driving piles at the abutments and piers. The waiting period applies for earthwork within 150 feet of the abutments. This waiting period is not considered a settlement period as referenced in Section 19-6.03D.

#### Add to the beginning of section 19-3.03B(1):

For footings at locations with structure excavation (Type D), ground or surface water is expected to be encountered but seal course concrete is not needed.

#### Replace 1st sentence in the 6th paragraph in section 19-3.03B(4) with:

If cofferdams are used, remove them completely after completing substructure construction.

#### **Add to section 19-3.03E(1):**

On Kirkwood, place structure backfill behind abutments and wingwalls 10 days after the superstructure is completed. Half of one abutment must be filled vertically before backfilling half of the opposite abutment.

On Kirkwood, any imported fill or material used as structure backfill must have 100% passing 3 inch sieve and have low expansion potential [Expansion Index (EI) < 50 and Sand Equivalent (SE) > 20], and be approved.

#### Add to section 19-3.04:

Structure excavation for footings at locations not shown as structure excavation (Type D) and where ground or surface water is encountered is paid for as structure excavation (bridge).

Pervious backfill material placed within the limits of payment for bridges is paid for as structure backfill (bridge).

#### Add to the end of Section 19-5.03A:

Relative compaction shall mean the ratio of the field dry density to the laboratory maximum dry density expressed as a percentage.

#### Add to Section 19-7.02A:

Obtaining imported borrow includes the following:

- 1. Constructing an access road, if required.
- 2. Clearing and grubbing the material site.
- 3. Selecting material within the source.
- 4. Screening and wasting from 30 to 60 percent of the finer material.

5. Washing materials so that the imported borrow complies with the sand equivalent requirements.

#### Add to Section 19-7.02C:

Imported borrow placed within 4 feet of the finished grade must have an R-value of at least 11. Strip materials that adversely affect the imported borrow properties.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 20 LANDSCAPE

No changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 21 EROSION CONTROL

Seed mix must be approved by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife before ordering. Verify with the Engineer it is approved before ordering.

#### END OF SECTION

#### **22 FINISHING ROADWAY**

No Changes to this section.

## **DIVISION IV SUBBASES AND BASES**

#### 23 GENERAL

No Changes to this section.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### 24 STABILIZED SOILS

No Changes to this section.

**END OF SECTION** 

## 25 AGGREGATE SUBBASES

No Changes to this section.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### 26 AGGREGATE BASES

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 27 CEMENT TREATED BASES

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 28 CONCRETE BASES

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 29 TREATED PERMEABLE BASES

No Changes to this section.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### 30 RECLAIMED PAVEMENTS

No Changes to this section.

## END OF SECTION

## 31-35 RESERVED

No Changes to this section.

## **DIVISION V SURFACING AND PAVEMENTS**

#### 36 GENERAL

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 37 BITUMINOUS SEALS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 38 RESERVED

No Changes to this section.

END OF SECTION

#### 39 ASPHALT CONCRETE

#### Add to the table in the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.01A(4)(h)(iii)(B):

-	whichever is greater
Fine durability index AASHTO T 210	1 per 3,000 tons or 1 per paving day, whichever is greater
Sodium sulfate soundness <sup>d</sup> AASHTO T 104	1 per project

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>e</sup>The test is required only if the aggregate source is in Lassen, Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

#### Replace section 39-2.01B(2)(b) with:

Determine the plasticity index of the aggregate blend under California Test 204. Use only the aggregate blend with plasticity index equal to or less than 10.

Treat aggregate with lime slurry with marination.

# Replace 0.8-1.5 in the row for *Combined* in the table in the 7th paragraph of section 39-2.01B(4)(c)(i) with:

1.0 - 1.5

## Replace the 2nd sentence in the paragraph of section 39-2.01B(10) with:

Choose from CRS2, CQS1, or PMCRS2 asphaltic emulsion or asphalt binder.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>d</sup>The test is required only if the aggregate source is in Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

#### Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 39-2.01D with:

Payment for tack coat is included in the payment for hot mix asphalt.

#### **Add to section 39-2.02A(1):**

Do not place Type A HMA on the traveled way from November 1 to May 1.

#### Add to the table in the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(b)(ii):

Coarse durability index <sup>e</sup> , D <sub>c</sub>	AASHTO T 210	1 per 3,000 tons or 1 per paving day,
		whichever is greater
Fine durability index, D <sub>f</sub>	AASHTO T 210	1 per 3,000 tons or 1 per paving day,
		whichever is greater
Sodium sulfate soundness (max	AASHTO T 104	1 per project
loss @ 5 cycles, %) <sup>f</sup>		

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>e</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Lassen, Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

# Replace 40 in the row for Los Angeles Rattler in the table in item 1 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e) with:

25

#### Add to the table in item 1 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e):

Coarse durability index, D <sub>c</sub> (min) <sup>e</sup>	AASHTO T 210	65
Fine durability index, D <sub>f</sub> (min)	AASHTO T 210	50
Sodium sulfate soundness (max loss @ 5 cycles, %) <sup>f</sup>	AASHTO T 104	25

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>e</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Lassen, Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>f</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

Moisture susceptibility (min, tensile strength ratio)	AASHTO T 283 <sup>i</sup>	80
---	---------------------------	----

#### Add to the table in item 3 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e):

Surface abrasion loss (max, g/cm <sup>2</sup> )	California Test 360	0.4
---	---------------------	-----

# Replace the row for *Moisture susceptibility, wet strength* in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.02B(2) with:

Moisture susceptibility (min, tensile strength ratio)	AASHTO T 283 <sup>c,d</sup>	80

#### Replace *Reserved* in section 39-2.02B(3) with:

The grade of asphalt binder for Type A HMA must be PG 64-10.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>f</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

For Type A HMA using RAP substitution of greater than 15 percent of the aggregate blend, the virgin binder grade must comply with the PG binder grade specified above with 6 degrees C reduction in the upper and lower temperature classification.

For Type A HMA using RAP substitution of 15 percent or less of the aggregate blend, the grade of the virgin binder must comply with the PG binder grade specified above.

# Replace 40 in the row for Los Angeles Rattler in the table in the paragraph of section 39-2.02B(4)(a) with:

25

#### Add to the table in the paragraph of section 39-2.02B(4)(a):

Coarse durability index, D <sub>c</sub> (min) <sup>c</sup>	AASHTO T 210	65
Fine durability index, D <sub>f</sub> (min)	AASHTO T 210	50
Sodium sulfate soundness (max loss @ 5 cycles, %) <sup>d</sup>	AASHTO T 104	25

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>c</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Lassen, Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

#### Add to the beginning of section 39-2.02C:

Use a material transfer vehicle when placing Type A HMA if:

- 1. Quantity of HMA to be paved is greater than 1,000 tons.
- 2. Any of the following exists:
  - 2.1. Paving is allowed and the ambient air temperature is below 70 degrees F.
  - 2.2. Time from discharge to truck at the HMA plant until transfer to the paver's hopper is 90 minutes or greater.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 40 CONCRETE PAVEMENT

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 41 EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 42 GROOVE AND GRIND CONCRETE

No Changes to this section.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>d</sup>Perform this test if the aggregate source is in Modoc, Siskiyou, or Shasta County.

	]	END OF SECTION	
	43	RESERVED	
No Changes to this section.			
	]	END OF SECTION	
	44	RESERVED	
No Changes to this section.			
	]	END OF SECTION	

## **DIVISION VI STRUCTURES**

#### 45 GENERAL

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 46 GROUND ANCHORS AND SOIL NAILS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 47 EARTH RETAINING SYSTEMS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 48 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 49 PILING

#### Add to section 49-1.03:

Expect difficult pile installation due to hard, dense soil and ground water seepage.

Pre-drilling and/or relief drilling may be required.

#### Add to the 2nd paragraph of Section 49-1.03:

No drill cuttings allowed on the creek side of the excavation site.

#### Add to section 49-2.01A(3)(a):

Before installing driven piles, submit a Pile and Driving Data Form for each pile type for each of the support locations or control zones shown in the following table:

		Support location
Bridge no.	Pile type	or control zone
08C0381	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Abutment 1
08C0381	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Abutment 2
08C0382	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Abutment 1
08C0382	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Pier 2
08C0382	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Pier 3
08C0382	Class 140 (Alternative W)	Abutment 4

# CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION LABORATORY

## PILE AND DRIVING DATA FORM

Structure Name:	Contract No.:		
	Project:		
Structure No.: Pile Driving Contractor or			
Dist./Co./Rte./Post Mi:	Subcontractor_	(Pile Driven By)	
l r <del></del>	Manufacturer: Model:		
1 1 1	Type: Serial No.:	T. 10	
	Min Rated Energy: at Length of Stroke		
Ram Hammer			
	Ram Weight:	кірѕ	
	Modifications:		
Anvil			
	Material:		
Capblock	Material: Thickness: in Area:	in <sup>2</sup>	
(Hammer	Modulus of Elasticity - E:	ksi	
Cushion)	Coefficient of Restitution - e:		
	E. 7		
	Helmet		
Pile Cap	Bonnet Weight:	kips	
	Anvil Block Drivehead		
	Drivenead		
	Material:		
Pile	Thickness:in Area:	in²	
Cushion	Modulus of Elasticity - E:	ksi	
	Coefficient of Restitution - e:		
l —	Pile Type:		
1 1 1	Pile Type: Length (In Leads):	ft	
1 1 1	Lb/ft.:Taper:		
Pile	Wall Thickness:	in	
1 1 1	Cross Sectional Area:	in <sup>2</sup>	
1 1 1	Design Pile Capacity:	kıps	
1 1 1	Description of Splice:		
1 1 1	Tip Treatment Description:		
—	Tip Treatment Description.		
DISTRIBUTE:	Note: If mandral on follower:	toolo gomente	
m 1.1	Note: If mandrel or follower is used to drive the pile, attach separate manufacturer's detail sheet(s) including weight and dimensions.		
Foundation Testing	manufacturer's detail sheet(s) including weight and diffie	11510115.	
	Submitted By:		
Translab, Geotechnical Design	Submitted By:		
— Geolecinical Design	Date:Phone No.:		
Resident Engineer			

#### Add to section 49-2.01C(2):

Do not use jetting or vibratory hammers to obtain specified tip elevation.

#### Add to section 49-2.01C(3):

Drilling through the center of open-ended steel shells or steel pipe piles to attain the specified tip elevation may be necessary. The diameter of the drilled hole must be no greater than 12 inches in diameter. Equipment or methods used for drilling holes must not cause quick soil conditions or cause scouring or caving of the hole. Drilling must not be used within 10 feet of the specified tip elevation. Do not drill before driving piles.

#### Add to section 49-2.01C(5):

If piles do not attain the nominal driving resistance at the specified tip elevation shown, the Engineer will select 2 piles or 10 percent of piles in the footing, whichever is greater, to stand 1 foot above specified cut-off elevation for a set period without driving. The set period must be at least 12 hours.

After the set period has elapsed, redrive the "soft" piles. If there is more than one "soft" pile the Engineer designates which piles are to be redriven. Do not used a cold hammer for redriving. Driving hammer must be warmed up before restrike begins by applying at least 20 blow counts to (1) another pile or (2) timber mats placed on the ground. Redriving consists of operating the driving hammer at full rated energy on the pile and calculating the nominal driving resistance of the pile.

Use the same pile driving methods, equipment and compressed pile cushion from the previous drive to restrike or redrive the pile unless the cushion is unacceptable due to deterioration, in which case use another acceptable cushion.

If the nominal driving resistance is attained for each pile designated to be redriven, the remaining piles in that footing are considered satisfactory and further driving is not required. If redriving the designated piles demonstrates that the nominal driving resistance has not been attained, redrive all "soft"piles in the footing until the nominal driving resistance is attained.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 50 PRESTRESSING CONCRETE

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 50-1.01C(3) with:

For initial review, submit 6 copies.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 51 CONCRETE STRUCTURES

#### **Add to section 51-1.01C(1):**

If the methacrylate crack treatment is applied to a bridge deck within 100 feet of a residence, business, or public space, submit a public safety plan. Include with the submittal:

1. Copy of public notification letter with a list of delivery addresses and posting locations. The letter must describe the work to be performed and state the treatment work locations, dates, and times. Deliver copies

- of the letter to residences and businesses within 100 feet of the treatment work and to local fire and police officials, at least 7 days before starting treatment activities. Post a copy of the letter at the job site.
- 2. Airborne emissions monitoring plan. Plan must include monitoring point locations. A CIH certified in comprehensive practice by the American Board of Industrial Hygiene must prepare and execute the plan.
- 3. Action plan for protecting the public if levels of airborne emissions exceed permissible levels.
- 4. Copy of the CIH's certification.

After completing methacrylate crack treatment activities, submit results from monitoring production airborne emissions as an informational submittal.

#### Replace the 1st paragraph of section 51-1.01C(1) with:

Submit a deck placement plan for concrete bridge decks. Include in the placement plan your method and equipment for ensuring that the concrete bridge deck is kept damp by misting immediately after finishing the concrete surface.

## Replace *Reserved* in section 51-1.01D(1) with:

The job site must have at least 4 airborne emissions monitoring points, including the mixing point, application point, and point of nearest public contact. Monitor airborne emissions during methacrylate crack treatment activities.

#### Add to section 51-1.03A:

Provide and install schedule 40 PVC for future utilities where shown. Payment is included in the payment for structural concrete, bridge.

#### **Add to section 51-1.03C(1):**

Remove pipe where inlet is placed and connect ends of pipe to the inlet. Payment is included in the payment for structural concrete, drainage inlet.

#### Replace the 1st paragraph of section 51-1.03F(5)(b)(i) with:

Except for bridge widenings, texture the bridge deck surfaces longitudinally by grinding and grooving.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 52 REINFORCEMENT

#### **Replace section 52-4 with:**

# 52-4 ELECTRIC-RESISTANCE WELDED STIRRUPS FOR CONCRETE BARRIER REINFORCEMENT CAGES

#### **52-4.01 GENERAL**

#### **52-4.01A Summary**

Section 52-4 includes specifications for welding longitudinal support wire to stirrups using electric-resistance welding (ERW) to partially fabricate reinforcing cages for concrete barriers.

Electric-resistance welded supports may be used only for concrete barrier stirrups on structures with uncoated reinforcement.

You may use ERW to weld support wire to no.5 reinforcing bars or smaller. The support wire must be W 6.5 or smaller.

#### 52-4.01B Definitions

**partially fabricated reinforcing cage:** Stirrups for concrete barrier reinforcing cages held in position by welded longitudinal support wires.

**lot:** 150 count, or fraction thereof, of welds for each size of reinforcing bar and support wire and for each change to the welding equipment settings.

#### 52-4.01C Submittals

#### 52-4.01C(1) General

Not Used

#### 52-4.01C(2) Certificate of Compliance

Submit a certificate of compliance for each shipment of partially fabricated cages. Include with the submittal:

- 1. Identification of each cage including lot numbers, welds traceable by welding clamp, and location tracking information.
- 2. Grade and size of welded reinforcement used for the stirrups and support wire.
- 3. For the reinforcing bar and support wire:
  - 3.1. Heat number
  - 3.2. Mill certificate

#### **52-4.01C(3)** Test Samples

Submit OA test samples to METS.

Include copies of certificates of compliance with the test samples.

#### 52-4.01C(4) Welding Quality Control Plan

Submit 2 copies of a welding QC plan for each subcontractor or supplier performing ERW. The QC plan must include:

- 1. WPSs
- 2. Names and certifications of welding personnel, including qualifications for the QC Manager
- 3. Welding procedures including current setting, welding clamp force, weld time, and hold time for each size of reinforcement to be welded
- 4. Welding equipment manufacturer's operating instructions including the recommended calibration frequency of the welding equipment
- 5. Documentation of ERW equipment calibration
- 6. Fabricator's OC Process Control Manual
- 7. Method for identifying welds and tracking lots

For the contents, format, and organization required for a welding QC plan, go to the METS website.

#### **52-4.01C(5) Shop Drawings**

Submit shop drawings showing the stirrup positioning, welded connections of the support wire to the stirrups, and welding equipment layout. Allow 15 days for the Engineer's review.

#### 52-4.01C(6) Prefabrication Test Results

Submit the prefabrication test results within 3 days of prefabrication testing. The prefabrication test results must include:

- 1. Contract number
- 2. Bridge number
- 3. Welds identified by welding clamp
- 4. Reinforcement and support wire sizes
- 5. Test specimen length
- 6. Physical condition of test samples
- 7. Notable defects
- 8. Ultimate tensile strength of each sample
- 9. Location of necking area of each sample

Allow 3 business days for the Engineer's review.

#### 52-4.01C(7) Quality Control Test Reports

Submit a QC test report within 7 days of testing for each lot. The report must be prepared by the authorized laboratory performing the testing. The report must be signed by the QC manager. For each lot, the report must include:

- 1. Contract number
- 2. Bridge number
- 3. Lot numbers with welds identified by welding clamp
- 4. Installed location of completed cages
- 5. Reinforcement and support wire sizes
- 6. Cage types
- 7. Cage lengths
- 8. Test specimen length
- 9. Physical condition of test samples
- 10. Notable defects
- 11. Ultimate tensile strength of each sample
- 12. Location of necking area of each test sample

Allow 3 business days for the Engineer's review.

#### 52-4.01D Quality Assurance

#### 52-4.01D(1) General

Provide a welding QC manager. The QC manager must be registered as a civil engineer in the State or currently certified as a CWI.

#### 52-4.01D(2) Prewelding Meeting

Before submitting a welding QC plan, hold a prewelding meeting to discuss the work and the requirements for the welding QC plan. The meeting attendees must include the Engineer, your welding QC manager, and a representative from each entity performing welding or welding inspection.

#### **52-4.01D(3)** Test Samples

Samples must be a minimum length of 4 feet of bar reinforcing steel with a support wire welded at midpoint. You may furnish shorter length samples if authorized.

Prepare the samples using the same materials, procedures, equipment, and equipment settings used in the work.

The welding clamps that produce the samples are determined by the Engineer.

Prepare QC test samples and the Department acceptance test samples concurrently:

- 1. During fabrication of samples representing the 1st lot
- 2. From 1 of every 5 subsequent lots, or fraction thereof, randomly selected by the Engineer

Job Order Contracting General Civil Services 2025

After receiving notification that lots are ready for QC testing, the Engineer (1) randomly selects test samples to represent each lot and (2) places tamper-proof markings or seals on the test samples.

Before transporting test samples to an authorized laboratory and METS:

- 1. Securely bundle and package the test samples for each test in a way that preserves their condition during transportation
- 2. Identify each test sample by lot number and Contract number using weatherproof markings
- 3. Attach a completed Sample Identification Card to each bundle

If a sample show signs of tampering before testing, the sample is rejected.

#### 52-4.01D(4) Quality Control

#### 52-4.01D(4)(a) General

Test the samples for tensile strength under California Test 670, Section E, Part III, Tensile Test.

Tensile testing must be performed by an authorized laboratory. The laboratory must be on the Authorized Laboratories List for testing reinforcing steel splices.

#### 52-4.01D(4)(b) Prefabrication Testing

Before the start of fabrication of production cages, prepare 4 samples from each welding clamp.

Notify the Engineer at least 5 business days before fabricating the samples.

If 3 or more of the 4 samples from each welding clamp attain the specified minimum tensile strength, the Department accepts the prefabrication test results.

If 2 of the 4 samples attain the specified minimum tensile strength, determine the cause of the failure and take corrective action as specified in section 52-4.01D(4)(c). Fabricate 4 additional samples from the clamp that produced the noncompliant samples and perform tensile tests until at least 3 of the 4 samples attain the specified minimum tensile strength.

Do not start fabrication of production cages until the Department accepts the test results.

#### 52-4.01D(4)(c) Fabrication Testing

During fabrication of production cages, for each lot prepare 8 test samples.

At least 5 business days before performing fabrication testing, notify the Engineer of:

- 1. Date of the testing
- 2. Location of the authorized laboratory where the tests will be conducted
- 3. Number of lots to be tested

Do not perform tests on test samples from bundles containing fewer than 8 samples. Test 4 of the samples. The Engineer determines the samples to be tested.

If 3 or more of the 4 samples from a lot attain the specified minimum tensile strength, the Department accepts the lot.

If 2 of the 4 samples from a lot attain the specified minimum tensile strength, perform additional tests on the remaining samples. If any of the additional samples do not attain the specified minimum tensile strength, the Department rejects the lot.

If a lot is rejected, stop production until the following corrective actions have been performed:

- 1. QC manager reviews your QC process
- 2. You have prepared a welding rejection mitigation report describing:
  - 2.1. Cause of the failure

- 2.2. Method used to identify the cause of failure
- 2.3. Identification of affected lots
- 2.4. Provisions for preventing similar failures in future lots
- 2.5. Procedure for repairing or replacing the welded connections in the rejected lot
- 3. Engineer has notified you that the welding rejection mitigation report is authorized

#### 52-4.01D(5) Department Acceptance

The Department accepts lots based on your QC tension test results specified in section 52-4.01D(4)(c).

The Department performs tensile test on samples from the 1st lot and from 1 of every 5 subsequent lots, or fraction thereof, randomly selected by the Engineer.

If 3 or more of the 4 samples attain the specified minimum tensile strength, the Department accepts the lot.

If 2 of the 4 samples attain the specified minimum tensile strength, fabricate 4 additional samples using the same materials and welding machine settings as the noncompliant lot. If any of the 4 additional samples do not attain the minimum specified tensile strength, the Department rejects the lot.

If QC and Department acceptance testing results have different compliance determinations, the Department will perform QA testing for all subsequent lots until QC testing and the Department testing are consistent for 2 consecutive lots before resuming testing for 1 of every 5 lots, or fraction thereof, as determined by the Engineer.

#### **52-4.02 MATERIALS**

#### **52-4.02A** General

Reinforcing bars must comply with ASTM A706, Grade 60.

Support wire must comply with the specifications for plain wire in ASTM A1064.

The tensile strength of reinforcing bars with the support wire welded to the bar must be at least 80,000 psi.

#### 52-4.02B Fabrication

Perform ERW at a fabrication shop using computer-controlled equipment.

Weld the support wire to the stirrups. The stirrups must be positioned as shown. The support wire must be capable of maintaining the dimensions, position, and shape of the stirrups until the cage is complete.

#### **52-4.03 CONSTRUCTION**

Provide bracing to avoid collapse of the cage during assembly, transportation, and placement as needed.

Field tack welding of support wire to reinforcement is not allowed.

Wiring longitudinal reinforcement at each stirrup intersection is not required.

#### **52-4.04 PAYMENT**

Not Used

#### END OF SECTION

#### 53 SHOTCRETE

No Changes to this section.

#### 54 WATERPROOFING

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 55 STEEL STRUCTURES

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 56 OVERHEAD SIGN STRUCTURES, STANDARDS AND POLES

#### Add to section 56-3:

#### **56-3.03 BOLLARD**

#### 56-3.03A General

Section 56-3.03 includes specifications for constructing steel bollards.

Submit a certificate of compliance for retroreflective sheeting.

#### 56-3.03B Materials

Concrete must comply with the specifications for minor concrete.

Material for steel bollards must comply with ASTM A53/A53M.

Pipe thickness must be 3/16".

Retroreflectivity for must comply with Table 2A-3, "Minimum Maintained Retroreflectivity Levels," of the *California MUTCD* and be on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation materials:

#### 56-3.03C Construction

The interface between the galvanized pipe and the retroreflective sheeting must be free of air bubbles or voids.

Dispose of surplus excavated material.

Backfill under section 19-3.

#### **56-3.03D** Payment

Not Used

#### 57 WOOD AND PLASTIC LUMBER STRUCTURES

#### Add to section 57-2:

#### 57-2.06 FOOT BRIDGE

#### 57-2.06A General

Section 57-2.06 includes specifications for constructing timber foot bridge.

Timber foot bridge must have handrails and be a minimum 4-feet wide and 15-feet long. It must span the drainage ditch shown and have a maximum longitudinal grade of 4.5%.

#### 57-2.06B Materials

The timber planks must be untreated Douglas fir Dense no. 1, rough sawn on top, optional surfaced on bottom.

Galvanize hardware under section 75-1.02B.

#### 57-2.06C Construction

Contractor must submit design plans of the foot bridge for review by the engineer before constructing.

#### **57-2.06D** Payment

Not Used

#### END OF SECTION

#### 58 SOUND WALLS

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 59 STRUCTURAL STEEL COATINGS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 60 EXISTING STRUCTURES

#### Add to section 60-2.01A:

As long as existing piles do not conflict with the proposed pile foundations and bridge construction, existing pile foundation elements (if present) should be cut off below grade and left in place to the extent possible.

#### **Add to section 60-2.02A(1):**

Provide protective covers preventing material, equipment, and debris from falling into the Creek.

## Replace #6 in the 2nd paragraph in section 60-2.02A(3) with:

6. Methods for preventing material, equipment, and debris from falling onto traffic, water or railroad property

#### **END OF SECTION**

## **DIVISION VII DRAINAGE FACILITIES**

	61	GENERAL
	U1	GENERAL
No Changes to this section.		
		END OF SECTION
	62	RESERVED
No Changes to this section.		
		END OF SECTION
	63	RESERVED
No Changes to this section.		
		END OF SECTION
	64	PLASTIC PIPE
No Changes to this section.		
		END OF SECTION
	65	CONCRETE PIPE
No Changes to this section.		
		END OF SECTION

**CORRUGATED METAL PIPE** 

**END OF SECTION** 

No Changes to this section.

**66** 

## STRUCTURAL PLATE CULVERTS **67** No Changes to this section. END OF SECTION **68 SUBSURFACE DRAINS** No Changes to this section. **END OF SECTION 69 OVERSIDE DRAINS** No Changes to this section. END OF SECTION 70 MISCELLANEOUS DRAINAGE FACILITIES No Changes to this section. **END OF SECTION** 71 **EXISTING DRAINAGE FACILITIES** Add to section 71-4.03C:

Enclosed form shown for capping inlet must be approved by the Engineer before ordering.

## **DIVISION VIII MISC. CONSTRUCTION**

#### 72 SLOPE PROTECTION

#### Add to section 72-2.02A:

RSP must meet the requirements of the California Department of Fish and Game permit.

## Replace the 1st paragraph of section 72-2.03A with:

Excavate the slope and footing trench for the rock slope protection.

Place topsoil and seed within the voids of the rock slope protection.

#### Add to section 72-2.03A:

Placement of RSP must meet the requirements of the California Department of Fish and Game permit.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 73 CONCRETE CURBS AND SIDEWALKS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

## 74 PUMPING AND CONTROLS

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 75 MISCELLANEOUS METAL

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 76 WELLS

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 77 LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE

No Changes to this section.

# INCIDENTAL CONSTRUCTION **78** No Changes to this section. END OF SECTION **79 RESERVED** No Changes to this section. **END OF SECTION** 80 **FENCES** Add to section 80-2.01A: Fence (Type WM, Metal T-Post), Temporary Fence (Type WM, Metal T-Post), Fence (Type BW, 5-Strand, Metal T-Post), and Temporary Fence (Type BW, 5-Strand, Metal T-Post) must comply with section 80-2. Replace Reserved in section 80-2.02A with: Posts must be metal. Add to the end of section 80-2.02B: Galvanize posts under section 75-1.02B. Add to section 80-15.01C: Schedule fence removal and construction to prevent access of the public to private property. Prevent livestock from escaping during fence removal and construction.

#### DIVISION IX TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

#### 81 MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES

No Changes to this section.

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### 82 SIGNS AND MARKERS

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

#### 83 RAILINGS AND BARRIERS

Replace item 1 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 83-2.02C(1)(a) with:

1. Wood line posts.

Replace item 2 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 83-2.02C(1)(a) with:

2. Wood blocks for line posts.

#### Add to section 83-2.02C(1)(a):

The exposed bolt threads on guardrail beyond the nut that are more than 0.5 inch must be cut off.

#### Replace *Reserved* in section 83-2.02C(3) with:

The offset from the face of the Type WB-31 transition railing to the hinge point must be at least 3'-6".

The offset from the face of the adjacent midwest guardrail system to the hinge point must be transitioned from the offset at the Type WB-31 transition railing to 4'-0" using a ratio of 6:1.

#### **Replace section 83-2.04B with:**

83-2.04B Alternative In-line Terminal Systems

83-2.04B(1) General

83-2.04B(1)(a) Summary

Section 83-2.04B includes specifications for constructing alternative in-line terminal systems.

#### 83-2.04B(1)(b) Definitions

Not Used

#### 83-2.04B(1)(c) Submittals

Submit a certificate of compliance for alternative in-line terminal systems.

#### 83-2.04B(1)(d) Quality Assurance

For each model of alternative in-line terminal system being installed, obtain the manufacturer's check list for the assembly and installation of the alternative in-line terminal systems from the manufacturer's representative or distributor. Notify the Engineer of the alternative in-line terminal systems to be installed at each location before starting installation activities. Complete, sign, and date the check list for each installed in-line terminal system and submit a copy of the completed and signed check list for each installed location, and include the following:

- 1. Contract number
- 2. Name of installation Contractor
- 3. Flare offset used in layout
- 4. Date of installation
- 5. Location on the project by post mile, and by station if stationing shown on plans
- 6. Name and signature of individual completing the checklist.

The Engineer signs and dates the completed check lists, verifying the in-line terminal system at each location was assembled and installed under the manufacturer's instructions and as described.

Use personnel trained by the manufacturer to install in-line terminal systems. A record of training provided by the manufacturer may be requested by the Engineer at any time.

#### 83-2.04B(2) Materials

Alternative in-line terminal systems must be one of the following or a Department-authorized equal:

Type SoftStop terminal systems must be SoftStop End Terminal System manufactured by Trinity
Highway Products, LLC, and must include the connection components. Type SoftStop terminal system Type SoftStop terminal system must be a SoftStop terminal with a System length of 50'-9 1/2" for
test level 3, manufactured by Trinity Highway Products, LLC, and must include items detailed for
SoftStop terminal system, as shown. The SoftStop terminal can be obtained from the manufacturer:

Address	Telephone no.
TRINITY HIGHWAY PRODUCTS	(800) 772-7976
LLC	
PO BOX 99	
CENTERVILLE UT 84012	

2. Type MSKT - Type MSKT terminal system must be a 31" MSKT Guard Rail End Terminal with a system length of 50'-0" as manufactured by Road Systems, Inc., located in Big Spring, Texas, and must include items detailed for Type MSKT terminal system shown on the plans. The MSKT Guard Rail End Terminal can be obtained from the distributor:

Address	Telephone no.
UNIVERSAL INDUSTRIAL SALES	(801) 785-0505
PO BOX 699	·
PLEASANT GROVE UT 84062	
GREGORY INDUSTRIES INC	(330) 477-4800
4100 13TH ST SW	·
CANTON OH 44708	

3. Type MAX-Tension Tangent Guardrail End Treatment by Barrier Systems, Inc. is a tangent, re-directive gating guardrail terminal. The MAX-Tension has a length of 55'-1/2", and can be flared for an offset of 0 to 2 feet at the head. The MAX-Tension terminal can be obtained from the distributor:

Address	Telephone no.
STATEWIDE SAFETY AND SIGNS	(800) 770-2644
INC	
130 GROBRIC COURT	
FAIRFIELD CA 94533	

#### 83-2.04B(3) Construction

Identify each terminal system by painting the type of terminal system in 2-inch-high, neat, black letters and figures on the backside of the rail element between system posts number 4 and 5. Paint must be metallic acrylic resin type spray paint. Before applying terminal system identification, the surface to receive terminal system identification must be free of all dirt, grease, oil, salt, or other contaminants by washing the surface with detergent or other suitable cleaner. Rinse thoroughly with fresh water and allow to fully dry.

Install Type SoftStop terminal system under the manufacturer's installation instructions. For Type SoftStop terminal system, use W6 x 8.5 steel yielding terminal posts for Posts 1 and 2 and standard W6 x 8.5 steel posts for the other posts. Drive all posts or place them in drilled holes. Backfill the space around the posts with selected earth that is free of rock. Moisten and thoroughly compact each layer. For the terminal with a system length of 50'-9 1/2" or system length of 38'-3 1/2", all blocks must be wood or plastic and must be 8 or 12 inches deep.

For Type MSKT terminal system, install a W6x15 at lower section Post 1 with a soil plate attached and a 6 by 6 by 1/8 inches tube section at upper section Post 1. Install a W6x9 or W6x8.5 post assembly top and post assembly bottom at Post 2. Install W6x9 or W6x8.5 at Posts 3 through 8. Attach a 9'-4 1/2" W-beam MGS rail section to Post 3. Use 8-inch blocks. The posts must be, at your option, driven with or without pilot holes, or placed in drilled holes. Do not pound on the side plates when installing lower post #1 and lower post #2. Space around the posts must be backfilled with selected earth, free of rock, placed in layers approximately 4 inches thick and each layer must be moistened and thoroughly compacted.

Install Type MAX-Tension terminal system under the manufacturer's installation instructions. Use 8- or 12-inch wood or composite blocks. Install W6x8.5 or W6x9 at post positions after Post 1. Backfill the space around the posts with selected earth that is free of rock. The posts must be, at your option, driven with or without pilot holes, or placed in drilled holes. Space around the posts must be backfilled with selected earth, free of rock, placed in layers approximately 4 inches thick and each layer must be moistened and thoroughly compacted.

#### 83-2.04B(4) Payment

Not Used

#### Add to section 83-3.04:

Concrete barrier modified (Type 85) shown is paid for as concrete barrier (Type 85).

#### Replace section 83-4.06 with:

#### 83-4.06 TYPE OUADGUARD CRASH CUSHIONS

#### **83-4.06A** General

#### 83-4.06A(1) Summary

Section 83-4.06 includes specifications for constructing Type Quadguard crash cushions. Quadguard must be rated TL-3 and fit the area requirements.

#### **83-4.06A(2) Definitions**

Not Used

#### 83-4.06A(3) Submittals

Submit a copy of the manufacturer's plan and parts list as an informational submittal.

Submit a certificate of compliance for Type Quadguard crash cushions.

#### 83-4.06A(4) Quality Assurance

Not Used

#### 83-4.06B Materials

Type Quadguard crash cushions must be Quadguard crash cushions (TL-3) manufactured by Valtir, LLC., located at 15601 Dallas Parkway, Suite 525, Addison, TX 75001, and must include the connection components and all items shown.

The successful bidder can obtain the Type Quadguard crash cushions from the following distributors:

Address	Telephone and fax nos.
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	Telephone: (866) 379-9152
INCORPORATED	
1050 E. 20TH ST.	
CHICO, CA 95928	
BARRIER SYSTEMS, INC	Telephone: (707) 374-6800
180 RIVER RD	
RIO VISTA CA 94571	
HILL & SMITH (listed as WORK	Telephone: (614) 340-6294
AREA PROTECTION CORP)	
340 N. INDUSTRIAL RD	
MORGAN, UT 84050	

Concrete anchorage devices used for attaching the crash cushion to the base slab must be limited to those provided by the manufacturer.

The concrete anchor slab and backup block must comply with sections 51 and 52.

For the concrete anchor slab and backup block, use concrete containing at least 590 pounds of cementitious material per cubic yard.

#### 83-4.06C Construction

 $In stall\ Type\ Quadguard\ crash\ cushions\ under\ the\ manufacturer's\ instructions.$ 

# 83-4.06D Payment Not Used END OF SECTION 84 MARKINGS Add to section 84-2.04: 4-inch wide traffic stripe is measured and paid for as specified for the 6-inch traffic stripe. END OF SECTION 85 RESERVED No Changes to this section.

## **DIVISION X ELECTRICAL WORK**

## **86 GENERAL**

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

## 87 ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

No Changes to this section.

#### END OF SECTION

## 88 RESERVED

No Changes to this section.

DIVISION XI MATERIAL					
	89 AGGREGATE				
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
90 CONCRETE					
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
	91 PAINT				
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
	92 ASPHALT BINDERS				
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
	93 RESERVED				
No Changes to this postion					
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
	94 ASPHALTIC EMULSIONS				
No Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				
	95 EPOXY				
No Changes to this section.					
The Changes to this section.					
	END OF SECTION				

	96	GEOSYNTHETICS	
No Changes to this section.			
		END OF SECTION	
	97	RESERVED	
No Changes to this section.			
		END OF SECTION	
	98	RESERVED	
No Changes to this section.			
		END OF SECTION	

## **DIVISION XII BUILDING CONSTRUCTION**

## 99 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

No Changes to this section.

(Because some colored inks will not reproduce in copy machines, please use **black ink** to complete this Bid.)

## (DO NOT DETACH)

## **BID TO THE COUNTY OF TEHAMA**

#### **DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS**

Name Of Bidder				
BUSINESS P.O. BOX				
CITY, STATE, ZIP				
BUSINESS STREET ADD	RESS			
(Please include even if P.				
CITY, STATE, ZIP				
TELEPHONE NO:	AREA CODE (	)		
FAX No:	AREA CODE (	)		
CONTRACTOR LICENSI	Z NO			

The work for which this Bid is submitted is for construction in accordance with the Special Provisions (including the payment of not less not less than the higher of (1) the State general prevailing wage rates, or (2) the rates specified by the Federal Secretary of Labor), including any addenda thereto, the contract annexed hereto, and also in accordance with the Standard Specifications dated 2024 and the Standard Plans for Construction dated 2024 of the California Department of Transportation, and the Labor Surcharge And Equipment Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished.

The Special Provisions for the work to be done are entitled:

COUNTY OF TEHAMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, PROPOSAL, AND CONTRACT

# FOR CONSTRUCTION ON: JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025

The Bidder shall enter the Adjustment Factors in legible figures in the spaces provided below. Failure to enter all Adjustment Factors will result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive.

	Adjustment Factor Name	Adjustment Factor Bid	X Multiplier	= Extended Total
1.	Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm except County holidays.		X 0.50	=
2.	Other Than Normal Working Hours, Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 5:00 pm to 7:00 am and all- day Saturday, Sunday, and County holidays	_·	X 0.30	=
3.	Normal Working Hours, Secured Facilities Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm except County holidays.	_·	X 0.10	=
4.	Other Than Normal Working Hours, Secured Facilities Adjustment Factor: Monday through Friday 5:00 pm to 7:00 am and all-day Saturday, Sunday, and County holidays.	_·	X 0.10	=
5.	Sum the Extended Total column.  The Sum is the Award Criteria Figu	ıre.		=

- 1. Adjustment Factors and extended totals should be rounded to four (4) decimal places. Use conventional rounding methodology (i.e., if the number in the 5th decimal place is 0-4, the number in the 4th decimal remains unchanged; if the number in the 5th decimal place is 5-9, the number in the 4th decimal is rounded upward).
- 2. The Other Than Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor must be greater than or equal to the Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor.

- 3. The County reserves the right to correct arithmetic errors in the event of a discrepancy, the Adjustment Factors listed in the column titled "Adjustment Factor Bid" shall take precedence and be used to calculate the extended totals.
- 4. The weighted percentages (x multiplier) presented above are only for calculating the Award Criteria Figure. There is no guarantee that the work ordered will be consistent with the weighted percentages. The Award Criteria Figure is only used to compare bids. It is not used to prepare Price Proposals. When preparing Price Proposals, the Bidder shall use one or more of the Adjustment Factors written above.

The contract, if awarded, will be awarded to the responsive and responsible bidder with the lowest Award Criteria Figure as calculated in the above table.

Each bid shall be accompanied by a certified check or cashier's check or bid bond in the amount of Twenty Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000), payable to the County of Tehama.

If this Bid shall be accepted and the undersigned shall fail to enter into the contract and furnish the 2 bonds in the sums required by the section entitled "Contract Bonds", in Section 3 of the Special Provisions, with surety satisfactory to the County of Tehama, within 10 days, not including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after the bidder has received notice from the County of Tehama that the contract has been awarded, the County of Tehama may, at its option, determine that the bidder has abandoned the contract, and thereupon this Bid and the acceptance thereof shall be null and void and the forfeiture of the security accompanying this Bid shall operate and the same shall be the property of the County of Tehama.

The undersigned, as bidder, declares that the only persons or parties interested in this Bid as principals are those named herein; that this Bid is made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation; that he has carefully examined the contract documents, , the annexed proposed form of contract, and the plans therein referred to; and he proposes, and agrees if this Bid is accepted, that he will contract with the County of Tehama, in the form of the copy of the contract annexed hereto, to provide all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction, and to do all the work and furnish all the materials specified in the contract, in the manner and time therein prescribed, and according to the requirements of the Engineer as therein set forth, and that he will take in full payment therefor the following prices, to wit:



#### **SUBCONTRACTORS LIST**

Because the Job Order Contract (JOC) is an indefinite quantity contract pursuant to which Contractors will perform a variety of Job Orders, Contractors must designate Subcontractors, in accordance with California Public Contracts Code Section 4100 to 4113, inclusive, in each Job Order Proposal and not with this bid. As part of each Job Order Proposal, the awarded JOC CONTRACTOR shall provide a list giving the name and location of place of business of each subcontractor who will perform a portion of the Job Order work in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the Job Order Proposal. In each instance the nature and extent of the work to be sublet shall be described.

If the CONTRACTOR fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract in excess of one-half of one percent (0.5%) of the total Job Order Proposal, the CONTRACTOR agrees to perform that portion itself.

(THE BIDDER'S EXECUTION ON THE SIGNATURE PORTION OF THIS PROPOSAL SHALL ALSO CONSTITUTE AN ENDORSEMENT AND EXECUTION OF THOSE CERTIFICATIONS WHICH ARE A PART OF THIS PROPOSAL)

#### Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment

<ol> <li>Local Age</li> </ol>	ency:			2.0	contract DBE Goal:		
3. Project D	escription:						
4. Project Lo	ocation:						
5. Bidder's N	Name:			6. Prime Certif	led DBE: 0 7. Bld Amount		
8. Total Doll	ar Amount for ALL Subco	ontractors:		9. T	otal Number of <u>ALL</u> Subcontractors:		
	<b>I</b>						
10. Bid Item Number	11. Description of Wor Materials Sup		12. NAICS or Work Category Codes	13. DBE Certification Number	14. DBE Contact informatio (Must be certified on the date bid opened)		15. DBE Dollar Amount
Local Agen	cy to Complete this Sec	tion upon Ever	cutton of Award	4C TOTA	AL CLAIMED DBE PARTICIP	ATION	T
_	ency Contract Number:	audit apoli Exe	COLONI OI AWAIG	16. 101/	AL CLAIMED DBE PARTICIP	ATION	\$
23. Federal-	Ald Project Number:			┪			
24. Bid Oper	ning Date:			1			%
25. Contract	Award Date:						
26. Award A	mount:				T: Identify all DBE firms being claimed of the First Tier DBE Subcontractors		
Local Agency certifies that all DBE certifications are valid and information on this form is complete and accurate.			item(s) of wo	ork listed above must be consistent, v tems of the work in the "Subcontracto confirmation of each listed DBE is rec	vhere applic or List" subr	cable with the	
27. Local Agency Representative's Signature 28. Date				's Signature	18. Da		
_	ency Representative's Na		0. Phone	19. Preparer	's Name	20. Ph	one
31. Local Agency Representative's Title			21. Preparer	's Title			

DISTRIBUTION: 1. Original – Local Agency
2. Copy – Caltrans District Local Assistance Engineer (DLAE). Fallure to submit to DLAE within 30 days of contract execution may result in de-obligation of federal funds on contract.
3. Include additional copy with award package.

Page 1 of 2 January 2023

#### INSTRUCTIONS - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DBE COMMITMENT

#### CONTRACTOR SECTION

- 1. Local Agency Enter the name of the local agency that is administering the contract.
- Contract DBE Goal Enter the contract DBE goal percentage as it appears on the project advertisement.
- Project Description Enter the project description as it appears on the project advertisement (Bridge Rehab, Seismic Rehab, Overlay, Widening, etc).
- Project Location Enter the project location(s) as it appears on the project advertisement.
- 5. Bidder's Name Enter the contractor's firm name.
- 6. Prime Certified DBE Check box if prime contractor is a certified DBE.
- 7. Bid Amount Enter the total contract bid dollar amount for the prime contractor.
- 8. Total Dollar Amount for ALL Subcontractors Enter the total dollar amount for all subcontracted contractors.
  SUM = (DBEs + all Non-DBEs). Do not include the prime contractor information in this count.
- Total number of <u>ALL</u> subcontractors Enter the total number of all subcontracted contractors. SUM = (DBEs + all Non-DBEs). Do not include the prime contractor information in this count.
- 10. Bid Item Number Enter bid item number for work, services, or materials supplied to be provided.
- 11. Description of Work, Services, or Materials Supplied Enter description of work, services, or materials to be provided. Indicate all work to be performed by DBEs including work performed by the prime contractor's own forces, if the prime is a DBE. If 100% of the item is not to be performed or furnished by the DBE, describe the exact portion to be performed or furnished by the DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 to determine how to count the participation of DBE firms.
  12. NAICS or Work Category Codes Enter NAICS or Work Category Codes from the California Unified Certification Program database.
- 13. DBE Certification Number Enter the DBE's Certification Identification Number. All DBEs must be certified on the date bids are opened.
- 14. DBE Contact Information Enter the name, address, and phone number of all DBE subcontracted contractors.
  Also, enter the prime contractor's name and phone number, if the prime is a DBE.
- 15. DBE Dollar Amount Enter the subcontracted dollar amount of the work to be performed or service to be provided. Include the prime contractor if the prime is a DBE. See LAPM Chapter 9 for how to count full/partial participation.
- 16. Total Claimed DBE Participation \$: Enter the total dollar amounts entered in the "DBE Dollar Amount" column.
- %: Enter the total DBE participation claimed ("Total Claimed DBE Participation Dollars" divided by item "Bid Amount"). If the total % claimed is less than item "Contract DBE Goal," an adequately documented Good Faith Effort (GFE) is required (see Exhibit 15-H DBE Information - Good Faith Efforts of the LAPM).
- 17. Preparer's Signature The person completing the DBE commitment form on behalf of the contractor's firm must sign their name.
- 18. Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the contractor's preparer.
- 19. Preparer's Name Enter the name of the person preparing and signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- 20. Phone Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- 21. Preparer's Title Enter the position/title of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.

#### LOCAL AGENCY SECTION

- 22. Local Agency Contract Number Enter the Local Agency contract number or identifier.
- 23. Federal-Aid Project Number Enter the Federal-Aid Project Number(s).
- 24. Bid Opening Date Enter the date contract bids were opened.
- Contract Award Date Enter the date the contract was executed.
- 26. Award Amount Enter the contract award amount as stated in the executed contract.
- 27. Local Agency Representative's Signature The person completing this section of the form for the Local Agency must sign their name to certify that the information in this and the Contractor Section of this form is complete and accurate.
- 28. Date Enter the date the DBE commitment form is signed by the Local Agency Representative.
- Local Agency Representative's Name Enter the name of the Local Agency Representative certifying the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- 30. Phone Enter the area code and phone number of the person signing the contractor's DBE commitment form.
- 31. Local Agency Representative Title Enter the position/title of the Local Agency Representative certifying the contractor's DBE commitment form.

Page 2 of 2 January 2023

Exhibit 15-H Proposer/Contractor Good Faith Effort

#### **EXHIBIT 15-H: PROPOSER/CONTRACTOR GOOD FAITH EFFORTS**

	Cost Proposa	al Due Date	PE/CE
Federal-aid Project No(s).	Bid C	Opening Date	CON
The estate estate estate estate % for this contract. The information provided have been contract goal.		ged Business Enterpris uired good faith efforts	
Proposers or bidders submit the following informa days from cost proposal due date or bid opening. following information even if the Exhibit 10-O1: Co Construction Contract DBE Commitment indicate protects the proposer's or bidder's eligibility for aw the bidder failed to meet the goal for various reason bidder made a mathematical error.	Proposers and bidde onsultant Proposal Di that the proposer or to ward of the contract if	ers are recommended to BE Commitments or Ex bidder has met the DBI the administering ager	o submit the chibit 15-G: E goal. This form ncy determines that
The following items are listed in the Section entitle please attach additional sheets as needed:	ed "Submission of DB	E Commitment" of the	Special Provisions,
A. The names and dates of each publication project was placed by the bidder (please a publication):			
Publications		Dates of Ad	vertisement
B. The names and dates of written notices so the dates and methods used for following DBEs were interested (please attach copi	up initial solicitations ies of solicitations, tel	to determine with cert	ainty whether the onfirmations, etc.):
		•	
			Page 4 of 2

Page 1 of 3 May 2020

_			_		
0.00	I Δecict	ance	Proced	HIPOE	Manual

Exhibit 15-H Proposer/Contractor Good Faith Effort

C. The items of work made available to DBE firms including those unbundled contract work items into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. It is the bidder's responsibility to demonstrate that sufficient work to facilitate DBE participation in order to meet or exceed the DBE contract goal.

Items of Proposer or Bidder Breakdown of Amount Percentage
Work Normally Performs Item Items (\$) Of
(Y/N) Contract

D. The names, addresses and phone numbers of rejected DBE firms, the reasons for the bidder's rejection of the DBEs, the firms selected for that work (please attach copies of quotes from the firms involved), and the price difference for each DBE if the selected firm is not a DBE:

Names, addresses and phone numbers of rejected DBEs and the reasons for the bidder's rejection of the DBEs:

Names, addresses and phone numbers of firms selected for the work above:

E. Efforts (e.g. in advertisements and solicitations) made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining information related to the plans, specifications and requirements for the work which was provided to DBEs:

> Page 2 of 3 May 2020

Local	Accietance	Procedures	Manual
LOCAL	Assistance	rrocedures	manuai

Exhibit 15-H Proposer/Contractor Good Faith Effort

F. Efforts (e.g. in advertisements and solicitations) made to assist interested DBEs in obtaining bonding, lines of credit or insurance, necessary equipment, supplies, materials, or related assistance or services, excluding supplies and equipment the DBE subcontractor purchases or leases from the prime contractor or its affiliate:

G. The names of agencies, organizations or groups contacted to provide assistance in contacting, recruiting and using DBE firms (please attach copies of requests to agencies and any responses received, i.e., lists, Internet page download, etc.):

Name of Agency/Organization	Method/Date of Contact	Results
_	_	

H. Any additional data to support a demonstration of good faith efforts:

Page 3 of 3 May 2020

Exhibit 12-B

Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE)

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER:

#### Exhibit 12-B: Bidder's List of Subcontractor (DBE and Non-DBE) - Part 1

As of March 1, 2015 Contractors (and sub-contractors) wishing to bid on public works contracts must be registered with the State Division of Industrial Relations and certified to bid on Public Works contracts. Please register at https://www.dir.ca.gow/Public-Works/Contractor-Registration.html. The local agency will verify registration of all contractors and subcontractors on public works projects at bid and thereafter annually to assure that yearly registration is maintained throughout the life of the project.

In accordance with Title 49, Section 26.11 of the Code of Federal Regulations, and Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, as amended, the following information is required for each sub-contractor who will perform work amounting to more than one half of one percent (0.5%) of the Total Base Bid or \$10,000 (whichever is greater).

Photocopy this form fo	r additional films.				<u> </u>			_
Subcontractor Name & Location	Line Item & Description	Subcontract Amount	Percentage of Bid Item	Contractor License Number	DBE (Y/N)	DBE Cert Number	Annual Gross Re	oeipts
			Subcontracted	DIR Reg Number			1	
NAME							< \$1 million	
		l					< \$5 million	
City, State		l					< \$10 million < \$15 million	
City, come		l					Age of Firm in	_
		l					years years	ı
NAME							< \$1 million	
		l					< \$5 million	
		l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	_
							Age of Firm in years	ı
NAME							< \$1 million	_
		l					< \$5 million	
		l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	ı
NAME			<del>                                     </del>				< \$1 million	_
		l					< \$5 million	
		l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	
		l					Age of Firm in	Т
							years	_
NAME		l					< \$1 million	
		l					< \$5 million < \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,							Age of Firm in	Т
							years	
NAME		l					< \$1 million	
		l					< \$5 million < \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	
		l					Age of Firm in	$\overline{}$
		l					years	ı
NAME							< \$1 million	_
		l					< \$5 million	
		l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	_
							Age of Firm in years	ı
NAME			<del>                                     </del>	<del>                                     </del>			< \$1 million	_
		l					< \$5 million	
		l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l					< \$15 million	
							Age of Firm in years	
NAME				<del> </del>	$\vdash$		< \$1 million	_
		I	l				< \$5 million	
		I	I				< \$10 million	
City, State		I	I				< \$15 million	
		I	l				Age of Firm in	

Distribution - Original: Local Agency File; Copy: DLAE w/Award Package

Page 1 of 2 September 2021

Exhibit 12-B Bidder's List of Subcontractors (DBE and Non-DBE)

#### Exhibit 12-B: Bidder's List of Subcontractor (DBE and Non-DBE) - Part 2

In accordance with Title 49, Section 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations, the Bidder shall list all subcontractors who provided a quote or bid but <a href="https://www.were.not.selected">were not selected</a> to participate as a subcontractor on this project.

FEDERAL PROJECT NUMBER:

Photocopy this form to	r additional firms.								
Subcontractor Name & Location	Line Item & Description	Subcontract Amount	Percentage of Bid Item	Contractor License Number	DBE (Y/N)	DBE Cert Number	Ann	ual Gross Re	eceipts
			Subcontracted	DIR Reg Number			l		
NAME								< \$1 million	
			l					< \$5 million	
			l		l			< \$10 million	
City, State		l					_	< \$15 million	
		l					Ą	e of Firm in years	1
NAME					-		Ь.	< \$1 million	—
10000			l				_	< \$5 million	
		l						< \$10 million	
City, State		l			l		Н	< \$15 million	
			l				Ac	e of Firm in	${f  au}$
								years	
NAME								< \$1 million	
			l					< \$5 million	
		l			l			< \$10 million	
City, State			l				_	< \$15 million	
			l				A	e of Firm in years	1
NAME					-		Н-	< \$1 million	—
TOUR .			l					< \$5 million	
			l					< \$10 million	
City, State		l			1			< \$15 million	
							Ą	e of Firm in years	Т
NAME							П	< \$1 million	
			l					< \$5 million	
		l						< \$10 million	
City, State		l			l			< \$15 million	ı
							Ą	e of Firm in years	
NAME								< \$1 million	
			l					< \$5 million	
			l		l			< \$10 million	
City, State		l					_	< \$15 million	_
			l				Ą	e of Firm in years	1
NAME					$\vdash$		⊢	< \$1 million	
Total C		l						< \$5 million	
			l					< \$10 million	
City, State			l		l		_	< \$15 million	
			l				Ac	e of Firm in	Т
								years	
NAME								< \$1 million	
			l				_	< \$5 million	
			l		l			< \$10 million	
City, State							_	< \$15 million	_
			l				۱ ^	e of Firm in years	1
NAME			<del> </del>	<del> </del>	$\vdash$			< \$1 million	—
			I		l		Н	< \$5 million	
			I		l		П	< \$10 million	
City, State			I		l			< \$15 million	_
					l		Ą	e of Firm in years	

Distribution - Original: Local Agency File; Copy: DLAE w/Award Package

Page 2 of 2 September 2021

#### **EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION**

(THE BIDDER'S EXECUTION ON THE SIGNATURE PORTION OF THIS BID SHALL ALSO CONSTITUTE AN ENDORSEMENT AND EXECUTION OF THOSE CERTIFICATIONS WHICH ARE A PART OF THIS BID)

The bidder\_\_\_\_, proposed subcontractor\_\_\_\_, hereby certifies that he has \_\_\_\_\_, has not \_\_\_\_\_, participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clauses, as required by Executive Orders 10925, 11114, or 11246, and that, where required, he has filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance, a Federal Government contracting or administering agency, or the former President's Committee on Equal Employment Opportunity, all reports due under the applicable filling requirements.

**Note:** The above certification is required by the Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the Secretary of Labor (41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1)), and must be submitted by bidders and proposed subcontractors only in connection with contracts and subcontracts which are subject to the equal opportunity clause. Contracts and subcontracts which are exempt from the equal opportunity clause are set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.5. (Generally only contracts or subcontracts of \$10,000 or under are exempt.)

Currently, Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) is the only report required by the Executive Orders or their implementing regulations.

Proposed prime contractors and subcontractors who have participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the Executive Orders and have not filed the required reports should note that 41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1) prevents the award of contracts and subcontracts unless such contractor submits a report covering the delinquent period or such other period specified by the Federal Highway Administration or by the Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance, U.S. Department of Labor.

## FEDERAL MINIMUM WAGE RATES

Federal minimum wage rates are not included in these specifications <u>but will be included in the final signed contract</u>. They may be obtained at the Internet Website: <a href="https://sam.gov/wage-determinations">https://sam.gov/wage-determinations</a>

A copy is also available at the Offices of Tehama County Public Works, 9380, San Benito Avenue, Gerber, CA 96035

#### NON-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION FOR FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

The prospective participant certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (I) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in conformance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The prospective participant also agrees by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed \$100,000 and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

EXHBIT 10-Q Disclosure of Lobbying Activities

#### EXHIBIT 10-Q DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

COMPLETE THIS FORM TO DISCLOSE LOBBYING ACTIVITIES PURSUANT TO 31 U.S.C. 1352

1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of F	ederal Action: 3. Report Type:
a. contract a. bid/offer/ap	plication a. initial
b. grant b. initial awar	
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award	
d. Ioan e. Ioan guarantee	For Material Change Only:  year quarter
f. loan insurance	date of last report
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity	5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name and Address of Prime:
Prime Subawardee	Enter Name and Address of Frime.
Tier, if known	
Congressional District, if known	Congressional District, if known
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Program Name/Description:
	CFDA Number, if applicable
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amount, if known:
10. Name and Address of Lobby Entity	11. Individuals Performing Services
(If individual, last name, first name, MI)	(including address if different from No. 10)
	(last name, first name, MI)
(attach Continuation S	Sheet(s) if necessary)
12. Amount of Payment (check all that apply)	14. Type of Payment (check all that apply)
\$ actual planned	a. retainer
]	b. one-time fee
<ol> <li>Form of Payment (check all that apply):</li> </ol>	c. commission
a. cash	d. contingent fee
b. in-kind; specify: nature	e deferred
Value	f. other, specify
<ol> <li>Brief Description of Services Performed or to be pe officer(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted, for</li> </ol>	
(attach Continuatio	on Sheet(s) if necessary)
16. Continuation Sheet(s) attached: Yes	No
<ol> <li>Information requested through this form is authorized by Title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying reliance</li> </ol>	Signature:
was placed by the tier above when his transaction was made or	
entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to Congress	Print Name:
semiannually and will be available for public inspection. Any	Title:
person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than	Inc.
\$100,000 for each such failure.	Telephone No.: Date:
	Authorized for Local Reproduction
Federal Use Only:	Standard Form - LLL
z casa say.	

Standard Form LLL Rev. 04-28-0

Distribution: Orig-Local Agency Project Files

Page 1 May 8, 2013

LPP 13-01

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING EXHIBIT 10-Q DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime federal recipient at the initiation or receipt of covered federal action or a material change to previous filing pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. The filing of a form is required for such payment or agreement to make payment to lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered federal action. Attach a continuation sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- Identify the type of covered federal action for which lobbying activity is or has been secured to influence, the outcome of a
  covered federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered federal action.
- Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last, previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is or expects to be a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the first tier. Subawards include but are not limited to: subcontracts, subgrants, and contract awards under grants.
- If the organization filing the report in Item 4 checks "Subawardee" then enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the prime federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- Enter the name of the federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organization level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- Enter the federal program name or description for the covered federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan commitments.
- Enter the most appropriate federal identifying number available for the federal action identification in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number, Invitation for Bid (IFB) number, grant announcement number, the contract grant or loan award number, the application/proposal control number assigned by the federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- For a covered federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the federal amount of the award/loan commitments for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- Enter the full name, address, city, state, and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in Item 4 to influence the covered federal action.
- Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name and Middle Initial (MI).
- 12. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (Item 4) to the lobbying entity (Item 10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 15. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed or will be expected to perform and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity not just time spent in actual contact with federal officials. Identify the federal officer(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s) employee(s) or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- Check whether or not a continuation sheet(s) is attached.
- 17. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, and print his/her name title and telephone number.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30-minutes per response, including time for reviewing instruction, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, D.C. 20503. SF-LLL-Instructions Rev. 06-04

Page 2 May 8, 2013

LPP 13-01

#### PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE

PUBLIC CONTRACT	CODE SECTION 1	<b>10285.1 STATEMENT</b>
-----------------	----------------	--------------------------

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.1 STATEMENT
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985), the bidder hereby declares under
penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the bidder has, has notbeen convicted within
the preceding three years of any offenses referred to in that section, including any charge of fraud, bribery, collusion,
conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any state or Federal antitrust law in connection with the bidding upon, award
of, or performance of, any public works contract, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1101, with any public
entity, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1100, including the Regents of the University of California or the
Trustees of the California State University. The term "bidder" is understood to include any partner, member, officer,
director, responsible managing officer, or responsible managing employee thereof, as referred to in Section 10285.1.
Note: The bidder must place a check mark after "has" or "has not" in one of the blank spaces provided. The above Statement is part of the Bid. Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Statement. Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.
Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under penalty of perjury, the

following questionnaire:

Has the bidder, any officer of the bidder, or any employee of the bidder who has a proprietary interest in the bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a safety regulation?

Yes No	
If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space.	Provide additional pages as needed.

#### PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 10232 STATEMENT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor, hereby states under penalty of perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two year period because of the Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders the Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.

Note: The above Statement and Questionnaire are part of the Bid. Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Statement and Questionnaire.

Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

#### NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

(TITLE 23 UNITED STATES CODE SECTION 112 AND PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 7106)

TO THE COUNTY OF TEHAMA

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.

In accordance with Title 23 United States Code Section 112 and Public Contract Code 7106 the bidder declares that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

Note: The above Noncollusion Affidavit is part of the Bid. Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Noncollusion Affidavit.

Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution.

#### **DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION**

#### TITLE 49, CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PART 29

The bidder, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, he/she or any other person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, manager:

- is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any Federal agency;
- has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any Federal agency within the past 3 years;
- does not have a proposed debarment pending; and
- has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 3 years.

If there are any	Lavaantiana	to this	agrification	incont the	avaantians	in tha	fallowing	C12000
II there are any	/ CACCPHOHS	to uns	ceruncanon,	msen me	exceptions	III UIC	TOHOWING	space.

Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining bidder responsibility. For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, initiating agency, and dates of action.

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions.

The above certification is part of the Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Certification.

		BID SIGNATUL	RE PAGE		
Accompanying this Bid is_				in amount equa	ıl to
Twenty-Five Thousand Dol	lars (\$25,000).				
(NOTICE: INSERT THE WOR BOND," AS THE CASE MAY		)," "CASHI	ER'S CHECK","CERTIFI	ED CHECK", OR "BIDDEF	₹'S
Also accompanying this Bid is Bonding Capacity (aggregate chas been providing bonds.					
The names of all persons in	terested in the fore	egoing Bid as princ	ipals are as follows:		
IMPORTANT NOTICE	4				
If bidder or other interested pet treasurer, and manager thereof firm; if bidder or other interes	f; if a co-partnership	ip, state true name of	firm, also names of all inc		
Licensed in accordance with	an act providing	for the registration	of Contractors,		
License No	Class	sification(s)			
ADDENDA – This Bid is submitted with 1	espect to the chang	ges to the contract	included in addenda nu	mber/s	
(Fill in addenda numbers if ad part of the addenda.)	denda have been rec	ceived and insert, in	this Bid, any Engineer's E	stimate sheets that were rec	eived as
By my signature on this Bid I of and statements of Public Contraction 8103 of Administrative Code). By my the United States of America, Code Section 7106; and the Ti	ract Code Sections 10 of the Fair Employm signature on this Bid that the Noncollusion	10162, 10232 and 102 ment and Housing Cond I further certify, und on Affidavit required	285.1 are true and correct a mmission Regulations (Ch der penalty of perjury und by Title 23 United States (	and that the bidder has comparanter 5, Title 2 of the Calif er the laws of the State of C Code, Section 112 and Publ	plied with the ornia California and lic Contract
Date:					
Sign Here					
centri, prad * 28k					
		Signat	ture and Title of Bidder		
Business Address:					
Place of Business:					
Place of Residence:					

the

DEI	COUNTY OF TEHAMA PARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	BIDDER'S BOND
We,	as Principal, and
Principal to the County for the work described	as Surety are bound unto the County of Tehama, State of enal sum of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000), submitted by said d below, for the payment of which sum in lawful money of the United relevance, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and
THE CONDIT	TION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, THAT:
WHEREAS the Principal is submitting a bid t	to the County for certain construction specifically described as follows:
NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPI	AMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS ECIAL PROVISIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS OR CONSTRUCTION ON:
JOB ORDER CONT	TRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025
AT 3:0 NOW, THEREFORE, if the aforesaid Princip the specifications after the prescribed forms a	COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE, IN GERBER, CALIFORNIA <b>00 PM</b> , <b>(PST) ON OCTOBER 8</b> , <b>2025</b> . The last is awarded the contract and, within the time and manner required under the presented to him for signature, enters into a written contract, in the land files the two bonds with the County; one to guarantee faithful
	ent for labor and materials, as required by law, then this obligation shall be
In the event suit is brought upon this bond by incurred by the County in such suit, including	the County and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs attorney's fee to be fixed by the Court.
Dated:	, 20
	(SEAL)
	Bidder
By:	
	Principal
	Surety

NOTE: Signatures of those executing for the surety must be properly acknowledged.

Attorney-in-fact

By:

## CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of Calif	ornia			
County of	SS			
On this	day of		in the year 20	before me
		, personally appeared	Attorney-in-fa	act ,
subscribed to	this instrument as the atte	me on the basis of satisfactory evidence or in-fact of, and acknowledged his (her) own name as attorney-in-factory own name as	ged to me that he (she	
	(SEAL)		Public	



# COUNTY OF TEHAMA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

## **OWNER-CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT**

COUNTY CONTRACT NUMBER:	
THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded, in triplicate, on	between the County of
Tehama, hereinafter called "County", and	, hereinafter called
"Contractor".	
ARTICLE I The Contractor agrees to do all the work and furnish all the m	naterials, except such as are mentioned
in the specifications to be furnished by the County, necessary to construct and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the County, free of any and all lie suppliers, and subcontractors, and in conformity with all applicable state, couregulations, the Job Order Contracting work described in the Contract Documenterials furnished in accordance with the Special Provisions described below also in accordance with the Standard Specifications for Construction dated 20 Construction, dated 2024 of the California Department of Transportation and Rental Rates in effect on the date the work is accomplished, which said Specifications, and Labor Surcharge And Equipment Rental Rates are hereby	ens and claims of laborers, materialmen enty, and municipal laws, codes, and nents. The work shall be done and the w, including any addenda thereto, and 024 and the Standard Plans for the Labor Surcharge And Equipment al Provisions, Standard Plans, Standard
reference made a part hereof.	

The Special Provisions for the work to be done are entitled:

COUNTY OF TEHAMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, CONSTRUCTION TASK CATALOG®,
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS, PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT
FOR CONSTRUCTION ON:

JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL S	SERVICES 2025
COUNTY CONTRACT NUMBER:	

**ARTICLE II.--** The County hereby promises and agrees with the Contractor to employ, and does hereby employ, the Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to the terms and conditions herein contained and referred to, for the prices hereinafter set forth, and hereby contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions herein set forth; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained.

**ARTICLE III.**— The higher of the State or the Federal prevailing wage rates as referenced in this set of contract documents are hereby made a part of this contract, and Contractor shall pay and require all subcontractors to pay the higher of the State or Federal prevailing wage rates to the construction workers providing labor for the work. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any conflict between the terms of this instrument and the bid or proposal of said Contractor, then this instrument shall control and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of the said terms of said proposal conflicting herewith.

**ARTICLE IV.-** By my signature hereunder, as Contractor, I certify that I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this contract.

**ARTICLE V.—** And the said Contractor agrees to receive and accept the following prices as full compensation for furnishing all materials and for doing all the work contemplated and embraced in this agreement; also for all loss or damage, arising out of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which may arise or be encountered in the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by the County, and for all risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses incurred by or in consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of work and for well and faithfully completing the work, and the whole thereof, in the manner and according to the plans and specifications, and the requirements of the Engineer under them, to wit:

#### CONTRACT SUM:

- 1. This Contract is an Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity ("ID/IQ") contract for construction work and services. The Initial Contract Value is \$1,500,000. The County reserves the right to increase the Initial Contract Value to the State Maximum allowable by the Public Contract Code Section 20128.5, adjusted annually to reflect the percentage change in the California Consumer Price Index since January 1998, which at this time is approximately \$6,210,093.15.
- 2. The Contractor is not guaranteed to receive the Initial Contract Value. Compensation to any single Contractor under any single authorized Job Order shall in no event exceed the Job Order Grand Total specified in a properly authorized Job Order. The Job Order Grand Total under any single authorized Job Order shall in no event exceed the Initial Contract Value as defined below less the total of the Job Order Grand Total(s) of all Job Orders authorized for performance through the current date
- 3. The Contractor shall perform all Prepriced Tasks for the Unit Prices set forth in the Construction Task Catalog® multiplied by one of the following Adjustment Factors:

General Facilities - Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: 7:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday to Friday, except for Holidays:
·
General Facilities - Other Than Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: 5:00 pm to 7:00 am Monday to Friday, and all-day Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays:
·
Secured Facilities - Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: 7:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday to Friday, except for Holidays:
·
Secured Facilities - Other Than Normal Working Hours Adjustment Factor: 5:00 pm to 7:00 am Monday to Friday, and all-day Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays:



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to these presents have hereunto set their hands the year and date first above written

## COUNTY OF TEHAMA STATE OF CALIFORNIA

	(SEAL)
	Chairperson
	Board of Supervisors
•	Date
	CONTRACTOR
	(SEAL)
	Signature
	Name
	Title
	Date
Licensed in acc	ordance with and providing for the registration of contractors:
I	License No.:
Fee	deral ID No.
DUNS Number (if	applicable):

## On this page

Insert County Counsel
E-Contract Review
Approval as to Form

(in JPG format using "behind text" property's)

#### COUNTY OF TEHAMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

#### PAYMENT BOND

(PAYMENT BOND TO ACCOMPANY CONTRACT) (SECTION 3247, CIVIL CODE)	
BOND NO.	
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT:	
WHEREAS, The County of Tehama, has awarded to as Contractor, a contract for the described as follows:	e work
COUNTY OF TEHAMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPECIAL PROVISIONS, CONSTRUCTION TASK CATALOG®, TECH SPECIFICATIONS, PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION ON:	NICAL
JOB ORDER CONTRACTING GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025	
COLINTY CONTRACT NUMBER:	

AND WHEREAS, said Contractor is required to furnish a bond in connection with said contract in an amount equal to 100% of the Initial Contract Value, to secure the payment of claims of laborers, mechanics, material men and other persons as provided by law;

If, at any time, the total value of outstanding Job Orders exceeds the penal sum of the Payment Bond then in effect, the County may, at its discretion, require the Contractor to submit a new Performance and Payment Bond in increments of \$500,000 or the penal sum equal to such total value of outstanding Job Orders, whichever is greater.

NOW, THEREFORE, we the undersigned Contractor and Surety are held and firmly bound unto the County of Tehama in the sum of One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$1,500,000), which is equal to 100% of the Initial Contract Value for which payment well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

#### THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH,

That if said Contractor, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns, or its subcontractors shall fail to pay any of the persons named in Civil Code Section 9100, or amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Code with respect to work or labor performed by such claimant, or any amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Franchise Tax Board for the wages of employees of the Contractor and his subcontractors pursuant to Section 18664 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, with respect to such work and labor, that the surety herein will pay for the same in an amount not exceeding the sum specified in this bond, otherwise the above obligation shall be void. In case suit is brought upon this bond, the surety will pay a reasonable attorneys fee to be fixed by the court.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all persons, companies, corporations, political subdivisions and State agencies, entitled to file claims under the provisions of Civil Code Section 9100, as now in effect and as the same may be amended or superseded from time to time, so as to give a right of action to such persons or their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

And the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

The Principal and Surety do hereby represent, warranty and gube defined by California statute, regulation or the Department	•	s that term is, or m
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bound parties have execunder their several seals this day of corporate seal of each corporate party being affixed hereto and undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its government.	these present duly signed by its	
Dated:	, 20	
Correspondence or claims relating to this bond should be sent to the surety at the following address:	Contractor	
	Surety	(SEAL)
	By: Attorney-in-Fact	
NOTE: Signatures of those executing for the surety must be pr	operly acknowledged.	

#### CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California, City / County of		SS	
On this day of	in the year 20	_ before me	<b></b> ,
personally appeared		, personally know	wn to me (or proved to me
Attorne	ey-in-fact		· -
on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be	the person whose name		nt as the Attorney-in-fact of hat he/she subscribed the nam
of the said company thereto as surety, and	his/her own name as At		
(SEAL)		Notary Public	

## COUNTY OF TEHAMA, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

## PERFORMANCE BOND

(PERFORMANCE BOND TO ACCOMPANY CONTRACT)

BOND NUMBER:		
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:		
<b>WHEREAS</b> , The County of Tehama has awarded described as follows:	as Contractor, a contract for the w	vork
NOTICE TO BIDDERS, SPECIAL PRO	ARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS VISIONS, PROPOSAL, AND CONTRACT RUCTION ON:	
JOB ORDER CONTRACTING C	GENERAL CIVIL SERVICES 2025	
COUNTY CONTRACT N	UMBER:	
<b>WHEREAS</b> , The Contractor is required to furnish a bond in the Initial Contract value, guaranteeing the faithful performant		al to 100% of
If, at any time, the total value of outstanding Job Orders excelled County may, at its discretion, require the Contractor to submit \$500,000 or the penal sum equal to such total value of outstands.	t a new Performance and Payment Bond in incr	
<b>NOW, THEREFORE,</b> We the undersigned Contractor and S in the sum of One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$Value, to be paid to said County or its certain attorney, its suc made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administration these presents.	(1,500,000), which is equal to 100% of the Initiatesessors and assigns: for which payment, well a	al Contract nd truly to be
THE CONDITION OF TH	IIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH,	
That if the above bounded Contractor, his or its heirs, execute stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according harmless the County of Tehama, its officers and agents, as the and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virial to the country of the countr	e covenants, conditions and agreements in the f on his or their part to be kept and performed at to their intent and meaning, and shall indemnify therein stipulated, then this obligation shall becon true.	foregoing the time and y and save me and be null
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hands 20	and seals on this day of	
Correspondence or claims relating to this bond should be		
sent to the surety at the following address:	Contractor	
	Name of Surety	(SEAL)
	By: Attorney-in-Fact	
NOTE: Signatures of those executing for the surety must be pro-	early acknowledged	

#### CERTIFICATE OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of Cal	ifornia, City / County of	SS			
On this	day of	_ in the year 20 _	before me		,
A notary pu	ablic in and for the City / County of			personally	
appeared	Attorney-in-fact	, Known to me to be the person whose			
	scribed to this instrument as the Atto ged to me that he/she subscribed the		company thereto as sure	ty, and his/her own nam	and e as Attorney
(SEAL)			Notary 1	 Public	

# EXHIBIT 12-G: REQUIRED FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT LANGUAGE

#### FEDERALLY FUNDED JOB ORDERS

In cases where a Job Order is funded wholly or partially with federal funds, the Contractor will comply with all applicable provisions of federal law. Refer to the following links for federal guidelines:

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-

idx?gp=&SID=e2fb8faf658f113bf606a3e6d7808e16&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2tab 02.tpl

https://www.acquisition.gov/?q=browsefar

The Contractor shall comply with all federal regulations relating to the performance of Work funded in whole, or in part, with federal funds. In addition, Contractor agrees to flow-down all applicable clauses to lower-tier subcontractors including, but not limited to the following:

#### 1. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON ALL PURCHASES

- 1.1. Security Requirements (applicable if access to classified material is involved) FAR 52.204-2
- 1.2. Equal Employment Opportunity Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Order 11375 and supplemented by 41CFR part 60
- 1.3. Copeland Anti-kickback Act (for construction and repair)18 USC 874 as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR part 3
- 1.4. Davis-Bacon Act, as amended 40 USC 276a to a-7 and supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR part 5
- 1.5. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 40 USC 327-333 and supplemented by Department of Labor regulations 29 CFR part 5.
- 1.6. Rights to Inventions Made under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR part 401
- 1.7. Preference for Privately Owned U.S.-Flag Commercial Vessels FAR 52.247-64
- 1.8. Hazardous Material Identification and Material Safety Data policy (when applicable) FAR 52.223-3 17.9 Filing of Patent Applications Classified Subject Matter FAR 52.227-10
- 1.9. Patents Rights Ownership by Contractor and Government FAR 52.227-11 and 52.227.13
- 1.10. Rights in Data General FAR 52.227-14
- 1.11. Authorization and Consent Patents and Copyrights 52.227-1
- 1.12. Notice and Assistance Regarding Patent and Copyright Infringements FAR 52.227.2
- 1.13. Buy American Act Supplies FAR 52.225-3
- 1.14. Government Property FAR 52.245-5
- 1.15. Notice of Radioactive Materials FAR 52.223-7
- 1.16. Privacy Act FAR 52.224-2

#### APPENDIX C

#### 2. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$2,500

- 2.1. Restrictions on Certain Foreign Purchases FAR 52.225-13
- 2.2. McNamara –O'Hara Service Contracts Act 41 U.S.C. 351 et seq.

#### 3. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$10,000

- 3.1. Prohibition of Segregated Facilities FAR 52.222-21
- 3.2. Equal Opportunity FAR 52.222-26
- 3.3. Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilities FAR 52.222-36
- 3.4. Walsh-Healy Public Contracts Act FAR 52.222.20

#### 4. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$25,000

- 4.1. Affirmative Action for Disabled Veterans and Vietnam of the Vietnam Era FAR 52.222-35
- 4.2. Employment Reports on Special Disabled Veterans and Vietnam of the Vietnam Era FAR 52.222-37
- 4.3. Debarment and Suspension FAR 52.209-6

#### 5. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$100,000

- 5.1. Anti-kickback procedures FAR 52.203-7
- 5.2. Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Government FAR 52-203.6
- 5.3. Audit and Records Negotiation (if document was entered by negotiation) FAR52.215.2
- 5.4. Integrity of Unit Prices FAR 52.215-14
- 5.5. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act FAR 522.222-4
- 5.6. Clean Air and Water FAR 52.223-2
- 5.7. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.)
- 5.8. Federal Water Pollution Control Act 33 U.S.C. 1251, et seq.
- 5.9. Drug-Free Workplace FAR 52.223-6
- 5.10. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment 31 U.S.C. 1352
- 5.11. Utilization of Small Business Concerns FAR 52.219-8
- 5.12. Preference for US Flag Carriers FAR 52.247-63
- 5.13. Toxic Chemical Release Reporting 52.223-14

#### 6. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$500,000

- 6.1. Cost Accounting Standards Educational Institutions FAR 52.230-5
- 6.2. Administration of Cost Accounting Standards FAR 52.230-6

#### 7. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$550,000

#### APPENDIX C

- 7.1. Price Reduction for Defective Cost or Pricing Data FAR 52.215-10
- 7.2. Subcontractor Cost or Pricing Data FAR 52.215-12
- 7.3. Subcontractor Cost or Pricing Data Modifications FAR 52.215-13

#### 8. FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS ON PURCHASES GREATER THAN \$650,000

- 8.1. Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Plans FAR 52.219-9
- 8.2. Liquidated Damages Subcontracting Plan FAR 52.219-16

#### 9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

The Contractor shall not maintain or provide racially segregated facilities for employees at any establishment under his control. Contractor agrees to adhere to the principles set forth in Executive Orders 13672 and 11375, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and USC 2012 (Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era), and to undertake specifically: to maintain employment policies and practices that affirmatively promote equality of opportunity for minority group persons and women; to take affirmative steps to hire and promote women and minority group persons at all job levels and in all aspects of employment; to communicate this policy in both English and Spanish to all persons concerned within his company, and to discuss with TTUS the policies and practices relating to the Contractor's Affirmative Action program.

#### 10. FEDERAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR 60-741.5(a). This regulation prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of disability, and requires affirmative action by covered prime Contractors and Subcontractors to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities.

# EXHIBIT 12-G: REQUIRED FEDERAL-AID CONTRACT LANGUAGE

(For Local Assistance Construction Projects)

The following language must be incorporated into all Local Assistance Federal-aid construction contracts. The following language, with minor edits, was taken from the Code of Federal Regulations.

# MAINTAIN RECORDS AND SUBMIT REPORTS DOCUMENTING YOUR PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS SECTION

1.	DISAL	VANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)	2
	A.	Nondiscrimination Statement	3
	B.	Contract Assurance	3
	C.	Prompt Progress Payment	3
	D.	Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors	3
	E.	Termination and Replacement of DBE Subcontractors	4
	F.	Commitment and Utilization	6
	G.	Running Tally of Attainments	7
	H.	Commercially Useful Function	7
	I.	Use of Joint Checks	8
2.	BID O	PENING	9
3.	BID RI	GGING	9
4.	CONT	RACT AWARD	9
5.	CONT	RACTOR LICENSE	9
6.	CHAN	GED CONDITIONS	9
	A.	Differing Site Conditions	9
	B.	Suspensions of Work Ordered by the Engineer	9
	C.	Significant Changes in the Character of Work	10
7.	BEGIN	NING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	10
8.	BUY A	MERICA	10
9.	QUAL	TY ASSURANCE	11
10.	PROM	PT PAYMENT	12
11.	FORM	FHWA-1273 REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS	12
12.	FEMA	LE AND MINORITY GOALS	12
13.	TITLE	VI ASSURANCES	14
14.	FEDE	RAL TRAINEE PROGRAM	19
15.	PROH	BITION OF CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPME	

Page 1 of 21 October 2023

# 1. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have opportunity to participate in the contract (49 CFR 26). To ensure equal participation of DBEs provided in 49 CFR 26.5, the Agency shows a contract goal for DBEs. The prime contractor shall make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with available DBE subcontractors and suppliers.

The prime contractor shall meet the DBE goal shown elsewhere in these special provisions or demonstrate that they made adequate Good Faith Efforts (GFE) to meet this goal. An adequate GFE means that the bidder must show that it took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve a DBE goal that, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, could reasonably be expected to meet the DBE goal.

If the DBE goal is not met, the contractor needs to complete and submit the DBE GFE documentation as described in Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 9, Section 9.8 within 5 (five) days of bid opening.

It is the prime contractor's responsibility to verify that the DBE firm is certified as a DBE on the date of bid opening by using the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) database and possesses the most specific available North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes and Work Code applicable to the type of work the firm will perform on the contract. Additionally, the prime contractor is responsible to document this verification by printing out the CUCP data for each DBE firm. A list of DBEs certified by the CUCP can be found at: <a href="https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/dbe-search">https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/dbe-search</a>.

DBE participation will only count toward the California Department of Transportation's federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal if the DBE performs a commercially useful function under 49 CFR 26.55.

Credit for materials or supplies the prime contractor purchases from DBEs counts towards the goal in the following manner:

- 100 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer.
- 60 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE regular dealer.
- Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the procurement and delivery of materials or supplies count if obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular dealer. 49 CFR 26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer."

The prime contractor receives credit towards the goal if they employ a DBE trucking company that performs a commercially useful function as defined in 49 CFR 26.55(d) as follows:

- The DBE must be responsible for the management and supervision of the entire trucking operation for which it is responsible on a particular contract, and there cannot be a contrived arrangement for the purpose of meeting DBE goals.
- The DBE must itself own and operate at least one fully licensed, insured, and operational truck used on the contract.
- The DBE receives credit for the total value of the transportation services it provides on the Contract
  using trucks it owns, insures, and operates using drivers it employs.
- The DBE may lease trucks from another DBE firm, including an owner-operator who is certified as a
  DBE. The DBE who leases trucks from another DBE receives credit for the total value of the
  transportation services the lessee DBE provides on the Contract.
- The DBE may also lease trucks from a non-DBE firm, including from an owner-operator. The DBE that
  leases trucks equipped with drivers from a non-DBE is entitled to credit for the total value of
  transportation services provided by non-DBE leased trucks equipped with drivers not to exceed the
  value of transportation services on the contract provided by DBE-owned trucks or leased trucks with
  DBE employee drivers. Additional participation by non-DBE owned trucks equipped with drivers
  receives credit only for the fee or commission it receives as a result of the lease arrangement.
- The DBE may lease trucks without drivers from a non-DBE truck leasing company. If the DBE leases
  trucks from a non-DBE truck leasing company and uses its own employees as drivers, it is entitled to
  credit for the total value of these hauling services.

Page 2 of 21 October 2023 A lease must indicate that the DBE has exclusive use of and control over the truck. This does not
preclude the leased truck from working for others during the term of the lease with the consent of the
DBE, so long as the lease gives the DBE absolute priority for use of the leased truck. Leased trucks
must display the name and identification number of the DBE.

#### A. Nondiscrimination Statement

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin. In administering the Local Agency components of the DBE Program Plan, the contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor will not, directly, or through contractual or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE Program Plan with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin.

#### B. Contract Assurance

Under 49 CFR 26.13(b): The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR 26 in the award and administration of federal-aid contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

- Withholding monthly progress payments;
- (2) Assessing sanctions;
- (3) Liquidated damages; and/or
- (4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.

#### C. Prompt Progress Payment

In accordance with California Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, the prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay to any subcontractor, not later than <u>seven days</u> after receipt of each progress payment, unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the respective amounts allowed the contractor on account of the work performed by the subcontractors, to the extent of each subcontractor's interest therein. In the event that there is a good faith dispute over all or any portion of the amount due on a progress payment from the prime contractor or subcontractor to a subcontractor, the prime contractor or subcontractor may withhold no more than 150 percent of the disputed amount. Any violation of this requirement shall constitute a cause for disciplinary action and shall subject the licensee to a penalty, payable to the subcontractor, of 2 percent of the amount due per month for every month that payment is not made.

In any action for the collection of funds wrongfully withheld, the prevailing party shall be entitled to his or her attorney's fees and costs. The sanctions authorized under this requirement shall be separate from, and in addition to, all other remedies, either civil, administrative, or criminal. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

# D. Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors

The Agency may hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the Agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The Agency shall designate one of the methods below in the contract to ensure prompt and full payment of any retainage kept by the prime contractor or subcontractor to a subcontractor. The Agency shall include either Method 1, Method 2, or Method 3 below and delete the other two.

Method 1: No retainage will be held by the Agency from progress payments due to the prime contractor. Prime contractors and subcontractors are prohibited from holding retainage from subcontractors. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10282 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the

> Page 3 of 21 October 2023

contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Method 2: No retainage will be held by the Agency from progress payments due to the prime contractor. Any retainage kept by the prime contractor or by a subcontractor must be paid in full to the earning subcontractor within seven (7) days after the subcontractor's work is satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10282 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor, deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Method 3: The Agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the Agency of the contract work and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances. The prime contractor or subcontractor shall return all monies withheld in retention from all subcontractors within seven (7) days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the Agency. Any delay or postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the Agency's prior written approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code and Section 10262 of the California Public Contract Code. This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the contractor; deficient subcontractor performance and/or noncompliance by a subcontractor. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

Any violation of these provisions of Prompt Progress Payment and Prompt Payment of Withheld Funds to Subcontractors shall subject the violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified therein. These requirements shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor.

# E. Termination and Replacement of DBE Subcontractors

The prime contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to perform the work and supply the materials for which each is listed unless the contractor obtains the Agency's written consent. The prime contractor shall not terminate or replace a listed DBE for convenience and perform the work with their own forces or obtain materials from other sources without prior written authorization from the Agency. Unless the Agency's prior written consent is provided, the contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE on the Exhibit 15-G Construction Contract DBE Commitment form, included in the Bid.

#### Termination of DBE Subcontractors

After a contract with a specified DBE goal has been executed, termination of a DBE may be allowed for the following, but not limited to, justifiable reasons with prior written authorization from the Agency:

- Listed DBE fails or refuses to execute a written contract based on plans and specifications for the project.
- The Local Agency stipulated that a bond is a condition of executing the subcontract and the listed DBE fails to meet the Local Agency's bond requirements.
- Work requires a contractor's license and listed DBE does not have a valid license under Contractors License Law, or is not properly registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations as a public works contractor.
- 4. Listed DBE fails or refuses to perform the work or furnish the listed materials (failing or refusing to

Page 4 of 21 October 2023 perform is not an allowable reason to remove a DBE if the failure or refusal is a result of bad faith or discrimination).

- 5. Listed DBE's work is unsatisfactory and not in compliance with the contract.
- Listed DBE is ineligible to work on the project because of suspension or debarment.
- Listed DBE becomes bankrupt or insolvent or exhibits credit unworthiness.
- 8. Listed DBE voluntarily withdraws with written notice from the Contract
- 9. Listed DBE is ineligible to receive credit for the type of work required.
- 10. Listed DBE owner dies or becomes disabled resulting in the inability to perform the work on the Contract.
- 11. The Agency determines other documented good cause.

To terminate a DBE or to terminate a portion of a DBE's work, the contractor must use the following procedures:

- Send a written notice to the DBE of Contractor's intent to use other forces or material sources and
  include one or more justifiable reasons listed above. Simultaneously send a copy of this written notice to
  the Agency. The written notice to the DBE must request they provide any response within five (5)
  business days to both the Contractor and the Agency by either acknowledging their agreement or
  documenting their reasoning as to why the use of other forces or sources of materials should not occur.
- If the DBE does not respond within 5 business days, Contractor may move forward with the request as if the DBE had agreed to Contractor's written notice.
- 3. Submit Contractor's DBE termination request by written letter to the Agency and include:
  - One or more above listed justifiable reasons along with supporting documentation.
  - Contractor's written notice to the DBE regarding the request, including proof of transmission and tracking documentation of Contractor's written notice
  - The DBE's response to Contractor's written notice, if received. If a written response was not
    provided, provide a statement to that effect.

The Agency shall respond in writing to Contractor's DBE termination request within 5 business days.

#### Replacement of DBE Subcontractors

After receiving the Agency's written authorization of DBE termination request, the Contractor must obtain the Agency's written agreement for DBE replacement. The Contractor must find or demonstrate GFEs to find qualified DBE replacement firms to perform the work to the extent needed to meet the DBE commitment.

The following procedures shall be followed to request authorization to replace a DBE firm:

- Submit a request to replace a DBE with other forces or material sources in writing to the Agency which
  must include:
  - Description of remaining uncommitted work items made available for replacement DBE solicitation and participation.
  - b. The proposed DBE replacement firm's business information, the work they have agreed to perform, and the following:
    - Quote for bid item work and description of work to be performed
    - Proposed subcontract agreement and written confirmation of agreement to perform on the Contract
    - Revised Subcontracting Request form
    - Revised Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment
- 2. If Contractor has not identified a DBE replacement firm, submit documentation of the Contractor's GFEs

Page 5 of 21 October 2023 to use DBE replacement firms within 7 days of Agency's authorization to terminate the DBE. The Contractor may request the Agency's approval to extend this submittal period to a total of 14 days. Submit documentation of actions taken to find a DBE replacement firm, such as:

- Search results of certified DBEs available to perform the original DBE work identified and/or other work the Contractor had intended to self-perform, to the extent needed to meet the DBE commitment
- · Solicitations of DBEs for performance of work identified
- Correspondence with interested DBEs that may have included contract details and requirements
- · Negotiation efforts with DBEs that reflect why an agreement was not reached
- If a DBE's quote was rejected, provide Contractor's reasoning for the rejection, such as why the DBE was unqualified for the work, or why the price quote was unreasonable or excessive
- Copies of each DBE's and non-DBE's price quotes for work identified, as the Agency may contact
  the firms to verify solicitation efforts and determine if the DBE quotes are substantially higher
- Additional documentation that supports the GFE

The Agency shall respond in writing to the Contractor's DBE replacement request within five (5) business days. The Contractor must submit a revised Subcontracting Request form if the replacement plan is authorized by the Agency.

#### F. Commitment and Utilization

The Agency's DBE program must include a monitoring and enforcement mechanism to ensure that DBE commitments reconcile to DBE utilization.

The bidder shall complete and sign Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment included in the contract documents regardless of whether DBE participation is reported. The bidder shall provide written confirmation from each DBE that the DBE is participating in the Contract. LAPM Exhibit 9-I: DBE Confirmation or equivalent form and DBE's quote must be submitted. The written confirmation must be submitted no later than 4pm on the 5th day after bid opening. If a DBE is participating as a joint venture partner, the bidder shall submit a copy of the joint venture agreement.

If the DBE Commitment form, Exhibit 15-G, is not submitted with the bid, it must be completed and submitted by all bidders to the Agency within five (5) days of bid opening. If the bidder does not submit the DBE Commitment form within the specified time, the Agency will find the bidder's bid nonresponsive.

The prime contractor shall use each DBE subcontractor as listed on Exhibit 15-G: Construction Contract DBE Commitment unless they receive written authorization for a termination or replacement from the Agency.

The Agency shall request the prime contractor to:

- 1. Notify the Resident Engineer or Inspector of any changes to its anticipated DBE participation
- 2. Provide this notification before starting the affected work
- 3. Maintain records including:
  - Name and business address of each 1<sup>st</sup>-tier subcontractor
  - Name and business address of each DBE subcontractor, DBE vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier
  - Date of payment and total amount paid to each DBE (see Exhibit 9-F: Monthly Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Payment)

If the prime contractor is a DBE contractor, they shall include the date of work performed by their own forces and the corresponding value of the work.

Before the 15th of each month, the prime contractor shall submit a Monthly DBE Trucking Verification (LAPM Exhibit 16-Z1) form.

Page 6 of 21 October 2023 If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must notify the prime contractor in writing of the decertification date. If a business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the business must notify the prime contractor in writing of the certification date. The prime contractor shall submit the notifications. Upon work completion, the prime contractor shall complete a Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change, Exhibit 17-O, form and submit the form within 30 days of contract acceptance.

Upon work completion, the prime contractor shall complete Exhibit 17-F: Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE), First-Tier Subcontractors and submit it within 90 days of contract acceptance. The Agency will withhold \$10,000 until the form is submitted. The Agency releases the withhold upon submission of the completed form.

# G. Running Tally of Attainments

# For projects awarded on or after March 1, 2020, but before September 1, 2023;

After submitting an invoice for reimbursement that includes a payment to a DBE, but no later than the 10th of the following month, the prime contractor/consultant must complete and email the Exhibit 9-F: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Running Tally of Payments to <u>business support unit@dot.ca.gov</u> with a copy to local administering agencies.

# For projects that are awarded on or after September 1, 2023:

Exhibit 9-F is no longer required. Instead, by the 15th of the month following the month of any payment(s), the prime contractor must now submit Exhibit 9-P to the Local Agency administering the contract. If the Contractor does not make any payments to subcontractors, supplier(s) and/or manufacturers they must report "no payments were made to subs this month" and write this visibly and legibly on Exhibit 9-P.

# H. Commercially Useful Function

DBEs must perform a commercially useful function (CUF) under 49 CFR 26.55 when performing work or supplying materials listed on the DBE Commitment form. The DBE value of work will only count toward the DBE commitment if the DBE performs a CUF. A DBE performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work on the contract and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least 30% of the total cost of its contract with its own work force, or the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of a contract than would be expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, it will be presumed that the DBE is not performing a CUF. Additionally, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material and installing (where applicable), and paying for the material itself.

The Contractor must perform CUF evaluation for each DBE company working on a federal-aid contract, with or without a DBE goal. Perform a CUF evaluation at the beginning of the DBE's work, and continue to monitor the performance of CUF for the duration of the project.

The Contractor must provide written notification to the AGENCY at least 15 days in advance of each DBE's initial performance of work or supplying materials for the Contract. The notification must include the DBE's name, work the DBE will perform on the contract, and the location, date, and time of where their work will take place.

Within 10 (ten) days of a DBE initially performing work or supplying materials on the contract, the Contractor shall submit to the LPA the initial evaluation and validation of DBE performance of a CUF using the LAPM 9-J: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Commercially Useful Function Evaluation. Include the following information with the submittal:

- Subcontract agreement with the DBE
- Purchase orders
- Bills of lading
- Invoices
- Proof of payment

Page 7 of 21 October 2023 The Contractor must monitor all DBE's performance of CUF by conducting quarterly evaluations and validations throughout their duration of work on the contract using the LAPM 9-J: DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation. The Contractor must submit to the AGENCY these quarterly evaluations and validations by the 5<sup>th</sup> of the month for the previous three (3) months of work.

The Contractor must notify the AGENCY immediately if the Contractor believes the DBE may not be performing a CUF

The AGENCY will verify DBEs performance of CUF by reviewing the initial and quarterly submissions of LAPM 9-J: DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation, submitted supporting information, field observations, and through any additional AGENCY evaluations. The AGENCY must evaluate DBEs and their CUF performance throughout the duration of a Contract. The AGENCY will provide written notice to Contractor and DBE at least two (2) business days prior to any evaluation. The Contractor and DBE must participate in the evaluation. Upon completing the evaluation, the AGENCY must share the evaluation results with the Contractor and DBE. An evaluation could include items that must be remedied upon receipt. If the AGENCY determines the DBE is not performing a CUF the Contractor must suspend performance of the noncompliant work.

The Contractor and DBEs must submit any additional CUF related records and documents within five (5) business days of AGENCY's request such as:

- · Proof of ownership or lease and rental agreements for equipment
- Tax records
- Employee rosters
- Certified payroll records
- Inventory rosters

Failure to submit required DBE Commercially Useful Function Evaluation forms or requested records and documents can result in withholding of payment for the value of work completed by the DBE.

If the Contractor and/or the AGENCY determine that a listed DBE is not performing a CUF in performance of their DBE committed work, immediately suspend performance of the noncompliant portion of the work. The AGENCY may deny payment for the noncompliant portion of the work. The AGENCY will ask the Contractor to submit a corrective action plan (CAP) to the AGENCY within five (5) days of the noncompliant CUF determination. The CAP must identify how the Contractor will correct the noncompliance findings for the remaining portion of the DBE's work. The AGENCY has five (5) days to review the CAP in conjunction with the prime contractor's review. The Contractor must implement the CAP within five (5) days of the AGENCY's approval. The AGENCY will then authorize the prior noncompliant portion of work for the DBE's committed work.

If corrective actions cannot be accomplished to ensure the DBE performs a CUF on the Contract, then the Contractor may have good cause to request termination of the DBE.

# I. Use of Joint Checks

A joint check may be used between the Contractor or lower-tier subcontractor and a DBE subcontractor purchasing materials from a material supplier if the contractor obtains prior approval from the LPA for the proposed use of joint check upon submittal of the LAPM 9-K: DLA Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Joint Check Agreement Request form.

To use a joint check, the following conditions must be met:

- All parties, including the Contractor, must agree to the use of a joint check
- Entity issuing the joint check acts solely to guarantee payment
- DBE must release the check to the material supplier
- LPA must authorize the request before implementation
- Any party to the agreement must provide requested documentation within 10 days of the LPA's request for the documentation
- Agreement to use a joint check must be short-term, not to exceed 1 year, allowing sufficient time needed to establish or increase a credit line with the material supplier

Page 8 of 21 October 2023 A request for a joint check agreement may be initiated by any party. If a joint check is used, the DBE remains responsible for all elements of 49 CFR 26.55(c)(1).

Failure to comply with the above requirements disqualifies DBE participation and results in no credit and no payment to the Contractor for DBE participation.

A joint check may not be used between the Contractor or subcontractor and a DBE regular dealer, bulk material supplier, manufacturer, wholesaler, broker, trucker, packager, manufacturer's representative, or other persons who arrange or expedite transactions.

#### 2. BID OPENING

The Agency publicly opens and reads bids at the time and place shown on the Notice to Contractors.

#### 3. BID RIGGING

The U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) provides a toll-free hotline to report bid rigging activities. Use the hotline to report bid rigging, bidder collusion, and other fraudulent activities. The hotline number is (800) 424-9071. The service is available 24 hours 7 days a week and is confidential and anonymous. The hotline is part of the DOT's effort to identify and investigate highway construction contract fraud and abuse and is operated under the direction of the DOT Inspector General.

#### 4. CONTRACT AWARD

If the Agency awards the contract, the award is made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder.

#### 5 CONTRACTOR LICENSE

The Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from contract award through Contract acceptance (23 CFR 635.110).

#### 6. CHANGED CONDITIONS

#### A. Differing Site Conditions

- During the progress of the work, if subsurface or latent physical conditions are encountered at the site
  differing materially from those indicated in the contract or if unknown physical conditions of an unusual
  nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the
  work provided for in the contract, are encountered at the site, the party discovering such conditions shall
  promptly notify the other party in writing of the specific differing conditions before the site is disturbed and
  before the affected work is performed.
- 2. Upon written notification, the engineer will investigate the conditions, and if it is determined that the conditions materially differ and cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required for the performance of any work under the contract, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profits, will be made and the contract modified in writing accordingly. The engineer will notify the contractor of the determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.
- No contract adjustment which results in a benefit to the contractor will be allowed unless the contractor has provided the required written notice.
- No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause for any effects caused on unchanged work.
   [This provision may be omitted by the Local Agency, at their option.]

# B. Suspensions of Work Ordered by the Engineer

- If the performance of all or any portion of the work is suspended or delayed by the engineer in writing for an unreasonable period of time (not originally anticipated, customary, or inherent to the construction industry) and the contractor believes that additional compensation and/or contract time is due as a result of such suspension or delay, the contractor shall submit to the engineer in writing a request for adjustment within 7 calendar days of receipt of the notice to resume work. The request shall set forth the reasons and support for such adjustment.
- 2. Upon receipt, the engineer will evaluate the contractor's request. If the engineer agrees that the cost and/or time required for the performance of the contract has increased as a result of such suspension and the suspension was caused by conditions beyond the control of and not the fault of the contractor, its suppliers, or subcontractors at any approved tier, and not caused by weather, the engineer will make an adjustment (excluding profit) and modify the contract in writing accordingly. The contractor will be notified of the engineer's determination whether or not an adjustment of the contract is warranted.

Page 9 of 21 October 2023

- No contract adjustment will be allowed unless the contractor has submitted the request for adjustment within the time prescribed.
- No contract adjustment will be allowed under this clause to the extent that performance would have been suspended or delayed by any other cause, or for which an adjustment is provided or excluded under any other term or condition of this contract.

# C. Significant Changes in the Character of Work

- The engineer reserves the right to make, in writing, at any time during the work, such changes in
  quantities and such alterations in the work as are necessary to satisfactorily complete the project. Such
  changes in quantities and alterations shall not invalidate the contract nor release the surety, and the
  contractor agrees to perform the work as altered.
- 2. If the alterations or changes in quantities significantly change the character of the work under the contract, whether such alterations or changes are in themselves significant changes to the character of the work or by affecting other work cause such other work to become significantly different in character, an adjustment, excluding anticipated profit, will be made to the contract. The basis for the adjustment shall be agreed upon prior to the performance of the work. If a basis cannot be agreed upon, then an adjustment will be made either for or against the contractor in such amount as the engineer may determine to be fair and equitable.
- If the alterations or changes in quantities do not significantly change the character of the work to be performed under the contract, the altered work will be paid for as provided elsewhere in the contract.
- 4. The term "significant change" shall be construed to apply only to the following circumstances:
  - When the character of the work as altered differs materially in kind or nature from that involved or included in the original proposed construction; or
  - When a major item of work, as defined elsewhere in the contract, is increased in excess of 125
    percent or decreased below 75 percent of the original contract quantity. Any allowance for an
    increase in quantity shall apply only to that portion in excess of 125 percent of original contract
    item quantity, or in case of a decrease below 75 percent, to the actual amount of work performed.

# 7. BEGINNING OF WORK, TIME OF COMPLETION AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Contractor shall begin work within 15 calendar days after the	issuance of the Notice to Proceed.
This work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion before the ex on the fifteenth calendar day after the date shown on the Notice to	
The Contractor shall pay to the City/County_ and every calendar days' delay in finishing the work in excess of the	

# 8. BUY AMERICA

Buy America Requirements apply to steel and iron, manufactured products, and construction materials permanently incorporated into the project.

# Steel and Iron Materials

All steel and iron materials must be melted and manufactured in the United States except:

- Foreign pig iron and processed, pelletized, and reduced iron ore may be used in the domestic production of the steel and iron materials [60 Fed Reg 15478 (03/24/1995)];
- If the total combined cost of the materials produced outside the United States does not exceed the greater of 0.1 percent of the total contract amount or \$2,500, materials produced outside the United States may be used if authorized.

Furnish steel and iron materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance and certified mill test reports. Mill test reports must indicate where the steel and iron were melted and manufactured. All melting and manufacturing processes for these materials, including an application of a coating, must occur in the United States. Coating includes all processes that protect or enhance the value of the material to which the coating is applied.

Page 10 of 21 October 2023

#### Manufactured Products

Iron and steel used in precast concrete manufactured products must meet the requirements of the above section (Steel and Iron Materials) regardless of the amount used. Iron and steel used in other manufactured products must meet the requirements of the above section (Steel and Iron Materials) if the weight of steel and iron components constitute 90 percent or more of the total weight of the manufactured product.

#### Construction Materials

Buy America requirements apply to the following construction materials that are or consist primarily of:

- Non-ferrous metals
- Plastic and polymer-based products such as:
  - 2.1 Polyvinylchloride
  - 2.2 Composite Building Materials
- Glass
- 4. Fiber optic cable (including drop cable)
- Optical fiber
- Lumber
- 7. Engineered wood
- Drywall

All manufacturing processes for these materials as defined in 2 CFR 184.6 must occur in the United States.

Where one or more of these construction materials have been combined by a manufacturer with other materials through a manufacturing process, Buy America requirements do not apply unless otherwise specified.

Furnish construction materials to be incorporated into the work with certificates of compliance with each project delivery. Manufacturer's certificate of compliance must identify where the construction material was manufactured and attest specifically to Buy America compliance.

All manufacturing processes for these materials must occur in the United States.

Buy America requirements do not apply to the following:

- 1. Tools and construction equipment used in performing the work
- 2. Temporary work that is not incorporated into the finished project

#### Waivers

If Buy America waivers are granted, use the following language to include in the contract:

The following steel and iron products, manufactured products, or construction materials have received an approved Buy America waiver for this contract, and therefore, are not subject to Buy America requirements:

1.		
_		
2.		

#### 9. QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Local Agency uses a Quality Assurance Program (QAP) to ensure a material is produced to comply with the Contract. The Local Agency may examine the records and reports of tests the prime contractor performs if they are available at the job site. Schedule work to allow time for QAP.

> Page 11 of 21 October 2023

#### 10. PROMPT PAYMENT

#### A. FROM THE AGENCY TO THE CONTRACTORS

The Local Agency shall make all project progress payment within 30 days after receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from the Contractor on a construction contract. If the Local Agency fails to pay promptly, the Local Agency shall pay interest to the Contractor, which accrues at the rate of 10 percent per annum on the principal amount of a money judgment remaining unsatisfied and pro-rated as necessary. Upon receipt of the payment request, the Local Agency shall act in accordance with both of the following:

- The Local Agency shall review each payment request as soon as feasible after receipt to verify it is a
  proper payment request.
- The Local Agency must return any payment request deemed improper by the Local Agency to the Contractor as soon as feasible, but not later than seven (7) days, after receipt. A request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall include documentation setting forth in writing the reasons why it is an improper payment request.

# B. SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBIT 9-P

#### For projects awarded on or after September 1, 2023:

The Contractor must submit Exhibit 9-P to the Local Agency administering the contract by the 15th of the month following the month of any payment(s). If the Contractor does not make any payments to subcontractors, supplier(s) and/or manufacturers they must report "no payments were made to subs this month" and write this visibly and legibly on Exhibit 9-P.

The Local Agency must verify all Exhibit 9-P information, monitor compliance with prompt payment requirements for DBE and non-DBE firms, and address any shortfall to the DBE commitment and prompt payment issues until the end of the project. The Local Agency must email a copy of Exhibit 9-P to 

DBE.Forms@dot.ca.gov before the end of the month after receiving the Exhibit 9-P from the Contractor.

# 11. FORM FHWA-1273 REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FEDERAL-AID CONTRACTS

[Form FHWA-1273 must be physically inserted into the contract without modification, excluding ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS ROAD CONTRACTS.]

[The current version of Form FHWA-1273 is accessible at FHWA's website: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/contracts/1273/1273.pdf]

# 12. FEMALE AND MINORITY GOALS

To comply with Section II, "Nondiscrimination," of "Required Contract Provisions Federal-Aid Construction Contracts," the following are for female and minority utilization goals for Federal-aid construction contracts and subcontracts that exceed \$10,000:

The nationwide goal for female utilization is 6.9 percent.

The goals for minority utilization (45 Fed Reg 65984 (10/3/1980)) are as follows:

Page 12 of 21 October 2023

# MINORITY UTILIZATION GOALS

Economic Area		Goal (Percent)
174	Redding CA: Non-SMSA (Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area) Counties: CA Lassen; CA Modoc; CA Plumas; CA Shasta; CA Siskiyou; CA Tehama	6.8
175	Eureka, CA Non-SMSA Counties: CA Del Norte; CA Humboldt; CA Trinity	6.6
	San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose, CA: SMSA Counties: 7120 Salinas-Seaside-Monterey, CA	28.9
	CA Monterey 7360 San Francisco-Oakland CA Alameda; CA Contra Costa; CA Marin; CA San Francisco; CA San Mateo	25.6
	7400 San Jose, CA	19.6
176	CA Santa Clara, CA 7485 Santa Cruz, CA CA Santa Cruz	14.9
	7500 Santa Rosa CA Sonoma	9.1
	8720 Vallejo-Fairfield-Napa, CA	17.1
	CA Napa; CA Solano Non-SMSA Counties:	
	CA Lake; CA Mendocino; CA San Benito	23.2
	Sacramento, CA:	
177	SMSA Counties: 6920 Sacramento, CA	16.1
	CA Placer; CA Sacramento; CA	14.3
1	Yolo Non-SMSA Counties CA Butte; CA Colusa; CA El Dorado; CA Glenn; CA Nevada; CA Sierra; CA Sutter; CA	14.5
	Yuba	
	Stockton-Modesto, CA: SMSA Counties:	
	5170 Modesto, CA	12.3
178	CA Stanislaus 8120 Stockton, CA	24.3
	CA San Joaquin	40.0
	Non-SMSA Counties CA Alpine; CA Amador, CA Calaveras; CA Mariposa; CA Merced; CA Tuolumne	19.8
	Fresno-Bakersfield, CA SMSA Counties:	
179	0680 Bakersfield, CA	19.1
	CA Kern	20.4
	2840 Fresno, CA CA Fresno	26.1
	Non-SMSA Counties: CA Kings; CA Madera; CA Tulare	23.6
l	erringe, errineed, errineed	l

Page 13 of 21 October 2023

180	Los Angeles, CA: SMSA Counties: 0360 Anaheim-Santa Ana-Garden Grove, CA CA Orange 4480 Los Angeles-Long Beach, CA CA Los Angeles 6000 Oxnard-Simi Valley-Ventura, CA CA Ventura 6780 Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario, CA CA Riverside; CA San Bernardino 7480 Santa Barbara-Santa Maria-Lompoc, CA CA Santa Barbara Non-SMSA Counties CA Inyo; CA Mono; CA San Luis Obispo	11.9 28.3 21.5 19.0 19.7 24.6
181	San Diego, CA: SMSA Counties 7320 San Diego, CA CA San Diego Non-SMSA Counties CA Imperial	16.9 18.2

For the last full week of July during which work is performed under the contract, the prime contractor and each non material-supplier subcontractor with a subcontract of \$10,000 or more must complete Form FHWA PR-1391 (Appendix C to 23 CFR 230). Submit the forms by August 15.

#### 13. TITLE VI ASSURANCES

[The U.S. Department of Transportation Order No.1050.2A requires all federal-aid Department of Transportation contracts between an agency and a contractor to contain Appendix A and E.

Note: Appendix B only requires inclusion if the contract impacts deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein. Appendices C and D only require inclusion if the contract impacts deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the recipient.]

# APPENDIX A

During the performance of this Agreement, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as CONTRACTOR) agrees as follows:

- a. <u>Compliance with Regulations</u>: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement.
- b. <u>Nondiscrimination</u>: CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, age, or disability in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. CONTRACTOR shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the agreement covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- c. <u>Solicitations for Sub-agreements. Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment</u>: In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONTRACTOR for work to be performed under a Sub- agreement, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-applicant or supplier shall be notified by CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.
- d. Information and Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports required by the

Page 14 of 21 October 2023 Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the recipient or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any information required of CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to the recipient or FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts CONTRACTOR has made to obtain the information.

- Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONTRACTOR's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the recipient shall impose such agreement sanctions as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
  - withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under the Agreement within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; and/or
  - ii. cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.
- f. Incorporation of Provisions: CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) in every sub-agreement, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.

CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to any sub-agreement or procurement as the recipient or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance, provided, however, that, in the event CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-applicant or supplier as a result of such direction, CONTRACTOR may request the recipient enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State, and, in addition, CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

#### APPENDIX B

#### CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY

The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 4:

NOW THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the condition that the recipient will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon in accordance with Title 23 U.S.C., the regulations for the administration of the preceding statute, and the policies and procedures prescribed by the FHWA of the U.S. Department of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the recipient all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

# (HABENDUM CLAUSE)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the recipient and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the recipient, its successors and assigns. The recipient, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interest in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]\* (2) that the recipient will use the lands and interests in lands and interest in lands so conveyed, in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title

Page 15 of 21 October 2023

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended[, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination conditions, the Department will have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said lands, and that above described land and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].\*

(\*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

#### APPENDIX C

# CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into by the recipient pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a):

- A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that:
  - 1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities.
- B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to terminate the (lease, license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.\*
- C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon, and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the recipient and its assigns."

(\*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

Page 16 of 21 October 2023

#### APPENDIX D

# CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements entered into by the recipient pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b):

A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishings of services thereon, no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits or, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance.

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.) in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will have the right to terminate the (license, permits, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued.\*

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the recipient will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the recipient and its assigns.

("Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.)

# APPENDIX E

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities, including, but not limited to:

# Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities:

- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
- The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);
- Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex;
- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CR Part 27;
- The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of age);
- Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);
- The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such

Page 17 of 21 October 2023

# APPENDIX C

#### Local Assistance Procedures Manual

Exhibit 12-G Required Federal-Aid Contract Language

programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

- Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination of the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;
- The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);
- Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;
- Executive Order 13168, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and
  resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English
  proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP
  persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);
- Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

Page 18 of 21 October 2023

Federal Trainee Program Special Provisions (to be used when applicable)

#### 14. FEDERAL TRAINEE PROGRAM

For the Federal training program, the number of trainees or apprentices is

This section applies if a number of trainees or apprentices is shown on the Notice of Bidders.

As part of the prime contractor's equal opportunity affirmative action program, provide on-the-job training to develop full journeymen in the types of trades or job classifications involved.

The prime contractor has primary responsibility for meeting this training requirement.

If the prime contractor subcontracts a contract part, they shall determine how many trainees or apprentices are to be trained by the subcontractor. Include these training requirements in each subcontract.

Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation must be in their 1st year of apprenticeship or training.

Distribute the number of apprentices or trainees among the work classifications on the basis of the prime contractor's needs and the availability of journeymen in the various classifications within a reasonable recruitment area.

Before starting work, the prime contractor shall submit to the City/County of \_\_\_\_\_:

- Number of apprentices or trainees to be trained for each classification
- 2. Training program to be used
- 3. Training starting date for each classification

The prime contractor shall obtain the City/County of \_\_\_\_\_approval for this submitted information before the prime contractor starts work. The City/County of \_\_\_\_credits the prime contractor for each apprentice or trainee the prime contractor employs on the job who is currently enrolled or becomes enrolled in an approved program.

The primary objective of this section is to train and upgrade minorities and women toward journeyman status. The prime contractor shall make every effort to enroll minority and women apprentices or trainees, such as conducting systematic and direct recruitment through public and private sources likely to yield minority and women apprentices or trainees, to the extent they are available within a reasonable recruitment area and show that they have made the efforts. In making these efforts, the prime contractor shall not discriminate against any applicant for training.

The prime contractor shall not employ as an apprentice or trainee an employee:

- In any classification in which the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or in which the employee has been employed as a journeyman
- Who is not registered in a program approved by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training

The prime contractor shall ask the employee if the employee has successfully completed a training course leading to journeyman status or has been employed as a journeyman. The prime contractor's records must show the employee's answers to the questions.

In the training program, the prime contractor shall establish the minimum length and training type for each classification. The City/County of \_\_\_\_\_\_ and FHWA approves a program if one of the following is met:

- It is calculated to:
  - Meet the equal employment opportunity responsibilities
  - Qualify the average apprentice or trainee for journeyman status in the classification involved by the end of the training period
- It is registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, and it is administered in a way consistent with the equal employment responsibilities of Federal-aid highway construction contracts

Page 19 of 21 October 2023

The prime contractor shall obtain the State's approval for their training program before they start work involving the classification covered by the program.

The prime contractor shall provide training in the construction crafts, not in clerk-typist or secretarial-type positions. Training is allowed in lower-level management positions such as office engineers, estimators, and timekeepers if the training is oriented toward construction applications. Training is allowed in the laborer classification if significant and meaningful training is provided and approved by the division office. Off-site training is allowed if the training is an integral part of an approved training program and does not make up a significant part of the overall training.

The City/County of \_\_\_\_\_\_reimburses the prime contractor 80 cents per hour of training given an employee on this contract under an approved training program:

- For on-site training
- For off-site training if the apprentice or trainee is currently employed on a Federal-aid project and prime contractor does at least one of the following:
  - Contribute to the cost of the training
  - b. Provide the instruction to the apprentice or trainee
  - c. Pay the apprentice's or trainee's wages during the off-site training period
- 3. If the prime contractor complies with this section.

#### Each apprentice or trainee must:

- Begin training on the project as soon as feasible after the start of work involving the apprentice's or trainee's skill
- Remain on the project as long as training opportunities exist in the apprentice's or trainee's work classification or until the apprentice or trainee has completed the training program

# Furnish the apprentice or trainee a:

- Copy of the training plan approved by the U.S, Department of Labor or a training plan for trainees approved by both Caltrans and FHWA
- 2. Certification showing the type and length of training satisfactorily completed

Maintain records and submit reports documenting contractor's performance under this section.

# 15. PROHIBITION OF CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES

In response to significant national security concerns, the agency shall check the prohibited vendor list before making any telecommunications and video surveillance purchase because recipients and subrecipients of federal funds are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

- Procure or obtain:
- Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or
- Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

The prohibited vendors (and their subsidiaries or affiliates) are:

- Huawei Technologies Company;
- ZTE Corporation;
- Hytera Communications Corporation;
- Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company;
- Dahua Technology Company; and
- Subsidiaries or affiliates of the above-mentioned companies.

Page 20 of 21 October 2023

# APPENDIX C

#### Local Assistance Procedures Manual

Exhibit 12-G Required Federal-Aid Contract Language

In implementing the prohibition, the agency administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

The contractors should furnish telecommunications and video surveillance equipment with a certificate of compliance. The certificate must state telecommunications and video surveillance equipment was not procured or obtained from manufacturers identified in the above list.

Page 21 of 21 October 2023

# APPENDIX D

# CONSTRUCTION TASK CATALOG AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS LINKS

Construction Task Catalog® and Technical Specifications Link:

https://fortive.box.com/s/lh3ynuud8ulhqcb7m18qhhmx3fixplcw

Please note: The links will cease to be available after 12/9/2025. Please download and save as soon as possible.

**NOTE:** These Supplementary Conditions apply to FEMA funded County projects. The County anticipates that most projects performed through the Job Order Contracting program will not be FEMA funded.

# SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS – FEMA FUNDED PROJECT

The Agreement/Contract (collectively, "Contract") may be funded in whole or in part by federal grant funding received by The County of Tehama ("County) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency ("FEMA"), which is part of the United States Department of Homeland Security ("DHS"). Therefore, Consultant/Contractor (collectively, the "Contractor") must comply with all federal laws and regulations applicable to the receipt of FEMA grants, including, but not limited to, the contractual provision set forth in Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, in connection with the Contractor's performance of the work or services covered by the Contract (the "Project"). All such federal laws and regulations shall be deemed to be inserted in the Contract and the Contract shall be read and enforced as though such federal laws and regulations were included therein.

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FEMA-mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in the Contract. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any The County of Tehama request that would cause the County to be in violation of these FEMA terms and conditions or any other federal law or regulation applicable to the receipt of FEMA grants. If any provision of the Contract shall be such as to effect noncompliance with any FEMA requirement, such provision shall not be deemed to form a part thereof, but the balance of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

In addition, the Contractor agrees to the following specific provisions:

# 1.1 Debarment

- .1 The Contractor and any prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- .2 The County will ensure the Contractor and any lower participants are not debarred by checking the governments Excluded Parties List System at <u>SAM.gov</u> prior to executing a contract.

# 1.2 Cost Plus Percentage Not Allowed

.1 Notwithstanding any provisions in the agreement to the contrary, the Contractor and any prospective lower tier participant are prohibited from using cost plus percentage contracts. This includes but is not limited to the use of percentages for change orders or mark-ups on sub-contractors or materials. Cost plus fixed fee either lump sum or unit price is authorized.

# 1.3 Additional Federal Contracting Requirements

- .1 The Contractor must comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41CFR chapter 60).
- .2 The Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

- .3 The Contractor must comply with the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits recipients of federal funding from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101–12213).
- .4 The Contractor must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. Implementing regulations for the Act are found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.
- .5 The Contractor must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, which prohibits Contractors from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.), as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators)—be designed and constructed with certain accessible features (see 24 C.F.R. § 100.201).
- .6 The Contractor must comply with the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3).
- .7 The Contractor must comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a7) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).
- a. This project is a public work in the State of California, funded in whole or in part with public funds. Therefore, the higher of the two applicable prevailing wage rates, federal or state, will be enforced.
  - .8 The Contractor must comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).
  - .9 The Contractor must provide reporting as specified in the plans, specifications and deliverables section of the contract.
  - .10 The County shall have patent rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such contract.
  - .11 The County shall have copyrights and rights respective to any data which arises or is developed in the course of or under such contract.
  - .12 The City, County, State, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
  - .13 The Contractor must maintain records for three years after grantees or subgrantees make final payments and all other pending matters are closed.
  - .14 The Contractor must comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$100,000)

- The Contractor must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.
- .16 The Contractor must comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94163, 89 Stat. 871).
- .17 The County is entitled to exercise all administrative, contractual, or other legal remedies permitted by law to enforce the Contractor's compliance with the terms of the Contract.
- .18 The Contractor must acknowledge its use of federal funding when issuing requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing the Project in connection with performing the Contract.
- .19 If the Contractor collects PII (Personally Identifiable Information) in connection with the Project, the Contractor is required to have a publicly-available privacy policy that describes what PII they collect, how they use the PII, whether they share PII with third parties, and how individuals may have their PII corrected where appropriate.
- .20 The Contractor must comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. § 701 et seq.), which is adopted at 2 C.F.R Part 3001, which requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency agree to maintain a drug-free workplace.
- .21 The Contractor must comply with the requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 3729 which sets forth that no recipient of federal payments shall submit a false claim for payment. See also 38 U.S.C. § 3801-3812 which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements made.
- .22 The Contractor must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (air carriers holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. § 41102) for international air transportation of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49 U.S.C. § 40118) and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General of the United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroller General Decision B-138942.
- .23 The Contractor must comply with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency ("LEP") to their programs and services. Providing meaningful access for persons with LEP may entail providing language assistance services, including oral interpretation and written translation.
- .24 The Contractor must comply with 31 U.S.C. §1352, which provides that none of the funds provided under an award may be expended by the Contractor to pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any Federal action concerning the award or renewal.
- .25 Unless otherwise provided by law, the Contractor is subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub. L. No. 96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. § 200 et seq. The Contractor is subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance awards are in 37 C.F.R. Part 401 and the standard patent rights clause in 37 C.F.R. § 401.14.

- .26 The Contractor must comply with U.S. Executive Order 13224 and U.S. law that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism.
- .27 The Contractor must comply with the requirements of the government-wide award term which implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104). This is implemented in accordance with OMB Interim Final Guidance, Federal Register, Volume 72, No. 218, November 13, 2007. Full text of the award term is located at 2 CFR § 175.15.
- .28 The Contractor must comply with the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, including all sections, that prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability. The standards for deciding if employment discrimination exists under the Rehabilitation Act are the same as those used in Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
- .29 The Contractor must maintain the currency of the information in the Universal Identifier and System of Award Management (SAM) until submission of the final financial report required under the award or receive final payment, whichever is later, as required by 2 C.F.R. Part 25.
- .30 The Contractor must comply with requirements of the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act), which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175–175c. Among other things, the USA PATRIOT Act prescribes criminal penalties for possession of any biological agent, toxin, or delivery system of a type or in a quantity that is not reasonably justified by a prophylactic, protective, bona fide research, or other peaceful purpose.
- .31 The Contractor must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C § 2409, 41 U.S.C. 4712, and 10 U.S.C. § 2324, 41 U.S.C. § 4304 and 4310.
- .32 The Contractor must obtain DHS's approval prior to using the DHS seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.
- .33 The Contractor must acknowledge and agree—and require any sub-contractors, successors, transferees, and assignees to acknowledge and agree—to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. Additionally:
  - a. the Contractor must cooperate with any compliance review or complaint investigation conducted by DHS;
  - b. the Contractor must give DHS access to and the right to examine and copy records, accounts, and other documents and sources of information related to the grant and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program guidance;
  - c. the Contractor must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup documentation to support the reports;
  - d. the Contractor must comply with all other special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance;
  - e. if, during the past three years, the Contractor has been accused of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status, the Contractor must provide a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed, including outcome and copies of settlement agreements to the DHS awarding office (FEMA) and the DHS Office of Civil Rights and Civil Liberties; and
  - f. in the event any court or administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against the Contractor, or the Contractor settles a case or matter alleging such

discrimination, the Contractor must forward a copy of the complaint and findings to the DHS Component and/or awarding office (FEMA).

- .34 The Contractor and any prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- .35 Small and Minority Businesses: The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. Affirmative steps must include:
  - a. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists:
  - b. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
  - c. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
  - d. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
  - e. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
  - f. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (a) through (e) of this section. <a href="http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=se2.1.200\_1321&rgn=div8">http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=se2.1.200\_1321&rgn=div8</a>
- .36 The Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41CFR chapter 60).
- .37 The Contractor shall comply with the Copeland Anti-Kickback Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3).
- .38 The Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a7) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). This project is a public work in the State of California, funded in whole or in part with public funds. Therefore, the higher of the two applicable prevailing wage rates, federal or state, will be enforced.
- .39 The Contractor shall comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

- .40 The Contractor shall provide reporting as specified in the plans, specification and deliverables section of the contract.
- .41 The County shall have patent rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such contract.
- .42 The County shall have copyrights and rights respective to any data which arises or is developed in the course of or under such contract.
- .43 The City, County, State, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- .44 The Contractor shall maintain records for three years after grantees or subgrantees make final payments and all other pending matters are closed.
- .45 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$100,000)
- .46 The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94163, 89 Stat. 871).

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.